585 Airport Way, Suite B

COUNTY06VENTU RA Camaillo, CA 93010

Phone: (805) 388-4372

Department of Airports s (895) S38-4a20
www.ventura.ora/dirports

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN
that the Regular Meeting of the
Camarillo Airport Authority and Oxnard Airport Authority
will be held on:

Thursday June 10, 2021 6:30 P.M.

DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE
555 AIRPORT WAY, SUITE B
CAMARILLO, CA

IN RESPONSE TO THE DECLARED STATE AND LOCAL EMERGENCIES DUE TO THE
NOVEL CORONAVIRUS, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR’S
RECENT ORDER TO LIMIT INDOOR OPERATIONS AS A PRECAUTIONARY MEASURE
TO HELP SLOW THE SPREAD OF COVID-19, THE DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS IS
CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC.

THE FOLLOWING PROVIDES INFORMATION ABOUT HOW TO OBSERVE AND/OR
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING:

1. You may join the meeting via Zoom. See last page for detailed instructions about
participating in the meeting via Zoom.

2. You may observe the meeting via the Department of Airports YouTube channel
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC4j{LWASMGn4wTrEPdT8BOTQ?view as=subscriber

3. Public Comment Options

a. Email - You may submit your comment, limited to 250 words or less, via email by 5:00
p.m. on Thursday, June 10, 2021 to Airport Staff at Airportinfo@ventura.org. Please
indicate in the Subject Line, the Agenda item number (e.g., Item No. 6.A.). When the
Authorities reach your item of interest on the agenda, Airport Staff will read your
comment during the time for public comments.

b. Zoom — You may provide verbal comments during the meeting. See last page for
detailed instructions about participating in the meeting via Zoom.



AGENDA
1. CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE
2. ROLL CALL
3. APPROVAL of MINUTES - April 8, 2021
4. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
5. NEW BUSINESS

CAMARILLO AIRPORT AUTHORITY

A. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee to
Sign, the Commercial Account Right of Entry Agreement with Charter
Communications Operating, LLC for Service at 295 Willis Ave., Camarillo,
California

Recommendation:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

Approve, and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, the attached
Commercial Account Right of Entry Agreement with Charter Communications Operating, LLC.

CAMARILLO & OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY

B. Subject: Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee to Award Annual
Consulting-Services Contracts for FY 2021-2022 and to Issue Work Orders
Against These Contracts

Recommendations:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

1. Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to award annual consulting-services
contracts for fiscal year 2021-2022 to the consultants listed in the Annual Consultant
Services Contracts Summary (Exhibit 1) using a contract form negotiated in compliance
with the County of Ventura Public Works Agency Project Processing Procedures Manual
(an exemplar contract form is attached as Exhibit 2); and

2. Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to issue work orders against such
contracts for up to $35,000 each project for planning of construction projects not yet
approved by the Board, and for up to $200,000 each work order for other services.



OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY

C. Subject: Receive and File a Presentation from the Channel Islands Neighborhood

Council Regarding Noise Concerns Surrounding Oxnard Airport

Recommendation:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority receive and file a presentation from the Channel
Islands Neighborhood Council regarding noise concerns surrounding Oxnard Airport.

CAMARILLO & OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY

D. Subject: Approval of the Department of Airports’ Fiscal Year 2021-22 Rent and Fee

Schedule, Effective July 1, 2021; Adoption of a Resolution Establishing
Rents, Fees, and Insurance Requirements for the Department of Airports;
Delegation of Authority to the County Executive Officer and the Director of
Airports to Execute Leases, Subleases, Licenses, Permits, Special
Use/Activity Permits, Operation Agreements, Extensions, Amendments,
Consents, Termination Notices, and Unlawful Detainer Complaints in
Accordance with the Provisions of the Schedule

Recommendations:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

1.

Approve the Department of Airports’ (“Department”) FY 2021-22 Rent and Fee Schedule
(Exhibit 1 is a clean version and Exhibit 2 is a legislative version with track changes), with
an effective date of July 1, 2021; and

Authorize the County Executive Officer and the Director of Airports to execute certain
leases, subleases, licenses, permits, special use/activity permits, operation agreements,
extensions, amendments, consents, termination notices, and unlawful detainer
complaints as described in section |l of the attached resolution (pages 30-37 of Exhibit
1); and

Approve, adopt, and execute the resolution (pages 30-37 of Exhibit 1) establlshlng rents,
fees, and insurance requirements for the Department.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
REPORTS

Monthly Activity Report — March, April 2021
Monthly Noise Complaints — March, April 2021
Consultant Reports — March, April 2021
Airport Tenant Project Status — May 2021



Project Status — May 2021
Meeting Calendar

8. CORRESPONDENCE

Letter dated April 7, 2021 from Madeline Herrle to Justin Guan, Federal Aviation Administration
re: Application for Conveyance of Surplus Property; Camarillo Airport — 275 Skyway Drive,
Camarillo, CA; GSA Control No 9-X-CA-0410 AO; DHS Ice Building

Letter dated April 13, 2021 from Kip Turner to Greg Ramirez, City of Camarillo re: Agreement
Between County of Ventura and City of Camarillo Pertaining to Camarillo Airport Development
and Surrounding Land Use

Notice re: Oxnard Airport Runway 7-25, Taxiway Connectors, and Parallel Taxiway Pavement
Reconstruction Project Tenant Workshop #3 on May 25, 2021

A Message from the Director of Airports dated May 26, 2021 from Kip Turner re: Camarillo and
Oxnard Airport Master Plan Update

Notice re: Oxnard Airport Runway 7-25, Taxiway Connectors, and Parallel Taxiway Pavement
Reconstruction Project Tenant Workshop #3 Rescheduled on June 15, 2021

9. AUTHORITY COMMENTS - Comments by Authority members on matters deemed
appropriate.

10. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular Authority meeting will be on Thursday, July 8, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. Location to
be determined.

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED
SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT ANA
CASTRO AT (805) 388-4211. NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING WILL
ENABLE THE DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS
TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING.



Z200Mm

Webinar Instructions

Public link to Zoom webinar:
https://zoom.us/j/93880014397 2pwd=eXhPKytQOVBpNGpoVUN3QnpmbHYyUT09

Webinar ID: 938 8001 4397

Passcode: 714773

Phone Numbers: 1-669-900-6833
1-253-215-8782

Cell Phone or Computer with Audio (Microphone) Feature: Click on the link above and
enter passcode. Enter your name so we may call on you when it is your turn to speak.

The Chairperson will ask if anyone wishes to speak to the item. At that time, raise your hand
by clicking the Raise Hand button. Follow the instructions below regarding Speaking.

Computer without Audio (Microphone) Feature: Click on the link above and enter

passcode. This will allow you to view and listen to the meeting. In order to speak, follow the
instructions below for Telephone.

Telephone: If you do not have access to the internet, you can watch the live broadcast of
the meeting on the City of Camarillo Local Government Channels — Spectrum Channel 10
and Frontier Channel 29, or via the Department of Airports YouTube channel. If you are
interested in speaking to an item, you can call into one of the phone lines listed above, and
when prompted enter the Webinar ID and Passcode shown above. Once in the meeting, you
will be listening to the meeting through your phone handset.

The Chairperson will ask if anyone wishes to speak to the item. At that time, raise your hand
by dialing *9. Follow the instructions below regarding Speaking.

Speaking

When it is your turn to speak, the Chairperson will call your name or the last 4 digits of your
phone number if you are calling from a phone, and you will have 3 minutes to speak. Please
ensure that all background noise is muted (TV, radio, etc.). You will be prompted to unmute
your microphone/phone. Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name.

The timer on the screen will count down your 3 minutes. The timer starts green indicating
you have 3 minutes; when the time hits 1 minute remaining, the timer will change to yellow;
when the 3 minutes have elapsed, the timer will turn red. At that time, your microphone will
be muted and we will move onto the next speaker. If you called in on one of the phone lines
listed above, you will not be able to see the timer. Instead, you will be prompted when the 3
minutes has begun; when the time hits 1 minute remaining; when the 3 minutes have elapsed.

3:00 | 1:00




555 Airport Way, Suite B

COUNTvﬁﬁ VENTURA Camarillo, CA 93010

Phone: (805) 388-4372
Department of Airports Fax: (805) 385-4366

www.ventura.org/qirports

CAMARILLO AIRPORT AUTHORITY AND OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY

MINUTES

April 8, 2021

1. CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

CAA Chair, Kelly Long, called the CAA meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and requested that
CAA Vice-Chair, Bill Thomas, lead the pledge of allegiance.

OAA Chair, Walter Calhoun, called the OAA meeting to order at 6:42 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL

CAA PRESENT CAA ABSENT OAA PRESENT OAA ABSENT
Kelly Long Kelly Long

Carmen Ramirez Carmen Ramirez

Shawn Mulchay Bert Perello

Susan Santangelo Vianey Lopez

Bill Thomas Walter Calhoun (L)

Michael Hodson (Alt)

Excused (E)
Late (L)
Alternate (Alf)

AIRPORT STAFF

Kip Turner, Director

Dave Nafie, Deputy Director

Erin Powers, Projects Administrator
Madeline Herrle, Lease Manager
Jamal Ghazaleh, Accounting Manager
John Feldhans, Operations Supervisor

A\



3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - March 11, 2021

Camarillo Airport Authority: Public Member Bill Thomas moved to approve the
March meeting minutes and Councilmember Susan Santangelo seconded the
motion. All members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

Oxnard Airport Authority: Supervisor Kelly Long moved to approve the March
meeting minutes and Councilmember Bert Perello seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

None.

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS — NONE

6. NEW BUSINESS

CAMARILLO AIRPORT AUTHORITY

A. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee
to Sign, a Grant of Easement Agreement with Southern California
Edison, for the Relocation of a Power Pole at the Camarillo Airport
Business Park

Recommendations:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

1. Approve, and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, a Grant of
Easement Agreement (Exhibit 1) with Southern California Edison for the relocation of
an existing power pole and guy wire support on County property at the northwest corner
of Willis Avenue and Airport Way, in the Camarillo Airport Business Park.

2. Inaccordance with Government Code section 25526.6, find that granting the easement
to Southern California Edison is in the public interest and that the conveyance will not
interfere with the County’s use of the property.

Director Kip Turner introduced the item. Lease manager Madeline Herrle provided a brief
staff report and responded to general questions posed by Authority members.



Camarillo Airport Authority: Supervisor Carmen Ramirez moved to approve staff’s
recommendations and Vice Mayor Shawn Mulchay seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

B. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee
to Sign, a Memorandum of Agreement between the County of Ventura
and the Federal Aviation Administration for the Operation of FAA
Facilities at the Camarillo Airport

Recommendation:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

Approve, and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, a Memorandum of
Agreement (Exhibit 1) between the County of Ventura (County) and the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) for the operation of various FAA facilities at the Camarillo Airport
which include the Automated Surface Observing Systems (ASOS), the Centerfield Wind
Instrument (CFW), and the Air Traffic Control Tower (ATCT), for a period of twenty years.

Director Kip Turner introduced the item. Lease manager Madeline Herrle provided a staff
report. A discussion took place regarding terms of the agreement.

Camarillo Airport Authority: Supervisor Kelly Long moved to approve staff’s
recommendation and Councilmember Susan Santangelo seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

C. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee
to Sign, the First Amendment to the Lease with RKR Incorporated, to

Correct the Description of the Leased Premises

Recommendation:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

Approve, and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, the First
Amendment to the lease with RKR Incorporated, to correct the description of the leased

premises.

Director Kip Turner introduced the item. Lease manager Madeline Herrle provided staff's

05



report and shared that a correction to the packet letter is needed. The letter currently states
that no fiscal impacts are associated with this action, however, there will be an annual rent
increase of approximately $23,000 as a result of the change in square footage of the
leased premises area. Ms. Herrle added that RKR's lease agreement notes an aviation
land rate per square foot so any change to the leasehold will result in a rent adjustment.

Camarillo Airport Authority: Supervisor Kelly Long moved to approve staff’'s
recommendation and Supervisor Carmen Ramirez seconded the motion. All

members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY

D. Subject: Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee, to Accept and
Sign Federal Aviation Administration Grant No. 3-06-0179-038-2021,
When Offered, in an Estimated Amount of $24,179,468 Which Will
Provide Funds for the Runway 7-25, Taxiway Connectors and Parallel
Taxiway Pavement Reconstruction at Oxnard Airport; Authorization for
the Director of Airports or Designee, to Apply for, Accept, and Sign for
a Matching Grant from Caltrans, if Offered; and Authorization for County
Counsel to Execute the Certificate of Sponsor's Attorney Required by
Federal Aviation Administration Grant Agreements

Recommendations:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

1. Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee, to accept and sign Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) Grant No. 3-06-0179-038-2021, when offered, in an estimated
amount of $24,179,468 which will provide funds for the Runway 7-25, Taxiway
Connectors and Parallel Taxiway Pavement Reconstruction at Oxnard Airport; and

2. Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee, to apply for, accept, and sign for a
matching grant from Caltrans, if offered; and

3. Authorize County Counsel to execute the Certificate of Sponsor's Attorney required by
FAA Grant Agreements.

Director Kip Turner introduced the item. Projects administrator Erin Powers provided
staff's report. Ms. Powers shared that the design has been finalized and the project is out
to bid. Bids are expected at the end of this month. Ms. Powers stated that the work is split

St



into three elements (base bid, bid alternate 1, bid alternate 2) however the department
hopes to complete the project at one time. The department is bringing this item forward
now in order to be in a position to accept a grant from the FAA when offered. The grant
amount of $24,179,468 is only an estimate because the actual grant will be based on the
bids that come in and the different bid elements that are awarded.

Oxnard Airport Authority: Supervisor Carmen Ramirez moved to approve staff’s
recommendations and Councilmember Bert Perello seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

CAMARILLO & OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY

E. Subject: Approval of the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for Camarillo
and Oxnard Airports; Authorization for the Director of Airports or
Designee, to Apply for Grants to Fund Projects Scheduled for Federal
Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022 Outlined in the CIP upon Notification from
the Federal Aviation Administration and the California Department of
Transportation Aeronautics Program That Funds Are Available

Recommendations:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

1. Approve the five-year capital improvement plan (CIP) for Camarillo and Oxnard
Airports (Exhibit 1); and

2. Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee, to apply for grants to fund the projects
scheduled for federal fiscal years (FFY) 2021 and 2022 outlined in the CIP upon
notification from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the California
Department of Transportation Aeronautics Program (Caltrans) that funds are available.
These projects are subject to approval in the County budget process, as
explained below.

Director Kip Turner introduced the item. Projects administrator Erin Powers provided
staff's report. Ms. Powers shared that the department works with the FAA every year to
update its five-year capital improvement plan. The plan is required by federal and state
agencies in order to be eligible for grant funding. Ms. Powers reviewed a PowerPoint
presentation outlining projects scheduled at Camarillo and Oxnard airports between 2021-
2025. A discussion took place about the Part 150 noise exposure map update which is a
project listed at Camarillo Airport in 2022. Director Turner and Ms. Powers responded to

305



general questions posed by Authority members. Councilmember Bert Perello requested
that OAA Chair Walter Calhoun’s comments be captured. Mr. Calhoun requested that the
Department of Airports carefully evaluate and consider whether a maintenance facility, or
something of that nature, should be at Oxnard Airport. Mr. Calhoun hopes that the
department will look into this in the future.

Camarillo Airport Authority: Supervisor Kelly Long moved to approve staff's
recommendations and Supervisor Carmen Ramirez seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

Oxnard Airport Authority: Supervisor Kelly Long moved to approve staff's
recommendations and Councilmember Bert Perello seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

F. Subject: Appointment of One Member of the Camarillo Airport Authority and
Oxnard Airport Authority to the Planning Advisory Committee for the
Airport Master Plan Study

Recommendation:

Staff requests that the Camarillo Airport Authority and Oxnard Airport Authority appoint
one member to the Planning Advisory Committee for the Airport Master Plan study.

Director Kip Turner reviewed a PowerPoint presentation describing the Airport
Master/System Plan study process. The study provides an opportunity to engage with and
educate the general public on issues related to Ventura County airports. Four workshops
will be scheduled as part of the process and the process will conclude with a local
document that will be presented to the Ventura County Board of Supervisors for approval.
Mr. Turner also explained that a Planning Advisory Committee (PAC) is being formed as
part of the process. PAC members will be responsible for communicating with their
respective organizations and reporting any comments/concerns regarding the
development of the study from their organization back to the PAC. Mr. Turner shared
information about the representatives that will make up the PAC. Authority members
shared suggestions about alternative options for PAC members.

Camarillo Airport Authority: Supervisor Kelly Long moved to appoint Public

Member Bill Thomas to the Planning Advisory Committee and Supervisor Carmen
Ramirez seconded the motion. Bill Thomas abstained. All others voted in favor and

the motion passed unanimously.



Oxnard Airport Authority: Supervisor Carmen Ramirez moved to appoint Alternate
Public Member Eugene Fussell to the Planning Advisory Committee with a provision
that Public Member Walter Calhoun be appointed if Eugene Fussell is unable to
serve. Public Member Walter Calhoun seconded the motion. All members voted in
favor and the motion passed unanimously.

G. Subject: Review of Fiscal Year 2021-22 Proposed Budget

Recommendation:

Staff requests that your Commission and Authorities review and comment on the
Department of Airports proposed FY 2021-22 budget for Camarillo and Oxnard Airports;
and Camarillo Roads and Lighting Enterprise Fund, as attached, and recommend approval
of the Board of Supervisors.

Director Kip Turner reviewed a PowerPoint presentation detailing the proposed budget.
Mr. Turner described the department’'s response to the pandemic and fiscal year
accomplishments. Accounting manager Jamal Ghazaleh provided an overview of the
budget for Camarillo Airport and Oxnard Airport.

Camarillo Airport Authority: Vice Mayor Shawn Mulchay moved to approve staff’s
recommendation and Councilmember Susan Santangelo seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

Oxnard Airport Authority: Councilmember Bert Perello moved to approve staff's
recommendation and Supervisor Carmen Ramirez seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously.

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Director Kip Turner provided an update on the private hangar lease agreement. Based on
the discussion that took place during the March meetings of the Aviation Advisory
Commission and the Camarillo and Oxnard Airport Authorities, Mr. Turner asked that
County Counsel meet with Leslie McAdam who is a representative that the Camarillo
Oxnard Hangar Owners and Tenants Association put forth as one of their speakers at last
month’s meeting. Mr. Turner shared that progress is being made on the agreement. Mr.
Turner informed the Camarillo Airport Authority that the department has been watching
the centerline of the runway at Camarillo Airport for the last few weeks due to severe
cracking. The department is working with engineers to come up with a plan to address this

matter. Mr. Turner will provide another update in the near future.



8. REPORTS

Monthly Activity Report — February 2021
Monthly Noise Complaints — February 2021
Consultant Reports — February 2021
Airport Tenant Project Status — March 2021
Project Status — March 2021

Meeting Calendar

Reports were received and filed.
9. CORRESPONDENCE - None
10. AUTHORITY COMMENTS

Councilmember Bert Perello shared that he has received requests from groups that are
involved with aircraft traffic patterns in the Oxnard area and they would like to make a
presentation to this body. Mr. Perello commented that he believes this body should be
made aware of the issues and hear the concerns. Mr. Perello requested that this item be
placed on the agenda. Public Member Bill Thomas commented that a tower supervisor
should be invited to the meeting when this item is agendized. Supervisor Carmen Ramirez
suggested a workshop to provide information to residents. Public Member Walter Calhoun
commented that in addition to attendance by a tower supervisor, he would like to see
representation from the Department of Airports, in particular, Kip Turner. Director Turner
shared that he has asked deputy director Dave Nafie to reach out to the groups and make
presentations. Mr. Nafie shared more about his efforts and stated that he believes having
a workshop is an excellent idea. Mr. Calhoun shared that the Federal Aviation
Administration needs to get involved immediately because they control Oxnard Airport and
he requested that Director Turner proceed along those lines.

11. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the April 8, 2021 Authority meeting was adjourned at
8:52 p.m.

KIP TURNER, C.M.
Administrative Secretary

204



555 Airport Way, Suite B

COUNTY 0ﬁ VENTURA Camarillo, CA 93010

Phone: (805) 388-4372
Department of Airports Fax: (805) 388-4366

www.ventura.org/airports

June 7, 2021

Aviation Advisory Commission
Camarillo Airport Authority
555 Airport Way, Suite B
Camarillo, CA 93010

Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee
to Sign, the Commercial Account Right of Entry Agreement with
Charter Communications Operating, LLC for Service at 295 Willis Ave.,
Camarillo, California

Recommendation:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors
(Board):

Approve, and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, the attached
Commercial Account Right of Entry Agreement with Charter Communications Operating,
LLC.

Fiscal/Mandates Impact:

There are no fiscal impacts associated with this action.
Discussion:

Charter Communications, operating as its subsidiary Spectrum Cable, has installed
optical fiber equipment in the Camarillo Airport office park multi-tenant office building
located at 295 Willis Avenue, Camarillo, to enable tenants to connect to its service if
desired.

As tenants elect to connect and make a separate contract for service with
Charter/Spectrum, Charter requires the Landlord’s consent to its ability to extend its
services into the building and use Landlord’s facilities on a non-exclusive basis.

The Agreement is structured to last at a minimum of five years or until there still exists
tenant agreements for service in the building.

Sa



AAC/CAA
Commercial Account

Right of Entry Agreement with Charter Communications Operating, LLC
June 7, 2021
Page 2

The Department of Airports (DOA) supports this service, which enables the DOA to
attract tenants to its properties by offering new technology and expanded services which
its tenants may utilize at their expense.

If you have any questions regarding this item, please call Madeline Herrle at 388-4243,
or me at 388-4372.

fip G

KIP TURNER, C.M.
Director of Airports

Attachment:

Exhibit 1 — Charter Communications Operating, LLC Commercial Account Right of Entry Agreement

0



Spectrum»

COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT

This Commercial Account Right of Entry Agreement (hereinafter the "Agreement”) is by and between County of Ventura
hereinafter the “Owner”), with a mailing address of 800 S Victoria Ave Ventura, CA 93009 and owning real estate located
at 295 Willis Ave Camarillo CA 93010 (hereinafter the “Premises”) and Charter Communications Operating, LLC, on
behalf of itself and its affiliates, (hereinafter collectively "Charter"), with a mailing address of 12405 Powerscourt Drive, St.
Louis, MO 63131, Attn: Commercia! Contracts Management. This Agreement commences on the later of the execution
dates set forth below the signatures (hereinafter the "Effective Date"). Charter and Owner may individually be referred to
as a "Party" or collectively as the "Parties".

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:
1. RIGHT OF ENTRY AND EQUIPMENT.

a. In consideration of the mutual benefits and obligations set forth herein, Owner hereby grants to Charter a
non-exclusive right of entry to the Premises and those buildings of Owner located on the Premises (including
building roof tap(s)) (‘Buildings") for the installation, attachment, maintenance, modification, inspection,
relocation, repair, upgrade, replacement or removal of any equipment and facilities and other communications
accessories, equipment, apparatus, fixtures, hardware, appliances, and appurtenances and any other
associated equipment (collectively, "Equipment") to provide any of Charter's services (hereinafter the
"Services") to any customers who can receive Services by such Equipment. Owner also hereby authorizes
Charter to utilize those conduits and ducts of Owner that Owner may designate as available for Charter's use
(collectively “Conduit”).

b. The rights herein granted to Charter shall include use of available power at the Premises, together with the
right to access and use all i) risers in the Buildings, ii) Building entrance facilities, iii) Building utility entrance
facilities, iv) utility closets in the Buildings, v) private rights-of-way, and vi) other areas on the Premises and
Buildings as is reasonably required for the purpose set forth herein.

c. Allofthe above grants and authorizations given by Owner are to the extent necessary or desirable for Charter
to provide its Services to the Premises and shall extend to Charter's authorized agents.

d. The Equipment is not, and shall not be deemed to be, affixed to or a fixture of the Premises. If requested by
Owner, Charter shall provide to Owner the proposed route for installation of Equipment on the Premises.
Charter shall install, operate and maintain the Equipment on the Premises at its own expense and in
accordance with all applicable laws.

2. OWNER REPRESENTATIONS. Owner represents and warrants to Charter that Owner is the legal owner of the
Premises, the Building(s) and Conduit (if applicable), and that no other person has any rights in the forgoing that
conflict with Charter's rights under this Agreement. Owner recognizes Charter's right to have exclusive control over
any Charter installed Equipment, and Owner will nat attach to or use, and will not knowingly allow a third party to
attach to or use, Charter's Equipment for any purpose without Charter's prior written consent. In the event the Owner
is not executing this Agreement, the undersigned person executing on behalf of Owner represents that the undersigned
is Owner's authorized agent and has full authority to bind Owner to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,

3. RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTACT PUBLIC UTILITIES. As may be required by law, Charter or its contractors will
contact and coordinate with local agencies to physically mark the location of all public utility lines (including, but not
limited to, water, electric, phone and sewer lines) that are located in areas in which Charter intends to instali the
Equipment. Owner shall not interfere with the markings designating such locations until installation is complete.
Charter shall be responsible for any damage to public utility lines that are located along the routes or in the location in
which Charter installs any Equipment, to the extent such damage arises from Charter’s installation activities.

Commercial Right of Entry Agreement v 191007 CONFIDENTIAL Page 1 of 6
© 2018, 2019 Charter Communications, all rights reserved
295 Willis Ave Camarillo CA 83010 -JCC2

543



Speclrum»

4. RESPONSIBILITY TO MARK PRIVATE UNDERGROUND LINES. If Owner has private underground lines at the
Premises that could impact Charter's installation of Equipment, including, but not limited to, sprinklers, sprinkler heads,
drains, cables, pipes and wires (collectively "Impacted Private Lines") then both Parties shall, in advance of any
underground construction performed by Charter, work together, to the best of their abilities, to research the existence
of all Impacted Private Lines (hereinafter “Joint Effort"). In order to facilitate the Joint Effort, Owner provides below its
authorized representative (with contact information) regarding the Joint Effort. (Please print clearly)

Name:

Address &/or email:

Phone:

After the Joint Effort, the following shall take place: (i) Charter will make a determination on the need to locate and
mark Impacted Private Lines including, but not limited to, the methods and arrangements for same, and (i) If deemed
by Charter necessary to do so, a qualified Charter contractor shalf locate (including verification of) and clearly mark all
Impacted Private Lines to the extent required by Charter. In the event that Charter damages any clearly marked
Impacted Private Lines along the routes or in the location in which Charter installs any Equipment, and only to the
extent such damage(s) arise from Charler's Equipment installation activities on the Premises, then Charter shall
promptiy, within a reasonable period of time, repair said damage(s) to Owner’s reasonable satisfaction, after receipt
of written notice from Owner describing the scope and extent of such damage(s), which written notice, if needed, shall
be provided to Charter no later than thirty (30) days after Charter's initial installation of Equipment.

5. INSURANCE. Charter shall maintain, at Charter's sole cost and expense, (i) commercial general liability insurance
including Property Damage, Badily Injury and contractual liability insurance subject to standard insurance carrier
exclusions, in the amount of $2,000,000 each occurrence covering (a) to the extent caused by acts of Charter,
damages to the Premises and (b) the operations of Charter at the Premises, (ii) Auto Liability, including Bodily Injury
and property damage in the amount of $1,000,000 each accident, and (jii) worker's compensation insurance to comply
with the applicable laws of the State the Premises is located in

6. TERM. The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and shall remain in full force and effect until
the later of: (i) the date that is five (5) years after the Effective Date, or (i) the date that is 6 months after the date that
Charter is no longer providing Services to any tenant of the Premises (the “Term”). Following the Term, Owner may
terminate this Agreement upon 90 days advance written notice to Charter in the event Charter is no longer providing
Services to any tenant of the Premises. Should any tenant of the Premises request Services during such 90-day
termination notice period, the related notice of termination shall be deemed rescinded and thereafter null and void.
Charter may, within 20 days of the expiration or termination of this Agreement, elect to remove Charter's Equipment
or abandon in-place all or certain portians of Charter's Equipment at the Premises which, upon abandonment, shall
be deemed the property of the Owner, with lien free title thereto passing immediately to Owner at no cost to Owner,

7. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement may be freely assigned by either Party, provided that the assignee agrees in writing
to assume all of the obligations of assignor hereunder, and be bound by all of the terms and conditions of, this
Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, either Party shall be obligated to assign this Agreement
to a successor in interest in the event of a change of control resulting from a merger, sale of stock or sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Party relating to the Services or applicable Buildings. This Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure ta the benefit of the Parties hereto, their successors, legal representatives and assigns.

8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CHARTER MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES--EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED-- REGARDING THE EQUIPMENT OR THE SERVICES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY
IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, AND ALL SUCH WARRANTIES ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO
THE CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, IN NO EVENT SHALL CHARTER OR OWNER BE LIABLE FOR ANY
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, RELIANCE OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, EVEN IF ADVISED
OF THE POSSIBILITY THEREOF.

9. INDEMNIFICATION. Each Party will indemnify, defend, and hold the other harmless from and against all liability, loss,
costs, damages, (together with reasonable attorneys’ fees associated therewith) arising out of any third party claims
resulting from the negligence, willful misconduct of a Party, or breach of this Agreement (including but not limited to
any representation or warranty hereunder).

Commercial Right of Entry Agreement v 191007 CONFIDENTIAL Page 2 of 6

© 2018, 2019 Charter Communications, all rights reserved

295 Willis Ave Camarillo CA 93010 -JCC2



Spectrum»

10. JURY TRIAL WAIVER. IN ANY AND ALL CONTROVERSIES OR CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO
THIS AGREEMENT, ITS NEGOTIATION, ENFORCEABILITY OR VALIDITY, OR THE PERFORMANCE OR
BREACH THEREOF OR THE RELATIONSHIPS ESTABLISHED HEREUNDER, THE PARTIES EACH HEREBY
WAIVES ITS RIGHT, {F ANY, TO TRIAL BY JURY.

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENTS. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with
respect to, and supersedes all prior agreements, promises and understandings, whether oral or written, with respect
to, the subject matter contained herein. This Agreement shall not be modified, amended, supplemented or revised,
except by a written document signed by both Parties.

12. SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, itlegal or unenforceable in
whole or in part, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, and
this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable term or provision had not been contained
herein.

13. NO WAIVER. Neither the failure of either Party to exercise any power given such Party hereunder or to insist upon
strict compliance by the other Party with its abligations hereunder, nor any custom or practice of the Parties at variance
with the terms hereof shall constitute a waiver of either Party's right to demand exact compliance with the terms hereof.

14. COUNTERPARTS AND ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be signed in several counterparts, each
of which will be fully effective as an original and all of which together will constitute one and the same
instrument. Signatures to this Agreement may be transmitted by electronic mail, and signatures so transmitted will be
deemed the equivalent of delivery of an original signature.

This Agreement shall be construed to be in accordance with the laws of the State where the Premises is located.

Charter Communications Operating, LLC OWNER: County of Ventura

By: Charter Communications, Inc., its Manager

By: By:
(Signature) (Signature)
Printed Name: Ana Diaz Printed Name:
Title: Director, Enterprise Service Delivery Title:
Date: Date:
Commercial Right of Entry Agreement v 191007 CONFIDENTIAL Page 3 of 6

© 2018, 2019 Charter Communications, all rights reserved
295 Willis Ave Camarillo CA 93010 -JCC2

0D



Spectrum»

Existing AS-Built Plan

AR A

Oaay Fields mip Mandatory fos Entedprive snd SMAB plojetiy

Project nformation

[toviim L0 A e

(ailtfing s r4n balmrm o i
= == [LETE R
Feagrins)
Google Earth Map
Detail from Right Of Way to Interior MPOE/d inoratthep
Insart » Guogle £arth Map
HiFMTU, @ MUST ¢ i Bisilding Layoul, Rark, and Powsi Latations®

Actisl Goog/e or Bing hybnd picture with route highlighted from O5P tle In paint to th

CONFIDENTIAL

Commercial Right of Entry Agreement v 191007
© 2018, 2019 Charter Communications, all rights reserved
295 Willis Ave Camarillo CA 93010 -JCC2

-
~ I et .

L
APARE 735270

{using the catur schema far serial and UG trom the Sunrey Color Code b}
Eaganiod, #ativens, wnd saskimall mast ©

] L]

Page 4 of 6

a



Spectrum»

Se——

PARKING

C-295

/6\

8. D, H-l,
H-3, H-8, |

PARKING

PARKING

MPO
aojl

T sw_ - D/w B - -

Insdrt Enterior & intarior Plejusas
faateds Preh or Wall Manst Platuags

Commercial Right of Entry Agreement v 191007 CONFIDENTIAL Page 5 of 6
© 2018, 2019 Charter Communications, all rights reserved

295 Willis Ave Camarillo CA 93010 -JCC2



Spectrum»

SPLICER
NEW SPLICE LOCATION ]

;é—*’ BC-295W1LL I SAVE

295 WILLIS AYE
34.2080:-119.0779
ATP FLIGHT SCHOOL

e SpLicen2 =
NEW SPLICE LOCATION

AVE
?»rl“u L. W
e
=X
x
b=
o
[an]
[«
o
. H o«
o . AEXISTING SPLICE LOCATION ]
“w 73 NEW SINGLE MUX S
Z = E{USE FREQ'S: 161171591 o5
(%) =X J 5 0 —,:.
= E CLITONER mmmn
: < -"I""T""‘_—f"ﬂ"f-
o wd AEXISTING 48 CNT FIBER - 1247 | i =
v EAUSE FIBER &
[ wouwaw | oone | “*“v.-.u
HEADENRD, IHPORMATION
HEADEXD/HUB | mow | mack [PaaL] PoRT w
0] [ [1] &
SKYWAY DR. &@
Commercial Right of Enltry Agreement v 191007 CONFIDENTIAL Page & of 6

© 2018, 2019 Charter Communications, all rights reserved
295 Willis Ave Camarillo CA 93010 -JCC2

a4



555 Airport Way, Suite B

COUNTY OKVENTU RA Camaiillo, CA 93010

Phone: (805) 388-4372
Depq rtment of Ai rports Fax: (805) 388-4366

www.ventura.org/agirports

June 7, 2021

Aviation Advisory Commission
Camarillo Airport Authority
Oxnard Airport Authority

555 Airport Way, Suite B
Camarillo, CA 93010

Subject: Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee to Award Annual
Consulting-Services Contracts for FY 2021-2022 and to Issue Work
Orders Against These Contracts

Recommendations:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of
Supervisors (Board):

1. Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to award annual consulting-
services contracts for fiscal year 2021-2022 to the consultants listed in the Annual
Consultant Services Contracts Summary (Exhibit 1) using a contract form
negotiated in compliance with the County of Ventura Public Works Agency Project
Processing Procedures Manual (an exemplar contract form is attached as Exhibit
2); and

2. Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to issue work orders against such
contracts for up to $35,000 each project for planning of construction projects not yet
approved by the Board, and for up to $200,000 each work order for other services.

Fiscal/Mandates Impact:

Mandatory: No
Source of Funding: Airport Enterprise Fund
Impact on Other Departments: None

This action does not result in an immediate fiscal impact, as there is no obligation to
issue any work orders against these annual contracts during the term of the contracts. A
fiscal impact will occur only when work orders are issued. The Department of Airport's
(“Department”) proposed FY 2021-2022 budget reflects a total of $340,000 programmed

for these type of contracts.



AAC/CAA/OAA

Annual Service Contracts for
Camarillo and Oxnard Airports
June 7, 2021

Page 2

Discussion:

To obtain professional consulting services for projects at Camarillo and Oxnard Airports
for fiscal year 2021-2022, the Department reviewed previous year annual contract work,
consultant performance, and anticipated future professional services requirements in
order to determine which consultants and services should be retained under an annual
contract arrangement. Based on this analysis, select consultants were invited to express
their interest in forming an annual contract with the County. Invited consultants submitted
proposed fee schedules which were reviewed and negotiated, and a list of proposed
consultants was developed as shown in Exhibit 1.

The proposed contract form (Exhibit 2) has been negotiated in compliance with the
County of Ventura Public Works Agency Project Processing Procedures Manual for
Class |l annual contracts. Class li annual contracts are approved by the Board each
year. They are general contracts utilized for specific professional services when needed.
Once an annual contract is in place, work orders are issued against the annual contract
for specific services. No single work order can exceed $200,000. The contracted
services include, but are not limited to, engineering and plan review, specification writing,
construction estimation, project oversight and inspection.

Consultants recommended for contracts have demonstrated qualifications required by
the County. Negotiations have resulted in fee schedules considered fair and reasonable
for the qualifications. Entering into an annual consulting-services contract does not
guarantee any work for, or obligate the County to engage the services of, a consultant.

If you have any questions regarding this item, please call Erin Powers at 388-4205, or
me at 388-4372.

fip G

KIP TURNER, C.M.
Director of Airports

Attachments:

Exhibit 1 - Annual Consultant Services Contracts Summary
Exhibit 2 - Contract

Sh



Department of Airports
Annual Services Contracts by Consultant for FY2021-2022

Coffman & Associates, Inc.
Scottsdale, AZ
AEA 22-01 Limit: $100,000

Services Under Contract
Environmental Planning
Environmental Review Services

Grant Support Administration Services
Planning

Jviation, a Woolpert Company,
Glendale, CO
AEA 22-02 Limit: $200,000

Services Under Contract

Civil Engineering

Design Review Services Specification Writing
Grant Support Administration Services
Disadvantage Business Enterprise Support
Cost Engineer/Estimator

Mead & Hunt, Inc.
Windsor, CA
AEA 22-03 Limit: $25,000

Services Under Contract

Civil Engineering

Design Review Services Specification Writing
Grant Support Administration Services
Disadvantage Business Enterprise Support
Cost Engineer/Estimator

Adams Companies, LLC
Gilbert, AZ
AEA 22-04 Limit: $15,000

Services Under Contract
Independent Fee Estimation

EXHIBIT 1



ANNUAL CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT
AE No. AEA 22-XX

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
for Oxnard and Camarillo Airports

This is an annual contract, made and entered into this July 1, 2021, by and between the COUNTY OF
VENTURA, (COUNTY), and [INSERT NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONSULTANT] (CONSULTANT).

This contract (Contract) shall be administered for the COUNTY by the COUNTY’s Department of
Airports. Claims, disputes, or complaints to the COUNTY under this Contract must be addressed to the
Projects Coordinator located at 555 Airport Way, Suite B, Ventura, CA 93010 by certified mail return
receipt requested. This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding its
subject matter and supersedes all previous and contemporaneous agreements, understandings and
negotiations regarding the subject matter of this Contract. No modification, waiver, amendment or
“discharge of this Contract is valid unless the same is in writing and signed by duly authorized
representatives of both parties.

The parties hereto agree as follows:

1. COUNTY hereby retains CONSULTANT to perform services on an “as needed / as requested” basis,
during the period from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022, as provided in the “Scope of Work and Services”,
attached hereto as “Exhibit A”, and the “COUNTY of Ventura, Public Works Agency, CONSULTANT’s
Guide to Ventura COUNTY Procedures” as amended from time to time, which is on file with the Public
Works Agency, and which by reference is made a part hereof. This contract shall take precedence over
the Guide in case of conflicting provisions, otherwise they shall be interpreted together.

2. All work under this Contract, and any portion thereof separately identified, shall be completed within
the time provided in the “Time Schedule”, attached hereto as “Exhibit B". COUNTY shall issue a
suspension of the contract time whenever CONSULTANT is delayed by action or inaction of COUNTY
and CONSULTANT promptly notifies COUNTY of such delays.

3. COUNTY will make payment only for services actually rendered. CONSULTANT is not entitled to
payment for having been retained under this Contract. CONSULTANT is not entitled to perform work
under this Contract except as requested by COUNTY, and COUNTY is not obligated to request any
work under this Contract. Payment for services rendered shall be made bi-weekly, within 30 days from
when the COUNTY receives an invoice, in accordance with “Fees and Payment,” attached hereto as
“Exhibit C.”

4. COUNTY or any duly authorized representative shall have the right to review the work being
performed by CONSULTANT under this Contract at any time during COUNTY’s usual working hours. A
review of the work in progress shall not relieve the CONSULTANT of responsibility for the accuracy and
completeness of the work performed under this Contract.

EXHIBIT 2 5b4



AE No. AEA 21-XX
Page 2 of 5

5. This Contract is for the professional services of CONSULTANT and is non-assignable by
CONSULTANT without prior consent by COUNTY in writing except that CONSULTANT may assign
money due or which will accrue to CONSULTANT under this Contract. If given written notice, COUNTY
will recognize such assignment to the extent permitted by law, but any assignment of money shall be
subject to all proper setoffs and withholdings in favor of the COUNTY and to all deductions provided for
in this Contract. All money withheld, whether assigned or not, shall be subject to being used by COUNTY
for completion of the work, should the Contract be in default. Such professional services shall be actually
performed by, or shall be immediately supervised by CONSULTANT or a principal of the firm.

In performing these professional services, CONSULTANT is an independent contractor and is not acting
as an agent or employee of COUNTY.

6. COUNTY retains the right to terminate this Contract for any reason prior to compietion by notifying
CONSULTANT in writing, and by paying charges accumulated prior to such termination. Such charges
shall be limited to the maximum fee specified in “Exhibit C” for completion of any separately identified
phase of the work which, at the time of termination, has been started by request of COUNTY, plus a pro-
rata share of any percentage retention specified.

7. On completion or termination of Contract, COUNTY shall be entitled to immediate possession of, and
CONSULTANT shall furnish on request, all computations, plans, correspondence and other pertinent
data gathered or computed by CONSULTANT for this particular project prior to any termination. No
documents prepared pursuant to this Contract or any modifications thereof shall be copyrighted by
CONSULTANT or by COUNTY. CONSULTANT may retain copies of said original documents for
CONSULTANT'S files.

8 CONSULTANT owes COUNTY an undivided duty of loyalty in performing the services under this
Contract. During the term of this agreement CONSULTANT shall not employ or compensate personnel
currently employed by COUNTY. CONSULTANT shall promptly inform COUNTY of any contract,
arrangement, or interest that CONSULTANT may enter into or have (other than this Contract) related to
the COUNTY’s subject project. This includes contracts and arrangements with manufacturers, suppliers,
contractors or other third parties which possess or seek to obtain a financial interest related to the
County’s subject project. In performing services under this Contract, CONSULTANT acknowledges that it
may be subject to laws addressing financial conflicts of interest such as the Political Reform Act ("Act”),
Government Code section 81000 et seq. CONSULTANT shall comply with financial disclosure
requirements under the Act as directed by COUNTY, and shall not engage in activities that may constitute
a conflict of interest under applicable law.

9. a. CONSULTANT shall, throughout the term of this Contract and any extensions thereof, carry one or
more insurance policies that provide the following minimum coverage:

5h5



AE No. AEA 22-XX
Page 3 of 5

1) Commercial General Liability insurance shall provide minimum of $1,000,000 coverage for each
occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate coverage.

2) Worker's Compensation insurance in full compliance with California law for all employees of
CONSULTANT in the minimum amount of $500,000, if applicable.

3) Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) insurance shall provide a minimum of $1,000,000.00
coverage for each occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in annual aggregate coverage. Professional
Liability insurance is not required if the CONSULTANT does not provide design services including
the preparation of plans or specifications, or survey services as part of design or project layout
during the completion of this Contract.

b. CONSULTANT shall notify COUNTY immediately if the CONSULTANT'S general aggregate of
insurance is exceeded by valid litigated claims and purchase additional levels of insurance to
maintain the above stated requirements. Each type of insurance mentioned herein shall be written by
a financially responsible company or companies authorized to do business in the State of California.
CONSULTANT agrees to provide COUNTY with copies of certificates of all polices written and each
shall contain an endorsement that they are not subject to cancellation without 30 days prior written
notice being given to COUNTY by the insurance company or companies writing such insurance.
CONSULTANT agrees to name County of Ventura and its officials employees and agents as
additional insured (“Additional Insureds”) on CONSULTANT'S general and automobile liability
insurance policies. All required insurance shall be primary coverage as respects the Additional
Insureds, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in
excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance coverage and shall not contribute to it. CONSULTANT agrees
to waive all rights of subrogation against the Additional Insureds for losses arising directly or indirectly
from the activities or work performed by CONSULTANT hereunder.

10. CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless COUNTY, including all of its boards,
agencies, departments, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, against any and all claims, lawsuits,
judgments, debts, demands or liabilities that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence,
recklessness or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Contract.

CONSULTANT: COUNTY: COUNTY OF VENTURA

Signature Kip Turner, Director of Airports

Printed Name and Title

Taxpayer |.D. No.

Consulting Contract AEA 21-XX
Qs ) f! ) (Z?



AEA No. 22-XX

EXHIBITA,B&C

Page 4 of 5
EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES

Consultant shall provide professional consulting services during the period from July 1,
2021 to June 30, 2022, as requested by the Director of Airports or his designated
representative. Such services shall include, but are not limited to management consulting
services, civil engineering, design review services, specification writing, grant support
administration  services, disadvantage business enterprise  support, cost
engineering/estimating, planning, environmental planning, environmental review
services.

County retains the right to terminate any work requested for any reason by notifying
Consultant in writing 60 days in advance and by paying all charges accumulated prior to
such termination.

Consultant agrees to complete all work accepted by Consultant during the term of
this contract.

All work performed under this contract shall be done under the general direction of  the
Director of Airports and the direction of the Deputy Director of Airports or his designated
representative.

At the Agency’s discretion, the Agency may provide Consultant with office space,
telephone, computer, supplies and secretarial services at the Department of Airports
Administrative Offices, Camarillo Airport, for use solely for the performance of services
for the County.

END OF EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT B
TIME SCHEDULE

All work under this contract shall be completed by June 30, 2022.
END OF EXHIBIT B

EXHIBIT C
FEES and PAYMENT

On presentation of invoice, payment shall be made for work completed, delivered and
accepted at the following rates:

1. Fee Schedule (See Exhibit C-1)

County shall compensate Consultant at the above rate, but not to exceed the sum of
[INSERT CONTRACT AMOUNT] for all assigned work completed.

END OF EXHIBIT C gb——]

4-



555 Airport Way, Suite B

COUNTY 0& VENTURA Camarillo, CA 93010

- Phone: (805) 388-4372
Department of Airports Fax: (805) 388-4366

www.ventura.org/dirports

June 7, 2021

Aviation Advisory Commission
Oxnard Airport Authority

555 Airport Way, Suite B
Camarillo, CA 93010

Subject: Receive and File a Presentation from the Channel Islands
Neighborhood Council Regarding Noise Concerns Surrounding
Oxnard Airport

Recommendation:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority receive and file a presentation from the
Channel Islands Neighborhood Council regarding noise concerns surrounding Oxnard
Airport.

Discussion:

Over the past months neighborhood councils have been reaching out to various
stakeholders, including the Aviation Advisory Commission and the Airport Authorities, to
voice concerns over aircraft operations. The Channel Islands Neighborhood Council has
asked for the opportunity to address the advisory bodies regarding overflights and they
have prepared a presentation stating their concerns.

If you have any questions regarding this item, please call Dave Nafie at 388-4201, or me
at 388-4372.

fip Fron_

KIP TURNER, C.M.
Director of Airports

S5¢



555 Airport Way, Suite B

COUNTY %VENT“ RA Camaiillo, CA 93010

Phone: (805) 388-4372
Department of Airports Fax: (805) 388-4366

www.ventura.org/aqirports

June 7, 2021

Aviation Advisory Commission
Camarillo Airport Authority
Oxnard Airport Authority

555 Airport Way, Suite B
Camairillo, CA 93010

Subject: Approval of the Department of Airports’ Fiscal Year 2021-22 Rent and
Fee Schedule, Effective July 1, 2021; Adoption of a Resolution
Establishing Rents, Fees, and Insurance Requirements for the
Department of Airports; Delegation of Authority to the County
Executive Officer and the Director of Airports to Execute Leases,
Subleases, Licenses, Permits, Special Use/Activity Permits, Operation
Agreements, Extensions, Amendments, Consents, Termination
Notices, and Unlawful Detainer Complaints in Accordance with the
Provisions of the Schedule

Recommendations:

Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of
Supervisors (Board):

1. Approve the Department of Airports’ (“Department”) FY 2021-22 Rent and Fee
Schedule (Exhibit 1 is a clean version and Exhibit 2 is a legislative version with track
changes), with an effective date of July 1, 2021; and

2. Authorize the County Executive Officer and the Director of Airports to execute
certain leases, subleases, licenses, permits, special use/activity permits, operation
agreements, extensions, amendments, consents, termination notices, and unlawful

detainer complaints as described in section 11l of the attached resolution (pages 30-
37 of Exhibit 1); and

3. Approve, adopt, and execute the resolution (pages 30-37 of Exhibit 1) establishing
rents, fees, and insurance requirements for the Department.

Fiscal/Mandates Impact:

Mandatory: No

>d|



AAC/CAA/IOAA

FY 2021-22 Rent and Fee Schedule
June 7, 2021

Page 2

Source of funding: The rents and fees provide the primary source of funding for the
airport enterprise fund other than federal grants.

Funding match required: None

Impact on other departments: Several other departments are tenants at the airports and
subject to paying rent. The established rents are based upon building replacement
and/or fair market appraisals conducted by the Real Estate Services Division of the
Public Works Agency or by outside, independent appraisers.

Summary of Revenues and Costs FY 2021-22 Requested (Note B)
Revenue (see Note A): $ 7,534,700
Costs:
Direct (see Note A) 6,246,800
Indirect — County Cost Allocation Plan 483,300
Total Costs 6,730,100
Net Airports’ Revenue $ 804,600

Note A:  Revenue excludes investment income and grant revenue; cost excludes depreciation expense
and capital projects.
Note B:  Following fiscal year is not shown since the Rent and Fee Schedule is re-evaluated annually.

Discussion:

At the recommendation of the Auditor-Controller, the Department’s rents and fees are
reviewed annually for appropriate adjustment in accordance with those policies set forth
in that resolution establishing airports’ rents and fees.

The FY 2021-22 budget development process for the Department has been met with
some unprecedented challenges. Although the Department was scheduled to complete
a cost-recovery analysis and appraisal to determine fair market rental values as it does
every five years, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the still unknown financial impacts
the Department may experience, budgeted revenues and expenses have been
calibrated to reflect similar expectations as the previously adopted FY 2020-21 budget.

Accordingly, the Department proposes keeping the Rent and Fee Schedule the same as
the previously approved FY 2020-21 Rent and Fee Schedule with the exception of
several revisions as discussed below.

1. The Department proposes a new fee intended to recover the costs of providing a
corporate ramp for the use of itinerant and other commercial tenant businesses
operating at Camarillo or Oxnard Airports. Past practice of commercial operators
has included parking aircraft on a corporate ramp to accommodate overflow or
staging aircraft outside of hangars without having to provide compensation to the
Department. This practice has been done as an alternative to leasing sufficient

ramp area whereby this wouldn’t be necessary.



AAC/CAA/OAA

FY 2021-22 Rent and Fee Schedule
June 7, 2021

Page 3

2. The Department proposes an increased fee intended to cover staff time
associated with the administration of hangar lease enrollment and tenant initiated
changes to their agreements such as selling hangars, moving hangars,
terminating agreements, adding and changing tenant entities, and management
of the hangar wait list system.

3. Extends, for another fiscal year, an exemption from the 2% (of sales price) fee for
transfers of privately owned hangars by owners who convert from existing month-
to-month leases to the anticipated new term lease.

4. The Department is adding labor classifications and rates for staff that lead and
participate in CEQA projects where the Department is the lead agency on behalf
of a private third party development.

5. A convenient Summary Table of Fees has aiso been added and bound under the
cover.

The proposed Department of Airports’ Rent and Fee Schedule, to become effective July
1, 2021, is recommended for the Board’s approval and contains the adjustments noted
above.

If you have any questions regarding this item, please call Dave Nafie at 388-4201, or me
at 388-4372.

fip G

KIP TURNER, C.M.
Director of Airports

Attachments:

Exhibit 1 — FY 2021-22 Rent and Fee Schedule - Proposed Clean Version
Exhibit 2 - FY 2021-22 Rent and Fee Schedule - Proposed Track Changes Version

5d3



RENT AND FEE SCHEDULE

DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS

Rents and Fees Common to
Camarillo and Oxnard Airports

Effective July 1, 2021

EXHIBIT 1

Sdl



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS
RENT AND FEE SCHEDULE
INDEX
Page
Summary Table of Fees Follows Table of Contents
l. AIRCRAFT STORAGE 3
1. AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS 5
Il GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT 6
V. AIRPORT BUILDINGS/IMPROVEMENTS 7
V. AIRPORT LAND/GROUND AREAS 8
VI. AUTO PARKING 9
VIl.  AIRPORT PERMITS 10
VIIl.  MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES 13
IX. LEASE/LICENSE AGREEMENTS 156
X ACCESS TO AIRPORT FROM ADJACENT PRIVATE PROPERTY 17
XI. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 17
EXHIBIT "A" 18
Insurance Requirements
EXHIBIT "B" 29
Private Hangars-Ground Area
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 30

2 545



900

ST0

00

b2 72 RV RV

900

931eyd oN

v

00°€TT

A

2 has

6v'ST

0006 S

W

0050

¥9¢€'0 S

6€T°0 S

994 Buipue] x0T

00'6ET S

00¢0T S

281eyd oN

334 Buipueq o1 |enb3 / 00°'STS

00°0S

00001

00°'SL

a2 RV RV RV, 3

00°09

994 Suipueq 03 |enb3

>

0001

008 S

00°0ST S

T 28ed
wpH [an4 Auno) uj jan4 fo abpiols 4o - [DIUSY JuD ] [and

abomoy 10
wp4 |an4 Ajuno) fo asn 104 - 334 Aj1o04
uoypb paianyap 1ad abomoy [an4

a8es015/a8emo|4 [an4
(1D1213WW0)-UON) ST 00§ TT 43pun Hpiduty [|pws
234 asn Ajpq oaoary 4ip-ubyl-131ybi7
(spunod pupsnoy) 153103u 0] papunoy) MO.LIN S97000°T 48d 334 - si81410) 41y
MOLW S97000°T 43d 334 / 934 WNWIUIIA - S43141D) 41y

s934 Suipue

SNOILYYH3IdO LiVvddNIv

S5d'o

(31qp211ddp fi) Y1UON 13d - 3I1A13S J11133]3
6107 431y pa1anisuo)
610¢ 03 J01id pa}anJisuo)
Jea J3d ‘4S Jad - Juay JeSueH paumQ Aluno)
JedA J9d ‘4S 134 - SieSueH areald YU - JUdY punoun
( § 4q1yx3 0s|p 335 ) S47 008 ‘TT 4210 Ypodly 3biD7
ybnouyi-jind
piopUDIS
siseg YIUuo|Al 03 Iuop ‘adeds 194 - sumopal] pasea
Woioury bunybiy ail4 19013U0) /IUIWUIINOD
084 Ym paioijiffo 10N - Y21y 310A1id
$423d021[3H - U130 40 ADQ 434 334 - 35N MOLf1aA0 / 0Fd / |BI213UILIO)
SqJ 000’0 4910 - U01340d 40 ADQ 434 334 - asf) MOf1aAQ / OFH / [DI2I3WIo)
5q) 0000 - 0052 T U01310d 10 ADQ 13d 334 - asf) MOJf1aAQ / OFH / [DI243WU0)
SqJ 005 ‘2T 13pun -uoilod 40 ApQg 19d 924~ 3sf) MOI4aA0 / OFd / [DI2I13WLI0)
(uonuod Aue 10 say pz) asn Aeq - eaty dwey jJusisues)
S9700STT 4310 D104y 36407
auibuz N
auibug ajbuis
(dwey areiodio) uo 10N) WYBIUISAQ J3d - SUMOP-B1] Judisue.]
juawpedag Aq uonde Suissadoid asea) mau ydes o} saijddy - 934 uonessiuIWpY

994 JO JUdY

IDYVH) \_

¢C¢-1¢0C Ad

10T ‘T AInr aA0943

2202-1Z0Z 4834 [e3sld S99 @ JUIY }JO Aewwing

syioday jo Juawiedaq
JTNA3HOS 334 IN3Y 3|Npayas 934 1y - v Uqiyx3



7 98ed

JUDY WnwIulA 9se37 punoJsn YIuolAl 01 YIUOW
00°000°0Z S 1B3A 13 ‘@13Y 494 Sjudwadnoiduw| - (UOIIBIAY-UON pue UOIRIAY) 95E3T JO WD
pajenosau sy uay abojuadiad
9L8°0 S (uonbiny) saspal punolo
qE'1 S (uonoiny-uoN) saspa] punolo
Jea) J3d ‘4S 19d - (UOIBIAY-UON '8 UOIRIAY) JUSY pUnNOID)
SYI4V ANNOY¥D/ANV1 LHOdYIV
00°'0000C S dSv a21n13s 3jburs
00°000°0C S dSV 321A13S pajiw]
00°0000¢ S dSV 32inias ||nd
JBdA 19d ‘13y 13d siuawanoidwi - (uoneiay) asea Jo wia |
00°000°0¢C S 1B J3d ‘910Yy 13d sluswdnoiduwi| - (UoIeIAY-UON) 95897 JO W]
6,00 S dwpy
0S0 $ aaiffo
ov'o S doys
ov'o S ipbupH
YIUOW 13d ‘4S Jad - (uollelay) Juay
_ (estesddy Aq paysiqeis] L YIUO J3d ‘1S Jad - (uonelAy-UON) Juay
(paumQ-A1uno)) SINIWIAOYAINI/SONIATING LHOJHIV
+*ADUVHI LNOHLIM - 11VHIUIV LNJWNYIAOD
294 J0 JuUdYy _ A9YVHD

¢C-120C Ad

120Z ‘T Ainr aavay3

ZZ0Z-120T 483 [B3S14 S994 B 1U9Y jO >hmEE=m

spodaiy jo auswiedaq
I1NA3IHIS 334 LN 9INPayds 934 JU3Y - V UqIyx3

Sd



0079¢C

00008

00°000°€

00°00T‘T

V| |

00'8€v'C

00'T/8

00°00T

009¢t

|- |- N

00'6/8'T

00'9€E

|

00661

00'S

00'S¢

A2 h% 2

00°0¢

W

00°00T

00'8

008

00°'S

00't

V||| | W

9214

Abp 1ad pjoyaspat uo ANy

App 1ad Aydpibojoyd [D1213WUWI0D)

(mau/150) +1Z) Abp 13d Bujiuji4 3INON/1DIDISWILWIOD /AL /3iN1D3
(mai)/1s0) 0z-1) Abp Jad Buiwifi4 3INON/|DI2IBWIIOD /AL /31N1D3H

¢ 98ed

(Aviadoad paseat-uon uo) suwiad AydesSojoyd /w4 [eIa1awIwo)

|pnuuy

Alyauow

sADQ@ an1INdasuoy) [puUoIIPPY

sADQ an1IN23asuo) (puoIIPPY / Hwiad Ajiog

[B12J3WIWOY) UOIIBIAY-UON - 334 HWJdd

131an4-f1as ‘101an43su) ybij4 UapuUdapul AUDYIBIN BJIGOJA - 1UI3d [pDhUUY
SADQ@ anN23asuo) [pUOHIPPY
Hwuad Ajing

[e12J2WWOY) UOIIBIAY - 334 JWIdd
SHWIRd ANAROY [e1DJWIWO)
SL1IAY3d 1H0dHIVY

224 JUaWaoD|day NUIdd
3I0dS 134 ‘YIUOW 13d - SI3Y10 |IV
220dS 134 “YIUOW 3 - SID)-V/-1U3Y

Supjaed ywiad

Alyruonw

Ap@ jpuonippy yoo3
SYH vZ-ZT

SYH ZT-9

SYH 9-¥

SYH v-0

jo7 Aed Jeujwia] pieuxp
DNDIYVd O1NV

994 J0 JUdY

IDUVYHI

T20T ‘T AInr aA1pday3

C¢C-1¢0¢ Ad

2202-T20T 1edA |edstd
spodaly jo juawpnedaq

JTINA3IHIS 334 LNIY

S994 ' U3y Jo Alewwing

3|npayas 934 Y - ¥ UGIYX3

A
—
h



{ 98ed

00°0S S suoney) Sunjed
0091 S jJudwade|day pJe) 1507 - spJe) aren Ajandag
000t S M3 - spae) 31en AHINIAS
00°5¢ S asiey) yo3y) peg
HH/¥ZS 40 31ey AlINOH [enpy {284ey) oN SYH z 1s414) dwi] Heis - 994 3uiAdo) Juawndog
00 S 98ed 194 - 934 SuiAdo) jJusawndog
% sojes seSueH ajealld - asea] wia] Suol Joj a4 J9jsueld]
00°0S¢ S siosja1adns fo pipog Aq painiaxa sjuawinioq
00°0S S syJodury fo J0323.41q Aq painiaxa spuawnioq
994 3uissaroud Juswnioq
001$ 294 jesodsiq way| adie
00’6 S (uonoesueuy 1ad) 994 9d3uUdlUBAUO) JUBWARY 31U0IIID|T
SIDYVYHI SNOINVIIIISIN
SSOJD) JO 9%/ 1u3ay abbluadiad - uoiIDIddQ JOUl - UDINDISIY
Juay aseg winwiulp Juay aspg - uoiIpIad(Q Joulyy - WDINDISIY
paiel3o8au sy Juay abpluaniad - uonpiadQ J0[oyy - JUDINDISBY
paienosau sy Juay aspg - uonpiadQo ooy - JUDINDISIY
SSOJD) J[qeINqUNY %S°8 (pa4inbay asuaoyr] 31010das) s10) |DIUSY Jodiy-ffO
00'6V1 S |DNuUUY - 234 HWI3d 3|21Y3A AS334n0)
00'veT S (paiinbay |pnoiddy spiodity fo 1032341Q) AYIUOW - 934 UG 3[INYS/IXD ]
00'99%'T S [pnuuy - 334 HWiad 3[INYS/IXDL
s3dIYaA Asauno)/suonesadQ 3113nys pajnpayas/puels qed-ixel
_ 009 S _ INOH 13 - (|DI2IBWWIO)-UON) 3s) JoumQ Yooy
()oeY Ysepn) sealy o Jieday Yesduy
$1500) {9UU0SIad sn|d 934 asN [duuosiad suonesad awnJaAQ 10 enx3 Suninbay sasn |eads
padinbay JaAleAN 324 ANAndY Ajlunwwo) 1130.d-UON /UOIIBIAY JO UOIIOWOI 10§ HWISd as)
00°'8Et'T S 234 [pnuuy
00°00T S sAb@ an1zndasuo) [puoIpPY
00'9¢t S aa{ Aling
ANAndy qnip/Alunwiwio) Jo/pue ‘|enpialpu] ‘|BI2J3WWO)-UON - 394 HWIdd asf [e1dads
994 10 U9y _ IDUVHD _

T20C ‘T AN aA1109y)3

CC-120¢ A4

€20C-TT0T 1ed |edsiy
syuodaiy jo yuawedag

3INA3HDS 334 INTY 3|NPaYds 334 JUdY - ¥ UGIYXT

S994 ' JUdYy jo Alewwng

a4



G a8eq

_ pole1jo8ap sy _ J9PINOId 9IIAIDS [EIIINBUOIDY DIIAIDS [N
SININFITUOV ISNIDIT/ISVI

CCTTC S {s1221ff0 om|) suonpbiadp Syn jjpws
T9'90T S 1291fJO - s4a340p4 SUOIIDIAA0
867901 S 101USS - S13YJOAN 2UDUAIUIDWY
Z1°06 S pDa7 - S13X40A/, 3IUDUSIUIDIN
97’9, S Y231 bununoady ioiuas - SJuUDJY |pIapPa - Buljjtg DI
00'SET S 101043SIIUPY 5193[01d- SUDIS) (DI3pay - Bulljlg JuD1D
00'SLT S uonbiny fo 10p2311q - Ausby ppai vin3o/buniiwiad / mainay Juawdojanaqg 210AUd
00'0ST S 1039311 Aandaq - Ausby ppal YOI /Ouniuiad / MaInaY JULWHoanag 310ALd
00'SET S JognApsiunupy s3aafo.4 - Ausby poa] Y30 /Buiuiad / mainay Juawdofanag 210A1d
sajey AlInNoH J3Yy10

00'81T S ANOH JO UOILOJ JO JNOH J3d - 934 IIAISS Jadaamg poday
%01 (aouejeg predun jo) 934 aieq
00'¢t S Ae( 19d - 994 WOOY 3IUBIHUO) [[eWS
00°S8T S AeQ 13 - 994 w00y 3duUadI3jU0) 38ie

994 JO JuUdy IOHVHD —

¢T-1Z0T Ad 1202-T202 1eo% 951 $994 13 JU3dYy Jo AJewwing

suodJly jo Juawedag
T20T ‘T AInr aA11d9y3 FTNAIHIS 334 IN3Y 9|Npayds 224 U3y - v HqIyx3

Sa\0



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

l. AIRCRAFT STORAGE

No aircraft shall be allowed to remain as tenants in/on assigned aircraft storage space on
either Camarilio or Oxnard Airport without having first registered with the Director of
Airports, or his representative, and having obtained a valid permit, Lease Agreement, or
License Agreement as required and having paid the fees as set forth below:

Transient aircraft shall be charged fees as set forth below:
The following shall apply to all aircraft storage Lease and License Agreements:

Fee: All fee calculations listed under this section will be rounded to the nearest whole
dollar.

Late Fee: Storage Hangar Lease and License Fees are due and payable on or before
the first of each month and if not received by the 16th day a late charge of $15 shall be
added.

Security Deposit: Tenant shall provide County with and thereafter maintain a refundable
cash security deposit in an amount equal to one (1) month's rent in effect at the time of
initial license sign-up.

A Transient Tie-downs (overnight) 12,500 Ib. or less

1. Single Engine - $8/day
2. Multi Engine - $10/day
3. Aircraft over 12,500 Ib. refer to section C below

(Note: see Section Il. A. Landing Fees count as first night daily fee)
B. Tie-downs (month to month)

1. Push infout - $102/month
2. Taxi in/out - $139/month

C. Large Aircraft (over 12,500 Ib.)
Unless parked by a commercial operator, Tie-down/Monthly and Transient/Daily
Fees: Daily fee $1.44 per 1,000 Ibs. of Max. gross take-off weight. Monthly fee is
10 times the daily fee. Fees are rounded to the nearest whole dollar. The first 24-
hour period is included in landing fee. Statements will be sent to the aircraft
owner listed in FAA registry.

D. Transient Ramp Area — Commercial Day-Use and Overflow Parking Fee.
Commercial operators that park aircraft on a Transient Ramp Area that is owned
and managed by the Department of Airports (also known as “Corporate Ramp”)
will be billed to the commercial operator according to the following schedule.

sl



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

(piston aircraft should be parked on a tiedown leased or licensed to the operator.

1.

2.

3.

4.

NOTES:

Jets and Turboprops less than 12,500 pounds maximum gross take-off weight
- $25/day or any portion thereof.

Jets and Turboprops between 12,500 — 40,000 pounds maximum gross takeoff
weight - $50/day or any portion thereof.

Jets and Turboprops over 40,000 pounds maximum gross take-off weight -
$100/day or any portion thereof.

Helicopters - $50/day or any portion thereof.

a) Taxi in/out spaces limited to aircraft too heavy to manually
maneuver.

b) Light Aircraft (12,500 Ib. and under) with wingspans exceeding
normal tie-down dimensions must rent two or more spaces to
accommodate aircraft size.

D. Ground Rent - Private Hangars

1.

The rent for Privately owned hangars is based upon $0.139 per square foot
per month.

NOTES:

a) See Exhibit B for the areas of various hangars calculated from actual
measurements and rounded down to the next increment of 10 square
feet.

b) Privately owned hangars to which electrical service was installed at
no cost to County are exempt from the electrical service rate.

c) Hangars served with electricity through an independent meter, paid
by County, shall be charged an additional estimated $9 per month
electrical energy charge. The actual vs. estimated energy costs will
be evaluated annually and adjustments made accordingly.

d) Upon termination of the Lease Agreement for cause, Lessee shall be
placed on a daily rate equivalent to two times the monthly rate
divided by 30 and rounded to the next highest dollar.

E. County Owned Hangars (Examples of area - not all inclusive)

1.

The rent for County owned hangars built/installed prior to 2019 is based
upon $0.364 per square foot per month. The rent for County owned hangars
built/installed in or after 2019 is based upon $0.50 per square foot per
month.

pAC



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

NOTES:

a) Hangars served with electricity through an independent meter, paid
by County, shall be charged an additional estimated $9 per month
electrical energy charge. The actual vs. estimated energy costs will
be evaluated annually and adjustments made accordingly.

b) Upon termination of the Lease Agreement for cause, Lessee shall be
placed on a daily rate equivalent to two times the monthly rate
divided by 30 and rounded to the next highest dollar.

c) The following are examples of hangar areas — not all inclusive:

Inventory installed prior to 2019: Inventory installed in or after 2019:

1. Port-A-Port (800 S.F.) 1. Tee Hangars (1,130 S.F.)
2. Fixed T (1,000 S.F.) 2. Tee Hangars (1,310 S.F.)
3. Port-A-Port (1,050 S.F.) 3. Tee Hangars (1,280 S.F.)
4. NUNNO (1,100 S.F.) 4, Tee Hangars (1,550 S.F.)
5. NUNNO (1,400 S.F.) o Tee Hangars (2,800 S.F.)
6. Port-A-Port (1,500 S.F.)
7. Port-A-Port (2,000 S.F.)
8. Box (2,200 S.F.)

Il AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS

A Landing Fees

1. Air Carriers (scheduled commercial — non-based) and Air Taxis

(non-scheduled commercial — non-based) shall be charged a minimum
landing fee of $15.49 or $1.44 per 1,000 pounds of gross weight, rounded
to the nearest whole dollar, whichever is greater. The term "gross weight"
shall be the certified maximum gross takeoff weight specified by FAA for the
type of aircraft.

NOTE: Landing Fee includes first overnight parking fee.

2. Privately owned or leased aircraft (non-based), not used for hire or
compensation, shall be exempt from landing fees up to 12,500 pounds.
However, heavier aircraft shall be charged at the above rate.

3. Lighter-than-air Aircraft Use Fee. Lighter-than-air aircraft such as airships,
dirigibles, blimps and balloons shall be charged a daily use fee of $113. The
payment of this fee shall entitle the operator to a mooring location on a site
assigned by the airport, as well as parking for support vehicles. Prior

permission of the Director of Airports is required.



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

B. Fuel Flowage/Storage

1; Fuel Flowage - All vendors and Self-Fueling Operators who dispense avia-
tion fuel upon County Airports shall pay the County a Fuel Flowage Fee of
$0.06 per delivered gallon.

2. Facility Fee — (For use of County Fuel Farm Facilities) vendors and Self-
Fueling Operators who dispense aviation fuel upon County Airports shall
pay the County a Facility Fee of $0.02 per delivered gallon.

NOTE: Tenant will pay actual cost of utilities on a pro rata basis and will be billed

quarterly for those costs. An annual adjustment will be made at the end of
each year.

3. Oil Flowage - All vendors who dispense aviation oil upon County Airports
shall pay the County an Oil Flowage Fee of $0.15 per delivered gallon.

4. Fuel Tank Rental - Whenever County owned tanks are utilized to store fuel,
a Fuel Storage Fee of $0.046 per delivered gallon shall be paid to County.

NOTE: Flowage and Storage Fees are due with submission of Quarterly Fuel
Flowage Reports and are in addition to all other rents due.

a) Late fees of 10% are applicable to flowage and storage fees when not
paid by the thirtieth day following the end of each quarter.

b) Fuel/Petroleum Vendors and Self-Fueling Operators shall obtain and
maintain all permits and associated fees.

1 GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT

Airport facilities shall be made available to government aircraft (state or federal) without
charge except if the use by government aircraft is substantial. Substantial use shall be
considered to exist when during any calendar month:

A. Five (5) or more government aircraft are regularly based at the airport or on land
adjacent thereto; or

B. The total number of movements (counting each landing as a movement) of
government aircraft is 300 or more, or the gross accumulative weight of
government aircraft using the airport (the total movements of government aircraft
multiplied by gross weights of such aircraft) is in excess of five million pounds.

C. Government aircraft are based or use airport(s) in excess of any 90-day period.

This is in conformance with those assurances given under the Federal Airport Act or the
Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970.

6 CaiY



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

IV.  AIRPORT BUILDINGS/IMPROVEMENTS

A. Rent (Non-Aviation)

The lease rental rate for airport-owned non-aviation buildings and improvements
shall be based on the estimated value of the building replacement cost per square
foot with a ten percent (10%) return on investment or as otherwise approved by
the Board of Supervisors. The fair market rental rate for all airport owned buildings
and improvements shall be established by an appraisal by the Real Estate
Services Division. of the Public Works Agency or an outside, independent
appraiser. The appraisal and subsequent rental rates shall reflect whether or not
one or more utilities may be included. The rental rate shall also reflect if any other
services such as maintenance or janitorial are included.

B. Rent (Aviation)

The lease rental rate for airport-owned aviation buildings and improvements shall
be based on cost recovery, as compared to Fair Market Value.

Current rates per square ft. per month are:

Camarilio Oxnard
Hangar $0.40 $0.40
Shop $0.40 $0.40
Office $0.50 $0.50
Ramp $0.0794 $0.0794

C. Term of Lease (Minimum Qualifications) Non-Aviation

A capital investment of $20,000 per acre, per year of lease, may be required, as
approved by the Director of Airports, and such improvements shall be completed
within two years or less, or as negotiated in the Ilease.

D. Term of Lease (Minimum Qualifications) Aviation

1. Full Service ASP- A minimum capital investment of $20,000 per acre, per
year, is required, as approved by the Director of Airports. All agreed-upon
improvements shall be completed within the first two years or less, or as
approved by the Board of Supervisors.

2. Limited Service ASP- A capital investment of $20,000 per acre, per year,
is required, as approved by the Director of Airports, and all agreed-upon
improvements shall be completed within the first two years or less, or as
negotiated in the lease.

3. Single Service ASP- A capital investment of $20,000 per acre, per year,

5415




Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

is required, as approved by the Director of Airports, and such
improvements shall be completed within one year or less, or as negotiated
in the lease.

NOTES: Tenant shall maintain leased premises in as good or better condition, to
include:

Repainting at least once every 10 years
Maintain roof free of leaks
Maintain landscaping in clean and healthy condition (free of trash)

E. Leases up to Five Years Term may be executed by the Director of Airports.

V. AIRPORT LAND/GROUND AREAS

A. Rent (Non-Aviation and Aviation)

1. Ground Leases: (Oxnard and Camarillo) All Ground Leases are
subject to a minimum base rent and/or percentage rent, and Board
of Supervisors approval. All ground leases are subject to a 5-year
rent review and adjustment.

(NOTE: Formula Minimum Rent: 10% of the Fair Market Value and/or
appraised value of land per annum or as otherwise approved by
Board of Supervisors. Land to be reappraised yearly and Rental
Value to be adjusted per Lease language, but not less than every 5
years.)

a) Non-Aviation Land Rent Rate is $1.35 per square ft. per year
based on 10% ROl using March 21, 2019 appraisal stating
land value at $13.50 per square foot.

b) Aviation Land Rent Rate is $0.8750 per square ft. per year
based on Non-Aviation Land rate and discounted 35% due to
use being restricted to aviation only.

Percentage Rent: Applicable Rate of all gross receipts from Tenants
subject to percentage.

2. "Month to Month" Ground Lease: All Month to Month (no options)
Ground Leases are subject to formula minimum base rent or
negotiated rent, whichever is greater, and may be executed by the
Director of Airports. All month-to-month ground leases are subject
to annual review and adjustment.

(NOTE: Formula Minimum Rent: 10% of the Fair Market VValue and/or
appraised value of land per annum or as otherwise approved by

Sdlb

8



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

Board of Supervisors. Land to be appraised and Rental Value
adjusted periodically with Director of Airports' discretion).
NOTES:

a) All improvements constructed by the Tenant on the Airport shall, at
the option of the County, be removed and the ground area returned
as nearly as practicable to its original condition or may be vested with
the County upon termination of the Lease.

b) Tenant shall maintain leased premises in as good or better condition,
to include:

Repainting at least once every 10 years (or as needed)
Maintain roof free of leaks
Maintain landscaping in clean and healthy condition (free of trash).

c) Agricultural leases are handled as special situations and are
exempted from the foregoing guidelines and minimums. Rents shall
be established by market comparisons as determined by the Director
of Airports.

d) Not-for-profit aviation museums are handled as special situations
and are exempted from the foregoing formula minimum rent
requirements. Land rent shall be as negotiated with the Director of
Airports and approved by the Board of Supervisors.

B. Term of Lease (Non-Aviation and Aviation)

1. Ground Leases: One (1) year or more leases. In order to secure a
long-term ground lease beyond one (1) year, lessee shall invest
$20,000 per acre, per year, as approved by the Director of Airports.
All agreed-upon improvements shall be completed within the first
year or less, or as approved by the Board of Supervisors. All
improvements (excluding fueling apparatus) shall transfer to County
at end of 20th year, regardless of term, or as negotiated with Airport
Director and approved by the Board of Supervisors.

2. "Month to Month" Ground Leases: Renewable until terminated (no
options to extend).

C. Leases up to Five Years Term may be executed by the Director of Airports

VI,  AUTO PARKING

A. Terminal Area Parking (Oxnard Terminal Building)

5417



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

(Note:

VII.

0-4 hours free

4-6 hours $4

6-12 hours $5

12-24 hours $8

Each additional 24 hours $8/day

$100.00 monthly rates available)

Permit Parking (Excludes Oxnard Airport Terminal Parking)

1. Rent-a-Car Company - $20/month/space
2. Ali others - $25/month/space
3. Permit replacement fee - $5

AIRPORT PERMITS

Commercial Activity Permits

No person or business entity other than current lessee or licensee shall sell or
publicly solicit the sale of merchandise, conduct or operate a business or service
for hire or compensation, or advertise or solicit business or utilize airport land area
upon property under the jurisdiction of the Department of Airports unless a permit
is first obtained from the Director of Airports. The permit holder will perform
permitted activities only in those areas designated on the permit.

To qualify for a Commercial Activity Permit, the following is required:

1. Permit Fee, Aviation Commercial uses/activities and aircraft/auto mobile
detailing

a) Daily Permit $199; ea. additional consecutive day $35
b) Annual Permit

1. Mobile Mechanic $1,879

2. Independent Flight Instructor $1,879

3. Self-Fueler $1,879

2. Permit Fee, Non-Aviation Commercial uses/activities

a) Daily Permit $436; ea. additional consecutive day $100 (up to 3 days)
b) Monthly Permit $871
c) Annual Permit $2,438

3. A Certificate of Insurance naming the County of Ventura and/or Department
of Airports as Additional Insured with coverage as specified in Exhibit "A."
4, A $20 fee will be collected on all first issue gate access cards. Broken,
damaged, or lost cards will be replaced for a fee of $16 each card.
5. Evidence of the applicable City business license.
10

Sd\%



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

NOTE: Permit does not allow Permittee to enter upon lessee's premises without
approval of lessee. Commercial activity permit fees may be adjusted at the
discretion of the Director of Airports if deemed necessary for the provision
of services. One-Year Permit is subject to 30-day termination.

B. Commercial Film/Photography Permits

No person or business entity shall conduct any commercial filming, photography
or demonstrations upon County airports without first obtaining a permit from the
Director of Airports.

To qualify for a Commercial Film/Photography Permit, the following is required:
1. Permit Fee
a) Feature/TV/Commercial/Movie Filming $1,100/day
(includes location and basecamp 1-20 cast/crew)
b) Feature/TV/Commercial/Movie Filming $3,000/day
(includes location and basecamp 21+ cast/crew)
c) Commercial Photography $800/day

2. Certificate of Insurance naming the County of Ventura as Additional Insured
with coverage as specified in Exhibit "A."

3: Security/clean up deposit equal to the per-day fee may be required if
determined by the Director of Airports to be justified by the planned activity.

NOTES:

a) The above fees apply to all or part of a facility under the jurisdiction of the
Department of Airports.

b) Maximum permit term is seven (7) days including setup and disassembly time,
without advance approval of the Director of Airports.

c) Activity on leased property still requires a County permit, however, County
charge for such Permit shall be limited to $262 per day.

C. Special Use (Non-commercial) Activity Permit

No person or entity shall conduct a non-commercial, individual and/or
community/club activity upon County airports without first obtaining a permit from
the Director of Airports.

To qualify for a Special Use Permit, the following is required:

11

ik



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

1. Permit Fee

a) Daily fee $436; ea. additional consecutive day $100
b) Annual fee $2,438

2. Certificate of Insurance naming the County of Ventura as Additional Insured
with coverage as specified in Exhibit “A” if determined by the Director of
Airports to be justified by the planned activity. Any event involving alcohol,
if approved, will require insurance and appropriate alcohol license from the
Alcohol Beverage Control.

3 Security/cleanup deposit equal to the per day fee, if determined by the
Director of Airports to be justified by the planned activity.

D. Use of Airport for Promotion of Aviation and/or a Non-Profit/Community Activity

Aviation related and/or community oriented one-time events considered to be of
public interest, non-profit, and/or having a value to the aviation community, may
request in writing a waiver of fees, which may be approved at the discretion of the
Director of Airports. Examples: National Aviation Day, special Aircraft fly-ins, and
special aviation group activities.

E. Special Uses Requiring Extra or Overtime Personnel

Special uses requiring extra County personnel shall be charged, in addition to use
fee, an hourly rate for personnel for each hour or portion thereof required (two (2)
hours minimum for Airport Operations Officers).

F. Aircraft Repair Work Areas

The use of aircraft repair work areas is limited to aircraft owners, notwithstanding
commercial activity provided for herein.

Fee: $6.00 for each four (4) hour block of time or portion thereof.

G. Taxi-Cab Stand/Scheduled Shuttle Operations/Courtesy Vehicles

Taxicabs, scheduled shuttles and courtesy vehicles may enter airport property
without charge for the purpose of dropping off passengers. However, no taxicab,
scheduled shuttle or courtesy vehicle shall be allowed to pick up or await
passengers or to remain in the designated taxi stand or shuttle area without first
having obtained a permit.

The following is required for a permit:

1. Taxi/Shuttle Permit Fee $1,466 per year; (at discretion of Director, may be

payable $134 per month in advance).

12



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

2. Courtesy Vehicle Permit Fee (Hotel/Motel vehicle to which no fee for service is
charged to the customer) $149 per year each company.

3. Certificate of Insurance naming the County of Ventura as Additional Insured,
with coverage as specified in Exhibit "A."

4. Evidence of the applicable City Business License.

VII.  MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES

A. Document Processing Fee

A fee shall be paid to County in advance for "Tenant-initiated" and/or public
requested drafting and/or processing each Amendment, Assignment,
Concurrence, Change of Ownership, Approval of Sublease, Extension of Terms,
Option to Lease, or other modifications of month-to-month or long-term leases or
research of public documents. This processing fee shall be deemed earned by
County when paid and shall not be refundable. Fee is construed as reimbursement
of administrative costs pursuant to transaction or research. (County or mutually
initiated documents are exempted.)

1. Documents executed by Director of Airports $50.
2. Documents executed by Board of Supervisors $250.

B. Transfer Fee for Long Term Lease (Term exceeding 1 year)

2% of sales price, based on appraisal and/or purchase agreement. Term ground
leases for privately owned aircraft storage hangars that were previously month-
to-month leases, signed on or between July 1, 2021, and June 30, 2022, are
exempt from this fee.

C. Document Copying Fee

A fee of $0.035 per page shall be charged for reproducing all documents not
associated with the conduct of routine airport business. There will be no staff time
charged for the first two hours of retrieval and copying time. For the third hour and
longer, the charge will be the lower of: (1) the actual hourly rate of the employee(s)
doing the retrieval and copying; or (2) $24.00 per hour.

D. Bad Check Charge

A "bad check" charge of $25 will be added to that amount owed for all checks
returned for insufficient funds or any other reason.

E. Security Gate Cards

Parking and security gate cards for entrance to parking and general aviation areas
(hangar and tie-down) will be issued by the Director of Airports to authorized

Sda\

13



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

persons. A $20 fee will be collected on all first issue cards. Broken, damaged, or
lost cards will be replaced for a fee of $16 each card.

F. Parking Citations

Civil penalty citations issued for vehicular parking violations under Ventura County
Ordinance Codes 6508-21 and 6508-22 are set at $50 per violation.

G. Conference Room Fee (subject to waiver for public interest/aviation safety

events)

Large Room $185/day
Small Room $42/day

H. Late Fee

10% of unpaid balance (not compounded) on all leases, and licenses, including
percentage rents and fees. Tiedowns/hangars refer to Section I.

l. Airport Sweeper Service Fee

$118/hour (or partial hour) for use of airport sweeper on airport. Fee includes
airport personnel as sweeper operator.

J. Other Hourly Rates

Project Permitting and Plan Reviews; Dept. of Airports as CEQA Lead Agency
Projects Administrator $135/hour
Deputy Director $150/hour
Director of Airports $175/hour

Grant Billing — Federal Grants

Projects Administrator $135/hour
Senior Accounting Tech $76.26/hour

Maintenance Workers
Maintenance Supervisor $117.25/hour
Senior Maintenance Worker $90.12/hour
Lead Maintenance Worker $106.98/hour

Operations Workers

Operations Officer $105.61/hour

14

5423



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

Small UAS Operations (two Officers) $211.22/hour

K. Administration Fee

A charge of $150 for each new lease processing action including but not limited to
the following examples: a new lease sign up, change of hangar, sale of private
hangar, refund of waitlist deposits if before notice of removal.

IX. LEASE/LICENSE AGREEMENTS

A Types of Tenancy/Use

1. Full-Service Aeronautical Service Provider (ASP): An operator that provides
a full range of aviation services as identified in the lease agreement.

2. Limited Service Aeronautical Service Provider (ASP): Specialized aircraft
business and services, excluding fueling services, as identified in the lease
agreement.

3. Specialty Aviation Operations: (Single-Service ASP), Air taxi, charter,
(non-scheduled) air carrier, aircraft sales, aircraft leasing, and non-profit
flying clubs and flight schools.

4, Industrial or Non-Aviation Business: Business of a type whose operations
are not dependent on runway access or airport orientation.

5. Land Leases: Tenant constructs a building or makes improvements on
County owned land.

NOTE: Refer to Minimum Aeronautical Standards for commercial leases.
B. Improved Areas - Hangar, Office, Shop, Tie-downs, etc.

1. Base Rent Leases - No Percentage
Base rents are established by Fair Market Value comparisons.

2. Percentage Rent Leases
All percentage rent leases, as determined by the Director of Airports, are
subject to a fixed minimum rent based on the square footage of the
premises (hangar, shop, and office space) and/or a predetermined
percentage of the gross receipts for various uses.

3. Tie-Down Spaces - Full Service and Limited ASP

15

S5da3



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

Tie-down spaces may be assigned to the ASP in their respective leases
based upon the following criteria only:

a) One tie-down space may be assigned to the Full Service or Limited
ASP upon a demonstrated need for each 2,000-sq. ft. of hangar,
office, and shop space leased. (A demonstrated need would be a
flight school with a number of owned or leased aircraft; such
tie-downs shall not be rented month to month.)

b) Additional Tie-down spaces requested by the ASP may be obtained
through execution of a tie-down License Agreement and the payment
of fees as shown in Section |, B and will be considered as additional
rent.

4. Options

All rents and fees for option tenancy shall be adjusted to reflect the rate as set forth
in the Board-approved Rent and Fee Schedule that is in effect on the date that the

option becomes effective, or at the end of every fifth year of term, or as specified
in lease.

C. Terminal Areas - Building and Parking (Oxnard)

Air Carrier

Air Taxi and Air Charter (Non-scheduled)
Auto Rental (Rent-a-Car)

Travel Agency

Lobby Concessionaire or Licensee

aghRWN =

a) Term: Up to 5 years

b) Minimum Rents: Established at Fair Market Value based on
comparisons.

C) Percentage Rents: Amount by which specified percentage rent
exceeds minimum for counter, office, and cargo area (and fee for
parking spaces if included in lease agreement).

NOTES:

1) In addition to space rental, auto rental tenants shall pay quarterly 10% of gross
receipts. Assigned parking shall be at $20/month per space (5 spaces
minimum).

2) Travel Agency tenants shall pay $100 minimum or more per month vs. 1/2%
on first $250,000 gross sales and 1% over.

16

543l



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

XI.

Off-Airport Auto Rental (Rent-A-Car)

Shall report and pay 8.5% of gross receipts attributed to airport pick-ups and
execute a license and use agreement with the County.

Restaurant

1. Major operation — Base and/or percentage rent as prescribed in lease
contract with Board of Supervisors approval. (Longer than 5-year lease.)

2. Minor operation — Minimum base rent and/or 7% gross receipts. -
(5 years or less.)

ACCESS TO AIRPORT FROM ADJACENT PRIVATE PROPERTY

A. All requests for company/private aircraft oriented uses shall be considered
as a special situation and must be approved on an individual basis by the
Director of Airports.

B. Authorization for access to the Airports will be given on County's License
Agreement format.

C. The applicant for access to the Airport shall be required to pay for all
improvements on Airports’' property that are necessary and prerequisite, in
the opinion of the Director of Airports, to accommodate the applicant's
access needs. If Licensee is not required by County to remove all such
improvements and restore the property to its original condition, the
improvements shall become the property of the County.

D. Minimum rents and percentages for access may be negotiated based on
type and intensity of airport use.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR AIRPORT LESSEES, LICENSEES AND

PERMITTEES

See Exhibit "A" attached.

17

SAxS



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

EXHIBIT "A"

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR AIRPORTS
LESSEES, LICENSEES AND PERMITTEES

l. LESSEES

These are prescribed minimum limits; however, good business indicates that higher limits
should be used for most businesses. In any given year, all lessees, licensees, and
permittees shall maintain, or increase to maintain, the minimum insurance requirements
as stipulated in the then current year Board-approved Rent and Fee Schedule. (Minimum
insurance limits are subject to possible adjustment annually). Current year refers to the
present County fiscal year and not the year a lease was signed.

A Aeronautical Service Providers: Tenant offers full range of ASP services, as

defined in the Minimum Aeronautical Standards.

1.

Commercial General Liability: “Occurrence” coverage in the minimum
amount of $2,000,000 combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury & property
damage each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate, including personal
injury, broad form property damage, products/ completed operations, broad
form blanket contractual and $100,000 fire legal liability.

Aircraft and Airport Operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations: Combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $2,000,000 each occurrence.

Hangar Keepers Liability: $100,000 per aircraft, but not less than the
replacement value of all aircraft in the care, custody and control of tenant.

Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence. Exception: fuel trucks (see below).

Fuel Truck: $1,000,000 per vehicle.

Workers’ Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California

statutory requirements, for all employees of Tenant and Employer's Liability in
the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and Department
of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured endorsement and a
certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day cancellation notice. The
County of Ventura must be informed immediately if the general aggregate of
insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must be purchased to meet the

above requirements.

18



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Tenant is a sole proprietor with no
employees, volunteers or family members working in the business. Proof of
Personal Medical Insurance will be required instead.

B. Air Carriers:

1. Commercial General Liability: “Occurrence” coverage in the minimum
amount of $50,000,000 combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury & property
damage each occurrence and $50,000,000 aggregate, including personal
injury, broad form property damage, products/ completed operations, broad
form blanket contractual and $100,000 fire legal liability.

2. Aircraft and Airport Operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations: Combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $50,000,000.

3. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $1,000,000 for each
occurrence.

4, Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California
statutory requirements, for all employees of Tenant and Employer's Liability
in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

D The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. The County must be informed immediately if the general
aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must be
purchased to meet the above requirements.

C. Specialty Aviation Operations: Includes air taxi/charter (Part 135), aircraft leasing,
and any aircraft operating under a Special Airworthiness Certificate.

1. Commercial General Liability: “Occurrence” coverage in the minimum
amount of $2,000,000 combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury & property
damage each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate, including personal
injury, broad form property damage, products/ completed operations, broad
form blanket contractual and $100,000 fire legal liability.

2. Aircraft and Airport Operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations: Combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $2,000,000 each occurrence.

3. Hangar Keepers Liability: $100,000 per aircraft, but not less than the replacement

5dan

19



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

value of all aircraft in the care, custody and control of tenant.
4. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos, scheduled
autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $500,000 for each occurrence.

5. Workers’ Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California statutory
requirements, for all employees of Tenant and Employer’s Liability in the minimum
amount of $1,000,000.

6. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and Department of
Airports as additional insured. An additional insured endorsement and a certificate
of insurance must be provided with a 30-day cancellation notice. The County must
be informed immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above requirements.

NOTE:
a) The WC requirement is waived only if the Tenant is a sole proprietor with no
employees, volunteers or family members working in the business. Proof of
personal medical insurance will be required instead.

b) Only paragraphs 1, 2, and 6 above would apply to an experimental aircraft
operating under a Special Airworthiness Certificate.

D. Flying Clubs: (As defined in the Minimum Aeronautical Standards)

1. Commercial General Liability, including contractual, products and
completed operations and owner's and contractors' protective: Combined
single limits for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 each
occurrence.

2. Aircraft and Airport Operations, including passengers. products and
completed operations: Combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $1,000,000 each occurrence.

3. Owned and Non-Owned Auto Liability: (if applicable) Limits of $500,000 for
each occurrence.

4, Hangar Keepers Liability: (if applicable) $100,000 per aircraft, but not less
than the replacement value of all aircraft in the care, custody and control of
tenant.

5. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. The County must be informed immediately if the
general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must

be purchased to meet the above requirements.

20



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

E. Industrial and Non-Aviation Business:

1. Commercial General Liability: “Occurrence” coverage in the minimum
amount of $2,000,000 combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury & property
damage each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate, including personal
injury, broad form property damage, products/ completed operations, broad
form blanket contractual and $100,000 fire legal liability.

2. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence.

3. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California

statutory requirements, for all employees of Tenant and Employer’s Liability
in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

4. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. The County must be informed immediately if the
general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must
be purchased to meet the above requirements.

o' If Lessee is self-insured for any or all of the required insurance coverage's,
Lessee agrees to provide Lessor with written confirmation that Lessee is a
duly authorized and funded self-insured entity for those coverage’s under
the laws of the State of California. Lessor agrees to accept Lessees status
as a self-insured entity as satisfactory compliance with Lessor's normal
insurance requirements as listed above.

Any insurance limits required that exceed the Lessees self-insured
coverage shall be in compliance with the insurance requirements listed
above. In the event Lessee decides to no longer be self-insured, Lessee
agrees to provide Lessor with thirty (30) days advance written notice of the
effective date of this change in status. Thereafter, Lessee agrees to provide
Lessor with appropriate evidence of insurance coverage(s) as listed above.

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Tenant is a sole proprietor with
no employees, volunteers or family members working in the business.
Proof of Personal Medical Insurance will be required instead.

Il. LESSEES AND LICENSEES (Includes all based aircraft, as well as ultra-lights,
occupying tiedowns, County and/or private hangars)

A. Aircraft Liability: Bodily injury including occupants and property damage

544

21



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

liability, $100,000 each person, $100,000 property damage, $500,000
each accident. Seats may be excluded.

B. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. For aircraft, which are out of License, not airworthy, a
signed statement to that fact with a promise to obtain the required
insurance before operating said aircraft shall be filed in lieu of the
certificate. The County of Ventura Department of Airports must be
informed immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded
and additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

. PERMITTEES

A. Commercial Activity Permit - Non-Aircraft:

1. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and
completed operations and owners' and contractors' protective:
Combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$2,000,000 to $5,000,000 each occurrence, depending upon the
type of activity proposed.

2. Owned and Non-owned Auto Liability: Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence.

3. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California statutory requirements, for all employees of Permittee and
Employer’s Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

4. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a
30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Permittee is a sole
proprietor with no employees, volunteers or family members working
in the business. Proof of Personal Medical Insurance will be required

instead.
B. Commercial Activities Permit - Aircraft:
1. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and

22

5430



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

completed operations and owners' and contractors' protective:
Combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$2,000,000 each occurrence.

2. Aircraft and airport operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations or Premises Liability (whichever is deemed

appropriate by the County): Combined single limit for bodily injury
and property damage $1,000,000 each occurrence.

3. Owned and Non-owned Auto Liability: Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence.

4. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California statutory requirements, for all employees of Permittee and
Employer's Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

5; The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a
30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Permittee is a sole
proprietor with no employees, volunteers or family members working
in the business. Proof of Personal Medical Insurance will be required

instead.
C. Commercial Activities Permit ~ Aircraft Mobile Mechanics:
1. Commercial General Liability: Combined single limits for bodily injury

and property damage of $1,000,000 each occurrence.

2. Products Liability and Completed Operations Coverage: Combined
single limit liability coverage $500,000 each occurrence.

81 Hangar Keepers Legal Liability, ground coverage, including taxi
coverage: $100,000 each aircraft, $100,000 each occurrence.

4. Owned and Non-owned Auto Liability: Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence.

5. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California statutory requirements, for all employees of Permittee and
Employer’s Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

543\

23



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

6. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a
30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Permittee is a sole
proprietor with no employees, volunteers or family members working
in the business. Proof of Personal Medical Insurance will be required
instead.

D. Special Use Permits:

1. Movie and Commercial Filming:

a. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products
and completed operations and owners' and contractors'
protective: Combined single limits for bodily injury and
property damage, $2,000,000 to $5,000,000 or higher each
occurrence, depending upon the type of activity proposed.

b. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos,
non-owned autos, scheduled autos and uninsured motorists.
Limits of $2,000,000 to $5,000,000 for each occurrence,
depending upon the type of activity proposed.

C. Indemnification and Hold Harmless Clause - All activities:
Each permit/license/lease shall contain a clause requiring that
all activities and/or work set forth within the agreement shall
be at the risk of the permittee/licensee/lessee alone.
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant must agree to defend (at
County’s request), indemnify and save harmless the
Department of Airports and the County of Ventura, its boards,
agencies, departments, officers, employees, agents and
volunteers (hereinafter referred to as County), from and
against any and all claims, lawsuits ~ whether against
Permittee, County or others, judgments, debts, demands and
liability, including, without limitation, those arising from injuries
or death of persons and/or for damages to property, arising
directly or indirectly out of Tenant's use or occupancy of the
Leased Premises or out of operations conducted or
subsidized in whole or in part by Permittee.

24

Sd3



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

d. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance
with California statutory requirements, for all employees of
Permittee and Employer’s Liability in the minimum amount of
$1,000,000.

e. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura
and Department of Airports as additional insured. An
additional insured endorsement and a certificate of insurance
must be provided with a 30-day cancellation notice. The
County must be informed immediately if the general
aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage
must be purchased to meet the above requirements.

2. Commercial Photography:

a. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products
and completed operations and owners' and contractors'
protective: Combined single limits for bodily injury and
property damage, $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 or higher each
occurrence, depending upon the type of activity proposed.

b. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos,
non-owned autos, scheduled autos and uninsured motorists.
Limits of $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 for each occurrence,
depending upon the type of activity proposed.

(o3 Indemnification and Hold Harmless Clause - All activities:
Each permit/license/lease shall contain a clause requiring that
all activities and/or work set forth within the agreement shall
be at the risk of the permittee/licensee/lessee alone.
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant must agree to defend (at
County’'s request), indemnify and save harmless the
Department of Airports and the County of Ventura, its boards,
agencies, departments, officers, employees, agents and
volunteers (hereinafter referred to as County), from and
against any and all claims, lawsuits — whether against
Permittee, County or others, judgments, debts, demands and
liability, including, without limitation, those arising from injuries
or death of persons and/or for damages to property, arising
directly or indirectly out of Tenant's use or occupancy of the
Leased Premises or out of operations conducted or
subsidized in whole or in part by Permittee.

d. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance
with California statutory requirements, for all employees of
Permittee and Employer’s Liability in the minimum amount of

5433

25



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

$1,000,000.

e. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura
and Department of Airports as additional insured. An
additional insured endorsement and a certificate of insurance
must be provided with a 30-day cancellation notice. The
County must be informed immediately if the general
aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage
must be purchased to meet the above requirements.

3. Permitted Public Events/Non-Air Shows:

a. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and
completed operations and owners' and contractors' protective:
Combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$1,000,000 to $2,000,000 or higher each occurrence, depending
upon the type of activity proposed.

b. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $500,000 for
each occurrence.

C. Indemnification and Hold Harmless Clause - All activities: Each
permit/license/lease shall contain a clause requiring that all activities
and/or work set forth within the agreement shall be at the risk of the
permittee/licensee/lessee alone. Permittee/Licensee/lLessee/Tenant
must agree to defend (at County’s request), indemnify and save
harmless the Department of Airports and the County of Ventura, its
boards, agencies, departments, officers, employees, agents and
volunteers (hereinafter referred to as COUNTY), from and against
any and all claims, lawsuits -~ whether against
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant, COUNTY or others, judgments,
debts, demands and liability, including, without limitation, those
arising from injuries or death of persons and/or for damages to
property, arising directly or indirectly out of Tenant's use or
occupancy of the Leased Premises or out of operations conducted
or subsidized in whole or in part by
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant.

d. Workers’ Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California  statutory requirements, for all employees of
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant and Employer's Liability in the
minimum amount of $1,000,000.

e. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a

543U

26



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

4, Permitted Aeronautical Events: (Air shows, fly-ins, air meets, contests or
exhibitions).
a. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and

completed operations _and owners' and contractors' protective:
Combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$2,000,000 to $5,000,000 each occurrence.

b. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned
autos, scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of
$1,000,000 for each occurrence

C. Indemnification and Hold Harmless Clause - All activities: Each
permit/license/lease shall contain a clause requiring that all activities
and/or work set forth within the agreement shall be at the risk of the
permittee/licensee/ lessee alone.
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant must agree to defend (at
County’s request), indemnify and save harmless the Department of
Airports and the County of Ventura, its boards, agencies,
departments, officers, employees, agents and volunteers
(hereinafter referred to as COUNTY), from and against any and all
claims, lawsuits - whether against
Permittee/Licensee/lL.essee/Tenant, COUNTY or others, judgments,
debts, demands and liability, including, without limitation, those
arising from injuries or death of persons and/or for damages to
property, arising directly or indirectly out of
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant's use or occupancy of the
Leased Premises or out of operations conducted or subsidized in
whole or in part by Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant.

d. Workers'" Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California  statutory requirements, for all employees of
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant and Employer's Liability in the
minimum amount of $1,000,000.

e. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a
30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above

5435

27



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

requirements.

i In addition to obtaining the above required insurance, the sponsor
shall pay the additional premium charged to the Department of
Airports by their insurance carrier, if any.

NOTE: Limits for specific events may be negotiated with the insurance
carrier on a case-by-case basis. Requests for such consideration
must be submitted to the Director of Airports for referral to Risk
Management.

IV.  CONTRACTORS

A. Airport Contractors:

1. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and
completed operations and owners' and contractors' protective: Combined
single limits for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence
shall be as prescribed by County of Ventura Risk Management/ Board of
Supervisors.

2. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $1,000,000 for each
occurrence, but Public Works insurance segment may increase limits.

&P Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California
statutory requirements, for all employees of Contractor and Employer's
Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

4, The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. The County must be informed immediately if the
general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must
be purchased to meet the above requirements.

The foregoing insurance requirements of Exhibit “A” may be amended for special
circumstances as approved by County Risk Manager.

28

S426



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

EXHIBIT “B”
PRIVATE HANGARS - GROUND AREA
The hangars listed below are identified by general brand name/type and by square

footage. The square footage was obtained by actual measurement (outside) and rounded
down to the next increment of 10 sq. ft. to allow for minor irregularities:

BRAND NAME/TYPE SQUARE FOOTAGE
Port-A-Port Standard 800
Port-A-Port Expando/Executive 850
Fixed T, Port-A-Port Double Expando, and Fleetwood 1,000
Port-A-Port Executive | ' 1,050
H & F Box 1,250
Fleetwood Rectangular and Port-A-Port Executive 1,350
Port-A-Port Large T 1,400
Port-A-Port, Nunno, Craftsman Rectangular 1,500
Fleetwood Box 1,800
H & F, Pasco Box, Straun 2,000
H&F 2,250
Port-A-Port 2,250
Waffle Crete 2,750
Port-A-Port Box 2,900
Port-A-Port Box 3,000
Waffle Crete 4,740

Hangars not falling within categories identified above will pay rents calculated at the rate
listed in Section |, D. and will be rounded down to next increment of 10 sq. ft.

5037

29



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ESTABLISHING RENTS, FEES, AND INSURANCE
REQUIREMENTS FOR THE COUNTY,
DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS, AND DELEGATING
AUTHORITY FOR EXECUTION OF CERTAIN
AGREEMENTS SUBJECT TO SPECIFIED GUIDELINES

THE VENTURA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS HEREBY ORDERS AND
RESOLVES THE FOLLOWING:

l. RENTS, FEES, AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The Rents, Fees, and Insurance Requirements prescribed in the attached
Schedule are hereby approved and adopted, and all prior inconsistent schedules
are repealed.

Il. POLICY FOR ESTABLISHING RENTS, RATES AND FEES

The Rent and Fee Schedules embrace a myriad of facilities and services which
require different adjustment emphasis for establishing fair market rents or
appropriate fees. In the event that there is a disagreement between the County
and a Tenant or Vendor regarding the imposition of rents and fees under this Rent
and Fee Schedule, the parties may, but are not required to, submit to either binding
arbitration or non-binding mediation. All Department of Airports' properties,
facilities, and services have been placed into five categories for the purpose of
defining rent and fee setting policies which have been historically used. They are
outlined as follows:

Policy 1:

It shall be County policy that those properties and/or facilities unrelated to the
fundamental "public services" afforded by the Oxnard and Camarillo Airports shall
be appraised for fair market rental values including percentage rents, with
adjustment emphasis on comparative data from the private sector. This approach
will produce a fair return to the County. Examples: industrial/office buildings,
proposed industrial park, agriculture land leases.

NOTE: Excess revenues derived from leases identified above shall not be
used to subsidize user rents and fees related to specific facilities and
services (aircraft tiedowns and storage hangars), but may be used
for financial support of planned capital improvement projects, and
those public-use facilities and services (airfield, visitor parking,
common roads, etc.) for which a total recapture of costs is
recognized to be unrealistic.

30

503%



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

Policy 2:

It shall be County policy that those properties and/or facilities directly related to the
public services afforded by the Department of Airports but operated, however, by

lessees or concessionaires, shall be appraised for fair market value including
percentage rents with adjustment emphasis on comparable data from other
publicly controlled facilities operated by lessees or concessionaires. It is the
intention of the County to have a policy whereby properties and/or facilities
controlled by the Department of Airports, not being used by the County for public
services, will be leased or licensed. The rental charges or fees will be based upon
the then fair market value, taking into consideration comparable properties owned
by other public entities. This approach will aiso provide a fair return or profit to the
County. Examples of such leases/licenses: scheduled air carrier agreements (for
terminal space), rental car agencies and restaurants.

Policy 2a:

It shall be County policy to recover all costs of any infrastructure required to
develop a Lease parcel from the benefited Lessee through either Lease rents or
assessment, when practical. Such costs shall not be borne by existing tenants or
users of the airports.

Policy 3:

It shall be County policy that the rents and fees for those properties and/or facilities
directly related to the aviation-use public services afforded by the Department of
Airports but operated, however, by lessees or concessionaires. shall be adjusted
to cause an ultimate recapture of the total costs, both direct and indirect, when
practical. Adjustments shall be compared to Market Rate to ensure the cost will
not cause a loss of business. Examples: full, limited and single service providers
of aeronautical services.

Policy 3a:

It shall be County policy that the rents and fees for those properties and/or facilities
that are not-for-profit aviation museums and are operated consistent with the
fundamental public services afforded by the Department of Airports, may be
adjusted to cause less than an ultimate recapture of the totals costs. both direct
and indirect, through reduced rental rates and fees in recognition of the tangible or
intangible benefits to the airport.

Policy 3b:
It shall be County policy that the rents and fees for those properties and/or facilities.

which are County owned and County operated consistent with the fundamental
public services afforded by the Department of Airports, shall be adjusted to cause

Sd39

31



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

an ultimate recapture of the total costs, both direct and indirect, when practical.
This approach will result in competitive pricing of County services and serve to
constrain the migration of outside County aircraft operators seeking lower fares.
Adjustments to these rates shall be by cost-recovery analysis every five (5) years,
with interim adjustments calculated by applying the Consumer Price Index (CPI)
every other year. Examples: aircraft tie-down, aircraft storage hangars. In
calculating the costs of the above services (Policies 3 and 3a), that depreciation
attributed to donated assets shall be specifically excluded from such costs. This
is consistent with and in conformance with assurances given under the Federal
Airport Act or the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970 which states that
“no part of the Federal share of an airport development project shall be included in
the rate base in establishing fees, rates, and charges for users of that airport.”

Policy 3c:

It shall be County policy that the provision by the County of aircraft storage facilities
and/or property for the same purpose, shall be for the exclusive purpose of storing
aircraft deemed to be in an airworthy condition. Temporary exceptions to this
requirement may be granted by the Director of Airports on a case-by-case basis,
upon the demonstration of visible and reasonable progress to bring an aircraft to
airworthy status, consistent with the FAA's “Policy on the Non-Aeronautical Use of
Airport Hangars,” Docket No. FAA 2014-0463, 81 FR 38906, § Il.b. The Director
of Airports may make such determinations based on periodic inspections of such
facilities and/or property as frequently as once every 90 calendar days. The intent
of this policy is to ensure compliance with the aircraft storage license agreements
with regard to storage of aircraft that are in airworthy condition and/or aircraft that
are being brought to airworthy condition versus non-airworthy aircraft being stored,
in parts or in whole, to obtain storage space that is considered less expensive than
commercially available non-aviation storage space. Examples: aircraft tie-down,
county-owned storage hangars, privately-owned storage hangars.

Policy 3d:

It shall be County policy that private hangar owners subject to an existing Privately-
Owned Aircraft Storage Hangar Lease Agreement who seek approval to
expand/build out resulting in additional square footage or volume, or replace the
hangar, shall offer the County a right-of-first refusal to purchase the hangar at such
a time the owner proceeds to sell the hangar in place. County will respond to
hangar owner in writing within five (5) calendar days of its intent to purchase or not
purchase the hangar. Should the County decline to purchase a hangar, and upon
a request to transfer a hangar to a private party, a month-to-month Privately-
Owned Aircraft Storage Hangar Lease Agreement for privately-owned aircraft
storage hangars may be approved and executed by the Director of Airports with
the buyer, provided the purchase price is no more than 15% less than the price
first offered to the County. Failure on the part of the hangar owner to act in good

faith may result in the transfer not being approved.

32



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

The intent is to prevent the tenant from offering the expanded/built-out/replaced
hangar to the County for an unrealistically high price only to prevent the County
from being a viable purchaser of the hangar. Example: Hangar valuation is $100
(including value of the land). Tenant offers it to the County for $200 (unrealistically
high). The Tenant cannot then offer the sale to another party for less than $170
(85% of $200) without first offering it to the County again at the reduced price.

Policy 4:

It shall be County policy that those services, offered and administered by the
Department of Airports for which a total recapture of costs is recognized to be
inconceivable, be established by comparing fees with other publicly owned and
operated facilities with adjustments emphasizing the recapture of as much of
County costs as possible. However, fees shall be maintained at reasonable levels
so that the preponderance of the general public can avail themselves of the
service. This type of service will continue to reflect a loss; however, it is deemed
to be an appropriate public service. Examples: runways, taxiways, roads, rest
rooms, auto parking lots, visiting aircraft parking, and other public use areas.

Policy 5:

It shall be County policy that those services, and/or supplies furnished to the public
by the Department of Airports and regulated by law or by Administrative procedure,
shall be compensated for by charging fees and deposits calculated to reimburse
all of the administrative and material costs of furnishing same. Annual adjustment
emphasis shall be based upon cost analysis and shall not be subject to fair market
or profit considerations. Examples: commercial activity permits, aircraft towing
and impound fee, document processing fee, and paper material reproduction fee.

AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE.

The County Executive Officer or the Director of the Department of Airports are
authorized to execute Leases, Subleases, Licenses, Permits, Special Use/Activity
Permits, Operation Agreements, Extensions, Amendments, Consents, and
Notices of Intent to Terminate and cause Unlawful Detainer Complaints to be filed
on behalf of the County of Ventura as are hereafter defined and in accordance with
the provisions of the attached schedule.

A DEFINITIONS.

1. LEASE OR SUBLEASE: A conveyance of real property rights for
occupancy or use of land, improvements, or a combination thereof.
Under this authority, the Term shall not exceed five (5) years
including options to extend, except that the Director of Airports may
execute a form ground lease for a privately owned aircraft storage
hangar with a term that exceeds five years, if the form ground lease
has been previously approved by the Board of Supervisors.

Sd4\

33



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

Examples: leasing of land for improvements, leasing of a building or
portion of a building to tenant or concessionaire.

2. LICENSE. A conveyance of "personal” rights for occupancy or use
of property under this authority, limited to one (1) year. License may
be extended subject to specified time with prior Notice of
Termination. Examples: Aircraft tie-downs, storage, portable
hangars, ground use, vending machines, food or merchandise
catering truck, carousel sign use, and land encroachments.

3. PERMIT. A personal right to occupy or use property under this
authority, limited to maximum term of one (1) year. Permit may be
extended subject to 30-day Notice of Termination. Examples:
Temporary occupancy for fixing of premises, aircraft repair work or
wash/wax activities.

4, SPECIAL USE/ACTIVITY PERMIT. A personal right to occupy,
use, or conduct a specified "activity", limited under this authority to
a maximum of seven (7) days. (Longer periods must be renewed
daily.) Examples: Air shows, movie or TV filming, photography or
commercial demonstration.

5. OPERATIONAL AGREEMENTS. Mutually agreed upon procedures
pertaining to operational matters established between the
Department of Airports and other governmental agencies.

6. EXTENSION/AMENDMENT/CONSENT/AND NOTICE OF INTENT
TO TERMINATE.

a) An Extension is a continuation of an existing Board-approved
agreement without change, or limited to changes authorized
by this Authority.

b) An Amendment is a change of one or more of the terms,
conditions, or covenants consistent with authorized terms and
amounts specified in Board- approved rent and fee schedules.

c) A Consent is a ratification of a term, condition, or covenant in
an existing agreement executed by the Board made subject
to "County approval'. The Director of Airports may issue
Consent after determining proper compliance. This includes
an Assignment of Lease. The Director of Airports may also
approve a "sublease" or "additional use" by lessee but limited
to five (5) years.

d) Notice of Intent to Terminate is a notice by which the Director

54

34



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

expresses intent to terminate pursuant to a breach or default.
On a Board-approved Agreement, final termination shall be
subject to Board approval. Leases executed by Director of
Airports may be terminated by the Director of Airports.

B. SECURITY DEPOQOSIT. All tenants shall provide County with, and at all
times maintain, a Security Deposit in an amount prescribed by this
Resolution. Said amount shall be based on rent and adjusted periodically.
Public entities governed by the Board shall be exempt. Said deposit shall
guarantee tenants' full and faithful performance of all terms and conditions
of their agreement. The following forms of deposit are acceptable: cash,
Time Certificate of Deposit (CD), Irrevocable Letter of Credit, and assigned
Savings Passbook. The following shall be the basis of the amount of the
Deposit unless otherwise stated in the Rent and Fee Schedule:

License Agreement - The deposit shall be equal to one (1) month's rental
rate.
Lease Agreement - The deposit shall be equal to three (3) month's rental
rate.

After three (3) years of good and faithful lease performance (defined as no
defaults or delinquencies), deposits on leases of five (5) years or less may
be reduced to one (1) month, subject however, to a Lease Amendment
providing for the following Liquidated Damages:

Liguidated Damages

County shall have the right to demand, and Lessee agrees to pay
Liquidated Damages in the sum of one percent (1%) of the security
deposit required of Lease, (but not less than $10.00), for each day a
violation exists of any of the following lease conditions and/or lease
articles:

LEASE CONDITIONS AND/OR ARTICLES

USES AND SERVICES

OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONTROLLED PRICES
IMPROVEMENTS AND INVESTMENTS
CONSTRUCTION

INSURANCE

OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL REPORTS AND RECORDS
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

FAA SPECIAL PROVISIONS

35

5443



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

C. NEGOTIATIONS, PREPARATIONS, AND LEGAL APPROVAL. The
Leases, Subleases, Licenses, Permits, Special Use/ Activity Permits,
Extensions, Amendments, Consents, and Notices of Intent to Terminate
shall be negotiated and prepared by the Department of Airports or, by
request of the Director of Airports, negotiated and/or prepared by the Public
Works Agency, Real Property Services. All Agreements shall be submitted
to County Counsel's Office for approval as to legal sufficiency prior to final
execution excepting pre-approved, routine "form" documents.

D. TERMINATION DUE TO "REPEATED" VIOLATIONS. The Board of
Supervisors hereby authorizes the Director of Airports to include in selected
agreements the right to issue a "Notice of Termination for Breach of Good
Faith" which would allow termination of an Agreement after tenants
repeating the same violation three (3) times or more within any twelve (12)
month period, regardless of tenants' cure, remedy, or diligent pursuit to
correct violations.

E. BACKGROUND DETERMINATION AND GUIDELINES. No agreement will
be executed under the authority of this RESOLUTION if the County
Executive Officer or the Director of Airports of the Department of Airports
determines that: (1) The proposed use or occupancy is in conflict with the
County's adopted plans for development; (2) The other party(s) to a
proposed Agreement has a reputation, character, or background which
could be detrimental to County's interest; or (3) Such other party(s) does
not have technical knowledge, management ability, or financial capability to
fulfill the purpose and provisions of the Agreement.

F. RENTAL POLICY. It shall continue to be Department of Airports' Policy to
require "ALL" tenants or users of County Airports property to pay rents
established by Board-approved Rent and Fee Schedules; however, the
Director of Airports may determine that certain special services including
labor and/or materials may be accepted in lieu of cash payment of rent
where all other guidelines are consistent with Director of Airports’ Authority.
Director of Airports is authorized to adjust rents incrementally to current rate
to ensure the cost will not cause a loss of business.

G. CONTROVERSIAL OR POLICY SETTING AGREEMENTS. Any
transaction authorized by this Resolution, considered significantly
controversial or policy-setting in the opinion of the County Executive Officer
or the Director of Airports, shall be submitted first to the Aviation Advisory
Commission and appropriate Airport Authority for recommendation and
then to the Board of Supervisors for approval and execution.

AUTHORIZATION TO ESTABLISH FEES

The County Executive Officer, or the Director of Airports is hereby granted limited
authority to establish fees for other uses of airport property not specifically provided

5444

36



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/21

for in the attached schedule. Such other fees shall be reasonable and consistent
with the policies and fees established herein. Any such fee considered to be
significant, controversial or policy-setting shall first be submitted to the Aviation
Advisory Commission and appropriate Airport Authority, for recommendation, and
finally to the Board of Supervisors for appropriate action.

THE FOREGOING RECITALS and attached Rent and Fee Schedule are passed,
approved, and adopted by the Board of Supervisors, effective July 1, 2021.

COUNTY OF VENTURA

Date By
Chair, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: MICHAEL POWERS,
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
County of Ventura, State of California

By

Deputy Clerk of the Board

37

5d45



RENT AND FEE SCHEDULE

DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS

Rents and Fees Common to
Camarillo and Oxnard Airports

Effective July 1, 20210

EXHIBIT 2



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/218

DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS
RENT AND FEE SCHEDULE
INDEX

Page
Summary Table of Fees Follows Table of Contents
l. AIRCRAFT STORAGE 3
I. AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS 5
1. GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT 6
V. AIRPORT BUILDINGS/IMPROVEMENTS 76
V. AIRPORT LAND/GROUND AREAS 8
VI. AUTO PARKING 9
VIl.  AIRPORT PERMITS 10
VIIl.  MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES 13
IX. LEASE/LICENSE AGREEMENTS 154
X. ACCESS TO AIRPORT FROM ADJACENT PRIVATE PROPERTY 176
XI. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 17
EXHIBIT "A" 18

Insurance Requirements
EXHIBIT "B" 29
Private Hangars-Ground Area

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 30

54471



1 28ed

9100 S wup4 jan4 Aauno) ui jan4 fo abpioys 104 - [DIUSY YUD] [aN4

STO S abomoid 110 JD

¢00 S wp4 jan4 Auno) Jo asn 104 - 334 AUj1o04

500 S uojjpb paianijap 4ad abomoy [an4 M\
a8elo015/a8emo|4 |an4 d

28.eyd oN (jpaawwo)-uoN) S7 005 2T 43pun YpJdaly [jous 6

O0'€ETT S 334 asn Ajio@ Woao41y 4ip-ubyl-131ybiry

T S (spunod pupsnoyl 1521p3au 0} papunoy} MO.LIN S97000°T 43d 334 - SI311ID) 4y

6v'ST S MOLW SE7000°T 42d 834 / 334 WNWIUIN - S13144DD JIY

s394 Suipuen
SNOILYYH3dO LiVHIUIV

000'6 S (a1qpayyddD fi) yruow Jad - 331135 314393(3
0050 S 610 423fv paioniysuo)
¥9€°0 S 610¢ 03 J0lid pa3onisuo)

Jea) 13 ‘4§ 13d - uay JeSueH paumQ Aluno)
65T°0 S JB9A 19 ‘4S 194 - sieSueH a1eAld YIM - JUlY punoun
994 Bulpue] x0T ( § 1q1yx3 osjp 235 ) S47 00§ ‘ZT 49A0 Yp1241y 3b4D7
00'6€T S ybnoiyj-jind
00201 S pi1opunlS

siseg YJuolAl 03 YIUOA ‘9oeds 1ad - sumopall pased]
adieyd oN Yooy bunybi 2114 3904300 /2USUIUISAOL)
334 Sulpue 0} |enb3 / 00'SCS 084 yim pa1oij(tffo 10N - Y0121y 230A1id
00°0S S $121d021[aH - UOILIO 40 ADQ 134 334 - asn) MOLfIaN0 / O / |DI243WWo)
00°00T S Q| 000 0t 4310 - U0ILIOg 10 ADQ 134 334 - 3S() MO[f13A0 / OF / [PId13WLO)
00°sZ S $ql 000°0F - 00S ‘TT U0I1310d 10 ADQ 134 934 - 35() MOJJI3AQ / 084 / [PI24aWW0)
00°0S S $QJ 005 ZT 43pun -Uoi3104 40 ADQ 134 334~ 3SM) MOIfI3A0 / 08 / |01213WLW0)
(uoiuod Aue 10 say pz) asn Aeq - eaay dwey Juaisuesj
934 8uipueq o1 |enb3 S9700S°CT 4910 Ypaouy abio]
0001 S auibu3 niny
00’8 S aujbu3 ajbuis
(dwey 31e40d10) UO 10N) WYBIUIBAQ 13d - SUMOP-31] JUdISuel )
00°0ST S juawiuedaq Aq uonode Suissadold asea] mau yaes 03 saljddy - 994 uonesnsiuiwpy
2994 J0 jJudy 39UVHD _

¢T-TT0C Ad 021202 SEoR (6351 $934 '3 JUay Jo Arewwins

spodaly jo Juawedaq
120T ‘T AInf aniay3 JTNA3IHDS 334 LINFY 9|Npayds a9 Juay - vV HqIyx3



Y WnWIuIA

000000 S

paie1no3au sy

580 S

SET S

00°000°0¢

0000002

00'000°0¢

%24 872 R %

00'000°0C

¥6.0°0

0S°0

ov'o

2 R%2 % R 723 K7

ov'0

_ (esieaddy Aq paysiiqeisd

7 98ed

5444

9SE3dT PUNOJD YIUOIAl O3 YIUOA
13\ 13 ‘10Y 13 Sluawanoiduwi| - (UOIIBIAY-UON pue UOIRIAY) 3SEDT JO WD |
U3y 2bDu3adI3d
(uonpiny) saspai punoio
(uoIDINY-UON ) SSDIT PUNOID
183 19d ‘4§ 19d - (UOnBIAY-UON '8 UOIIBIAY) JUSY PUNOID
SVYIYV ANNOYD/ANVT LYOdYIV

dSV 22in13s ajbuis
dSV 92In43s payui]
dSV 321n43S |ind
1B\ 12d ‘940Y 13d Ssiudwanoidw| - (uolielny) 3SeaT Jo Wil
1B3A 19d ‘940 J3d siudwanoidwi - (UOIlRIAY-UON]) 3SE3T JO WD)
dwpy
aoiffo
doys
ipbuoby
YIUON J3d ‘4S 13d - (uoileiny) Juay
YIUOIA J13d ‘4S 12d - (uonelay-UoN) Juay
(PaumQE-A1uno)) SINJINIAOYCINI/SONIATING LUOdYIV

*3DUVHI LNOHLIM - 14VHINIV LINJIWNYIAOD

994 40 JUdY

IDYVHD _

C¢C-120C AH

T20T ‘T AInr aA103y3

2202-120T 4edA |easid S994 @ JU3dy jO >hmEE3W

syodily jo Juawisedaq
IT1NA3IHDS 334 IN3Y 9|NPayds 224 U3y - vV UQIyx3



¢ 98ed

00°29¢ S App i3d pjoyaspaq uo Aoy
00°008 S Aop Jad Aydpibojoyd |p12iawwio)
00°000°¢ S (maid/150) +1¢z) ADp 12d Buruji4 3INON/|DIDIBWIWOD /AL /21N1D3
00'00T‘T S (ma13/1s0) 0z-T) ADp Jad buiwijl{ JINON/|DI2IWWOD /AL /24n1D3
(Ausadoad paseat-uon uo) syuiwiad Aydesdoloyd/wiji4 [ersswwo)
00'8EY'T S |onuuy
00'TL(8 S Alqruop
00001 S SADQ anIINIasu0?) [DUOIPPY
009¢t S sADQ@ aniIndasuo) [puonippy / 1Huwiad Ajiog
|EI2J3WILUOY) UOIIBIAY-UON - 994 HWIdd
00'6/8°T S Jajany-f1as ‘403ona1suy 3ybij4 Juapuadapuy 21ubyI3N 3JIGON - HUIIdd |DNULY
00°'s¢ S sADQ@ aniINIasuo) [pUoIIPPY
00°66T S Hwad Aiog
[BI2J9WILIOY) UOIIBIAY - 994 }JWIdd
SHWJIad AJADY [eIDJaWWo)
S1INY3d 1HOdYIV
00°'s S 834 JUaWadD|day HWidd
00°'sC S 320dS 1ad “YIUOW 13d - SIBYI0 |IV
00°0¢ S 320dS 134 ‘YIUOW 13d - SID)-Y-1UdY
Supjied yuwisg
00°00T S Alyruop
00'8 $ ApQ |puonippy yoo3
008 S SYH vZ-ZT
00's S SYH ZI-9
00y S SHH 9-t
93l4 SHYH v-0
107 Aed [eujwia] pseuxQ
DNDIMVd O1NY
994 Jo Juay IDUVHO _
¢C-T¢0C AH — S934 73 JuU3dYy jo Alewwing

syodaly jo Juawiiedag
1202 ‘T AInf aA1day3 I1NA3IHIS 334 INTY S|NPayds 924 JUY - V UGIYX3

5450



00°0S
00'9T

0002

00°S¢

YH/Y TS 10 2ley ANOH |enpy
00 S
%C

00°0S2 S
00°0S 3

h 2 R% R0 R73

00TS

00'6 S

SS0ID JO %/

Juay aseg wnwWIUIA
peienosau sy
peienjodau sy

SS0JD 3|geIinquUIY %S°8
00611

00'vET

00'99%'T s

WV

| 009 $ |

$150) _.o::om‘_mm sn|d @34 asn
paiinbay JaAlepn 994
00°'8EY'T

00°00T

wV|nN|n

009¢V

{ 98eyd

suoien) supjed

Juswade|day pJe) 1507 - spJe) alen A1LInd3S

M3 - spie) ajen Ajundag

adJeyd y2ay) peq

(981ey) ON SYH ¢ 35414) Swi] eis - 994 SuiAdo) Juswndoq

a8ed 134 - 994 SuiAdo) juawniog

sajes Je8ueH 1eAlld - 3SedT W3] Suo o) 334 J3jsuel ]
sJ0siniadns Jo pipog Aq painiaxa suawnioQg
suodiy fo 10122410 AqG painidaxa sjuawndoq

994 Su1ss930.14 JUBWNZ0Q

234 |esodsiq wid)| 281e

(uondesueuy 1ad) 994 93uajuaAuo) JuswAied d1u04133|3

SIDUVHI SNOANVTIIIISIN

uay abpjuallad - uoiIpIad( JOulN - JUDINDISAY
uay asog - UoIIDIAA(O JOUIIN - JUDINDISAY
3y abpluadiad - uoipiadQ Jofoyy - UDINDISAY
uay asog - uoipiadQ Jolopy - JUDINDIS3Y
(paiinbay asuaor] a1pipdas) sip) |pIUdY 1odiy-flo
|pnuuy - 334 HWiad 3J21Yap AS334n0)
(paiinbay |pnoiddy spiodiry fo 101234iq) AjYIUOW - 334 WL 3]1INYS/IXD ]
jpnuuy - 334 JWI3d 3[1INYS/IX0 [
S9[21YaA Asa1ano)/suoizesadQ 3j1anys pajnpsyds/pueis qed-ixe|
INOH 13 - (|DI1213WW0)-UON) 35 JdumQO LYDI2iry
(s)2eY Ysep) sealy yIoMn Jieday Yyesay
|9uuos.iad suonesadQ swiHaAQ Jo esix3 Suuinbay sasn jeads
ANanoy Ajlunwwo) 11j0.d-uop /uoeIAY JO UOIIOWOI 10§ WA 3SM)
334 |pnuuy
SADQ@ an1IN23suoy) |pUOIUPPY
aa4 Aibg
ANAIPY gnpp/Alunwiwo) Jo/pue ‘|enpiaipu] ‘|eIdJaWWo)-UoN - 394 HWIdd as( [e1dads

994 Jo Juay _

IDYVHI

C¢C-T20C AMd

TZ0T ‘T AN ani0ay3

€202-120T Jed |edsty
suoduy jo Juawedaqg

ITNA3IHIS 334 INFY ajnpayds 994 U3y - v Ugiyx3

S994 g Juay jo Alewwing

V)
<
Lo



[ perenosan sy

G a8ed

ISPIAOId DIIAIDS [EININBUOIDY DIIAIDS |INd
S1N3INIFIIUOV ISNIDI/3SVI

CCTIC S (s1321ff0 omy) suoiapiado syn jjpws
T19°90T S 1201fJO - s13i0M suoniado
86901 S 101U3S - SI3YIO/ IUDUBIUIDIN
106 S pDa7 - S13Y10// 32UDUSIUIDIN
9¢'9L S Y231 Burunoady 1ojuas - SUDIY [D13Pa - buljjig UDID
00'SET S 101p3sIUIUPY S323[01d- SPUDID [DI3Pa4 - bulfjig JUDID
00°5/T S uonpIAY fo 1033311q - Auaby poal Y3 /Buigiuad / Malnay Juawidojanaq aioALld
00°0ST S 1032241q A1ndaq - Aduaby poa] wDI2/BuniuLIsd / Mainay Juawdo|anag a1oatld
00°SET S Joppysiulwpy s3alold - Auaby ppa YDI0/buiiuIad / mainay Juauidojanag 33oAld
sajey AjinoH 19Y10
00°'8TT S ANOH JO UOILIOd JO JNOH 13 - 934 dI1AI3S Jodaams Jodaly
%0T (2ouejeg piedun jo) aa4 aieq
00'ct S AeQ 13d - 324 WOOY 32UI3JUO) ||EWS
00'981 S Ae( 19d - 394 WooYy d2udIdjU0) 981e]
934 Jo juay ID¥VHI _

TZ0T ‘T AINf 8A130343

¢C-120C Ad

2Z02-120Z Je2A [edsld S994 1@ JUIY jO >hmEE=m

spoduay jo Juawedag
31NA3HIS 334 INJY 9NPaYIS 994 Y - V UqIyx3

5452



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

l. AIRCRAFT STORAGE

No aircraft shall be allowed to remain as tenants in/on assigned aircraft storage space on
either Camarillo or Oxnard Airport without having first registered with the Director of
Airports, or his representative, and having obtained a valid permit, Lease Agreement, or
License Agreement as required and having paid the fees as set forth below:

Transient aircraft shall be charged fees as set forth below:
The following shall apply to all aircraft storage Lease and License Agreements:

Fee: All fee calculations listed under this section will be rounded to the nearest whole
dollar.

Late Fee: Storage Hangar Lease and License Fees are due and payable on or before
the first of each month and if not received by the 16th day a late charge of $15 shall be
added.

Security Deposit: Tenant shall provide County with and thereafter maintain a refundable
cash security deposit in an amount equal to $45-plus one (1) month's rent in effect at the
time of initial license sign-up.

A Transient Tie-downs (overnight) 12,500 Ib. or less

1. Single Engine - $8/day
2. Multi Engine - $10/day
3. Aircraft over 12,500 Ib. refer to section C below

(Note: see Section Il. A. Landing Fees count as first night daily fee)
B. Tie-downs (month to month)

1. Push infout - $102/month
2. Taxi in/out - $139/month

C. Large Aircraft (over 12,500 Ib.)
Unless parked by a commercial operator, Tie-down/Monthly and Transient/Daily
Fees: Daily fee $1.44 per 1,000 Ibs. of Max. gross take-off weight. Monthly fee is
10 times the daily fee. Fees are rounded to the nearest whole dollar. The first 24-
hour period is included in landing fee. Statements will be sent to the aircraft
owner listed in FAA reqistry.

D. Transient Ramp Area — Commercial Day-Use and Overflow Parking Fee.
Commercial operators that park aircraft on a Transient Ramp Area that is owned
and managed by the Department of Airports (also known as “Corporate Ramp”)
will be billed to the commercial operator according to the following schedule.

5053




Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

(piston aircraft should be parked on a tiedown leased or licensed to the operator.

1.

Jets and Turboprops less than 12,500 pounds maximum gross take-off weight

2

- $25/day or any portion thereof.

Jets and Turboprops between 12,500 — 40,000 pounds maximum gross takeoff

3.

weight - $50/day or any portion thereof.

Jets and Turboprops over 40,000 pounds maximum gross take-off weight -

4.

$100/day or any portion thereof.

Helicopters - $50/day or any portion thereof.

NOTES:

a) Taxi in/out spaces limited to aircraft too heavy to manually
maneuver.

b) Light Aircraft (12,500 Ib. and under) with wingspans exceeding
normal tie-down dimensions must rent two or more spaces to
accommodate aircraft size.

D. Ground Rent - Private Hangars

1.

The rent for Privately owned hangars is based upon $0.139 per square foot
per month.

NOTES:

a) See Exhibit B for the areas of various hangars calculated from actual
measurements and rounded down to the next increment of 10 square
feet.

b) Privately owned hangars to which electrical service was installed at
no cost to County are exempt from the electrical service rate.

C) Hangars served with electricity through an independent meter, paid
by County, shall be charged an additional estimated $9 per month
electrical energy charge. The actual vs. estimated energy costs will
be evaluated annually and adjustments made accordingly.

d) Upon termination of the Lease Agreement for cause, Lessee shall be
placed on a daily rate equivalent to two times the monthly rate
divided by 30 and rounded to the next highest dollar.

E. County Owned Hangars (Examples of area - not all inclusive)
1. The rent for County owned hangars built/installed prior to 2019 is based

upon $0.364 per square foot per month. The rent for County owned hangars
built/installed in or after 2019 is based upon $0.50 per square foot per
month.

5ds4



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

NOTES:

a) Hangars served with electricity through an independent meter, paid
by County, shall be charged an additional estimated $9 per month
electrical energy charge. The actual vs. estimated energy costs will
be evaluated annually and adjustments made accordingly.

b) Upon termination of the Lease Agreement for cause, Lessee shall be
placed on a daily rate equivalent to two times the monthly rate
divided by 30 and rounded to the next highest dollar.

C) The following are examples of hangar areas — not all inclusive:

Inventory installed prior to 2019: Inventory installed in or after 2019:

1. Port-A-Port (800 S.F.) . Tee Hangars (1,130 S.F.)
2. Fixed T (1,000 S.F.) 2. Tee Hangars (1,310 S.F.)
3. Port-A-Port (1,050 S.F.) 3. Tee Hangars (1,280 S.F.)
4. NUNNO (1,100 S.F.) 4. Tee Hangars (1,550 S.F.)
5. NUNNO (1,400 S.F.) 5. Tee Hangars (2,800 S.F.)
6. Port-A-Port (1,500 S.F.)
7. Port-A-Port (2,000 S.F.)
8. Box (2,200 S.F.)

Il. AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS

A. Landing Fees

1. Air Carriers (scheduled commercial — non-based) and Air Taxis

(non-scheduled commercial — non-based) shall be charged a minimum
landing fee of $15.49 or $1.44 per 1,000 pounds of gross weight, rounded
to the nearest whole dollar, whichever is greater. The term "gross weight"
shall be the certified maximum gross takeoff weight specified by FAA for the
type of aircraft.

NOTE: Landing Fee includes first overnight parking fee.

2. Privately owned or leased aircraft (non-based), not used for hire or
compensation, shall be exempt from landing fees up to 12,500 pounds.
However, heavier aircraft shall be charged at the above rate.

3. Lighter-than-air Aircraft Use Fee. Lighter-than-air aircraft such as airships,
dirigibles, blimps and balloons shall be charged a daily use fee of $113. The
payment of this fee shall entitle the operator to a mooring location on a site
assigned by the airport, as well as parking for support vehicles. Prior

permission of the Director of Airports is required.



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

B. Fuel Flowage/Storage

1. Fuel Flowage - All vendors and Self-Fueling Operators who dispense avia-
tion fuel upon County Airports shall pay the County a Fuel Flowage Fee of
$0.06 per delivered gallon.

2. Facility Fee — (For use of County Fuel Farm Facilities) vendors and Self-
Fueling Operators who dispense aviation fuel upon County Airports shall
pay the County a Facility Fee of $0.02 per delivered gallon.

NOTE: Tenant will pay actual cost of utilities on a pro rata basis and will be billed

quarterly for those costs. An annual adjustment will be made at the end of
each year.

3. Oil Flowage - All vendors who dispense aviation oil upon County Airports
shall pay the County an Oil Flowage Fee of $0.15 per delivered gallon.

4. Fuel Tank Rental - Whenever County owned tanks are utilized to store fuel,
a Fuel Storage Fee of $0.046 per delivered gallon shall be paid to County.

NOTE: Flowage and Storage Fees are due with submission of Quarterly Fuel
Flowage Reports and are in addition to all other rents due.

a) Late fees of 10% are applicable to flowage and storage fees when not
paid by the thirtieth day following the end of each quarter.

b) Fuel/Petroleum Vendors and Self-Fueling Operators shall obtain and
maintain all permits and associated fees.

1. GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT

Airport facilities shall be made available to government aircraft (state or federal) without
charge except if the use by government aircraft is substantial. Substantial use shall be
considered to exist when during any calendar month:

A. Five (5) or more government aircraft are regularly based at the airport or on land
adjacent thereto; or

B. The total number of movements (counting each landing as a movement) of
government aircraft is 300 or more, or the gross accumulative weight of
government aircraft using the airport (the total movements of government aircraft
multiplied by gross weights of such aircraft) is in excess of five million pounds.

C. Government aircraft are based or use airport(s) in excess of any 90-day period.

This is in conformance with those assurances given under the Federal Airport Act or the

Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970.



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

IV.  AIRPORT BUILDINGS/IMPROVEMENTS

A. Rent (Non-Aviation)

The lease rental rate for airport-owned non-aviation buildings and improvements
shall be based on the estimated value of the building replacement cost per square
foot with a ten percent (10%) return on investment or as otherwise approved by
the Board of Supervisors. The fair market rental rate for all airport owned buildings
and improvements shall be established by an appraisal by the Real Estate
Services Division of the Public Works Agency or an outside, independent
appraiser. The appraisal and subsequent rental rates shall reflect whether or not
one or more utilities may be included. The rental rate shall also reflect if any other
services such as maintenance or janitorial are included.

B. Rent (Aviation)

The lease rental rate for airport-owned aviation buildings and improvements shall
be based on cost recovery, as compared to Fair Market Value.

Current rates per square ft. per month are:

Camarillo Oxnard
Hangar $0.40 $0.40
Shop $0.40 $0.40
Office $0.50 $0.50
Ramp $0.0794 $0.0794
C. Term of Lease (Minimum Qualifications) Non-Aviation

A capital investment of $20,000 per acre, per year of lease, may be required, as
approved by the Director of Airports, and such improvements shall be completed
within two years or less, or as negotiated in the Ilease.

D. Term of Lease (Minimum Qualifications) Aviation

1, Full Service ASP- A minimum capital investment of $20,000 per acre, per
year, is required, as approved by the Director of Airports. All agreed-upon
improvements shall be completed within the first two years or less, or as
approved by the Board of Supervisors.

2. Limited Service ASP- A capital investment of $20,000 per acre, per year,
is required, as approved by the Director of Airports, and all agreed-upon
improvements shall be completed within the first two years or less, or as
negotiated in the lease.

3. Single Service ASP- A capital investment of $20,000 per acre, per year,

5457




Department of Airports

Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

NOTES:

E.

V.

is required, as approved by the Director of Airports, and such
improvements shall be completed within one year or less, or as negotiated
in the lease.

Tenant shall maintain leased premises in as good or better condition, to
include:

Repainting at least once every 10 years
Maintain roof free of leaks
Maintain landscaping in clean and healthy condition (free of trash)

Leases up to Five Years Term may be executed by the Director of Airports.

AIRPORT LAND/GROUND AREAS

A

Rent (Non-Aviation and Aviation)

1.

Ground Leases: (Oxnard and Camarillo) All Ground Leases are
subject to a minimum base rent and/or percentage rent, and Board
of Supervisors approval. All ground leases are subject to a 5-year
rent review and adjustment.

(NOTE: Formula Minimum Rent: 10% of the Fair Market Value and/or
appraised value of land per annum or as otherwise approved by
Board of Supervisors. Land to be reappraised yearly and Rental
Value to be adjusted per Lease language, but not less than every 5
years.)

a) Non-Aviation Land Rent Rate is $1.35 per square ft. per year
based on 10% ROI using March 21, 2019 appraisal stating
land value at $13.50 per square foot.

b) Aviation Land Rent Rate is $0.8750 per square ft. per year
based on Non-Aviation Land rate and discounted 35% due to
use being restricted to aviation only.

Percentage Rent: Applicable Rate of all gross receipts from Tenants
subject to percentage.

“Month to Month" Ground Lease: All Month to Month (no options)
Ground Leases are subject to formula minimum base rent or
negotiated rent, whichever is greater, and may be executed by the
Director of Airports. All month-to-month ground leases are subject
to annual review and adjustment.

(NOTE: Formula Minimum Rent: 10% of the Fair Market Value and/or
appraised value of land per annum or as otherwise approved by

545

8



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

Board of Supervisors. Land to be appraised and Rental Value
adjusted periodically with Director of Airports' discretion).

NOTES:

a) All improvements constructed by the Tenant on the Airport shall, at
the option of the County, be removed and the ground area returned
as nearly as practicable to its original condition or may be vested with
the County upon termination of the Lease.

b) Tenant shall maintain leased premises in as good or better condition,
to include:

Repainting at least once every 10 years (or as needed)
Maintain roof free of leaks
Maintain landscaping in clean and healthy condition (free of trash).

c) Agricultural leases are handled as special situations and are
exempted from the foregoing guidelines and minimums. Rents shall
be established by market comparisons as determined by the Director
of Airports.

d) Not-for-profit aviation museums are handled as special situations
and are exempted from the foregoing formula minimum rent
requirements. Land rent shall be as negotiated with the Director of
Airports and approved by the Board of Supervisors.

B. Term of Lease (Non-Aviation and Aviation)

1. Ground Leases: One (1) year or more leases. In order to secure a
long-term ground lease beyond one (1) year, lessee shall invest
$20,000 per acre, per year, as approved by the Director of Airports.
All agreed-upon improvements shall be completed within the first
year or less, or as approved by the Board of Supervisors. All
improvements (excluding fueling apparatus) shall transfer to County
at end of 20th year, regardless of term, or as negotiated with Airport
Director and approved by the Board of Supervisors.

2. “Month to Month" Ground Leases: Renewable until terminated (no
options to extend).

C. Leases up to Five Years Term may be executed by the Director of Airports

VI.  AUTO PARKING

A. Terminal Area Parking (Oxnard Terminal Building)

5454



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/219

(Note:

VII.

0-4 hours free

4-6 hours $4

6-12 hours $5

12-24 hours $8

Each additional 24 hours $8/day

$100.00 monthly rates available)

Permit Parking (Excludes Oxnard Airport Terminal Parking)

1. Rent-a-Car Company - $20/month/space
2. All others - $25/month/space
3. Permit replacement fee - $5

AIRPORT PERMITS

Commercial Activity Permits

No person or business entity other than current lessee or licensee shall sell or
publicly solicit the sale of merchandise, conduct or operate a business or service
for hire or compensation, or advertise or solicit business or utilize airport land area
upon property under the jurisdiction of the Department of Airports unless a permit
is first obtained from the Director of Airports. The permit holder will perform
permitted activities only in those areas designated on the permit.

To qualify for a Commercial Activity Permit, the following is required:

1. Permit Fee, Aviation Commercial uses/activities and aircraft/auto mobile
detailing

a) Daily Permit $199; ea. additional consecutive day $35
b) Annual Permit

1. Mobile Mechanic $1,879

2. Independent Flight Instructor $1,879

3. Self-Fueler $1,879

2. Permit Fee, Non-Aviation Commercial uses/activities

a) Daily Permit $436; ea. additional consecutive day $100 (up to 3 days)
b) Monthly Permit $871
c) Annual Permit $2,438

3. A Certificate of Insurance naming the County of Ventura and/or Department
of Airports as Additional Insured with coverage as specified in Exhibit "A."
4. A $20 fee will be collected on all first issue gate access cards. Broken,
damaged, or lost cards will be replaced for a fee of $16 each card.
5. Evidence of the applicable City business license.
10

S5dbD



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

NOTE: Permit does not allow Permittee to enter upon lessee's premises without
approval of lessee. Commercial activity permit fees may be adjusted at the
discretion of the Director of Airports if deemed necessary for the provision
of services. One-Year Permit is subject to 30-day termination.

B. Commercial Film/Photography Permits

No person or business entity shall conduct any commercial filming, photography
or demonstrations upon County airports without first obtaining a permit from the
Director of Airports.

To qualify for a Commercial Film/Photography Permit, the following is required:
1. Permit Fee
a) Feature/TV/Commercial/Movie Filming $1,100/day
(includes location and basecamp 1-20 cast/crew)
b) Feature/TV/Commercial/Movie Filming $3,000/day
(includes location and basecamp 21+ cast/crew)
c) Commercial Photography $800/day

2. Certificate of Insurance naming the County of Ventura as Additional Insured
with coverage as specified in Exhibit "A."

3. Security/clean up deposit equal to the per-day fee may be required if
determined by the Director of Airports to be justified by the planned activity.

NOTES:

a) The above fees apply to all or part of a facility under the jurisdiction of the
Department of Airports.

b) Maximum permit term is seven (7) days including setup and disassembly time,
without advance approval of the Director of Airports.

c) Activity on leased property still requires a County permit; however, County
charge for such Permit shall be limited to $262 per day.

C. Special Use (Non-commercial) Activity Permit

No person or entity shall conduct a non-commercial, individual and/or
community/club activity upon County airports without first obtaining a permit from
the Director of Airports.

To qualify for a Special Use Permit, the following is required:

11

5adb!



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/218

1. Permit Fee

a) Daily fee $436; ea. additional consecutive day $100
b) Annual fee $2,438

2. Certificate of Insurance naming the County of Ventura as Additional Insured
with coverage as specified in Exhibit "A” if determined by the Director of
Airports to be justified by the planned activity. Any event involving alcohol,
if approved, will require insurance and appropriate alcohol license from the
Alcohol Beverage Control.

3. Security/cleanup deposit equal to the per day fee, if determined by the
Director of Airports to be justified by the planned activity.

D. Use of Airport for Promotion of Aviation and/or a Non-Profit/Community Activity

Aviation related and/or community oriented one-time events considered to be of
public interest, non-profit, and/or having a value to the aviation community, may
request in writing a waiver of fees, which may be approved at the discretion of the
Director of Airports. Examples: National Aviation Day, special Aircraft fly-ins, and
special aviation group activities.

E. Special Uses Requiring Extra or Overtime Personnel

Special uses requiring extra County personnel shall be charged, in addition to use
fee, an hourly rate for personnel for each hour or portion thereof required (two (2)
hours minimum for Airport Operations Officers).

F. Aircraft Repair Work Areas

The use of aircraft repair work areas is limited to aircraft owners, notwithstanding
commercial activity provided for herein.

Fee: $6.00 for each four (4) hour block of time or portion thereof.

G. Taxi-Cab Stand/Scheduled Shuttle Operations/Courtesy Vehicles

Taxicabs, scheduled shuttles and courtesy vehicles may enter airport property
without charge for the purpose of dropping off passengers. However, no taxicab,
scheduled shuttle or courtesy vehicle shall be allowed to pick up or await
passengers or to remain in the designated taxi stand or shuttle area without first
having obtained a permit.

The following is required for a permit:

1. Taxi/Shuttle Permit Fee $1,466 per year; (at discretion of Director, may be

payable $134 per month in advance).

12



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/216

2. Courtesy Vehicle Permit Fee (Hotel/Motel vehicle to which no fee for service is
charged to the customer) $149 per year each company.

3. Certificate of Insurance naming the County of Ventura as Additional Insured,
with coverage as specified in Exhibit "A."

4. Evidence of the applicable City Business License.

Vill.  MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES

A. Document Processing Fee

A fee shall be paid to County in advance for "Tenant-initiated" and/or public
requested drafting and/or processing each Amendment, Assignment,
Concurrence, Change of Ownership, Approval of Sublease, Extension of Terms,
Option to Lease, or other modifications of month-to-month or long-term leases or
research of public documents. This processing fee shall be deemed earned by
County when paid and shall not be refundable. Fee is construed as reimbursement
of administrative costs pursuant to transaction or research. (County or mutually
initiated documents are exempted.)

1. Documents executed by Director of Airports $50.
2. Documents executed by Board of Supervisors $250.
B. Transfer Fee for Long Term Lease (Term exceeding 1 year)

2% of sales price, based on appraisal and/or purchase agreement. Term ground
leases for privately owned aircraft storage hangars that were previously month-
to-month leases, signed on or between July 1, 20218, and June 30, 20224, are
exempt from this fee.

C. Document Copying Fee

A fee of $0.035 per page shall be charged for reproducing all documents not
associated with the conduct of routine airport business. There will be no staff time
charged for the first two hours of retrieval and copying time. For the third hour and
longer, the charge will be the lower of: (1) the actual hourly rate of the employee(s)
doing the retrieval and copying; or (2) $24.00 per hour.

D. Bad Check Charge

A "bad check" charge of $25 will be added to that amount owed for all checks
returned for insufficient funds or any other reason.

E. Security Gate Cards

Parking and security gate cards for entrance to parking and general aviation areas
(hangar and tie-down) will be issued by the Director of Airports to authorized

5463

13



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/2108

persons. A $20 fee will be collected on all first issue cards. Broken, damaged, or
lost cards will be replaced for a fee of $16 each card.

F. Parking Citations

Civil penalty citations issued for vehicular parking violations under Ventura County
Ordinance Codes 6508-21 and 6508-22 are set at $50 per violation.

G. Conference Room Fee (subject to waiver for public interest/aviation safety

events)

Large Room $185/day
Small Room $42/day

H. Late Fee

10% of unpaid balance (not compounded) on all leases, and licenses, including
percentage rents and fees. Tiedowns/hangars refer to Section I.

l. Airport Sweeper Service Fee

$118/hour (or partial hour) for use of airport sweeper on airport. Fee includes
airport personnel as sweeper operator.

J. Other Hourly Rates

Project Permitting and Plan Reviews; Dept. of Airports as CEQA Lead Agency

Projects Administrator $135/hour
Deputy Director $150/hour
Director of Airports $175/hour

Grant Billing — Federal Grants

Projects AdministratorAdministrative-OfficertH $13547-25/hour
Senior Accounting Tech $76.26/hour

Maintenance Workers

Maintenance Supervisor $117.25/hour
Senior Maintenance Worker $90.12/hour
Lead Maintenance Worker $106.98/hour

Operations Workers

Operations Officer $105.61/hour

>d Y



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

Small UAS Operations (two Officers) $211.22/hour

A charge of $150 for each new lease processing action including but not limited to

the following examples: a new lease sign up, change of hangar, sale of private

hangar, refund of waitlist deposits if before notice of removal.

LEASE/LICENSE AGREEMENTS

Full-Service Aeronautical Service Provider (ASP): An operator that provides
a full range of aviation services as identified in the lease agreement.

Limited Service Aeronautical Service Provider (ASP): Specialized aircraft
business and services, excluding fueling services, as identified in the lease

Specialty Aviation Operations: (Single-Service ASP), Air taxi, charter,
(non-scheduled) air carrier, aircraft sales, aircraft leasing, and non-profit
flying clubs and flight schools.

Industrial or Non-Aaviation Business: Business of a type whose operations
are not dependent on runway access or airport orientation.

Land Leases: Tenant constructs a building or makes improvements on

Refer to Minimum Aeronautical Standards for commercial leases.

K. Administration Fee
IX.
A. Types of Tenancy/Use
1:
2.
agreement.
3.
4.
5.
County owned land.
NOTE:
B.

Improved Areas - Hangar, Office, Shop, Tie-downs, etc.

1.

Base Rent Leases - No Percentage

Base rents are established by Fair Market Value comparisons.

Percentage Rent Leases

All percentage rent leases, as determined by the Director of Airports, are
subject to a fixed minimum rent based on the square footage of the
premises (hangar, shop, and office space) and/or a predetermined
percentage of the gross receipts for various uses.

Tie-Down Spaces - Full Service and Limited ASP

15

5db5



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/2168

Tie-down spaces may be assigned to the ASP in their respective leases
based upon the following criteria only:

a) One tie-down space may be assigned to the Full Service or Limited
ASP upon a demonstrated need for each 2,000-sq. ft. of hangar,
office, and shop space leased. (A demonstrated need would be a
flight school with a number of owned or leased aircraft; such
tie-downs shall not be rented month to month.)

b) Additional Tie-down spaces requested by the ASP may be obtained
through execution of a tie-down License Agreement and the payment
of fees as shown in Section |, B and will be considered as additional
rent.

4. Options

All rents and fees for option tenancy shall be adjusted to reflect the rate as set forth
in the Board-approved Rent and Fee Schedule that is in effect on the date that the
option becomes effective, or at the end of every fifth year of term, or as specified
in lease.

C. Terminal Areas - Building and Parking (Oxnard)

Air Carrier

Air Taxi and Air Charter (Non-scheduled)
Auto Rental (Rent-a-Car)

Travel Agency

Lobby Concessionaire or Licensee

ahN =

a) Term: Up to 5 years

b) Minimum Rents: Established at Fair Market VValue based on
comparisons.

C) Percentage Rents: Amount by which specified percentage rent
exceeds minimum for counter, office, and cargo area (and fee for
parking spaces if included in lease agreement).

NOTES:

1) In addition to space rental, auto rental tenants shall pay quarterly 10% of gross
receipts. Assigned parking shall be at $20/month per space (5 spaces
minimum).

2) Travel Agency tenants shall pay $100 minimum or more per month vs. 1/2%
on first $250,000 gross sales and 1% over.

16

5d bl



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

D.

Xl

Off-Airport Auto Rental (Rent-A-Car)

Shall report and pay 8.5% of gross receipts attributed to airport pick-ups and
execute a license and use agreement with the County.

Restaurant

1.

2.

Major operation — Base and/or percentage rent as prescribed in lease
contract with Board of Supervisors approval. (Longer than 5-year lease.)

Minor operation — Minimum base rent and/or 7% gross receipts.
(5 years or less.)

ACCESS TO AIRPORT FROM ADJACENT PRIVATE PROPERTY

A

All requests for company/private aircraft oriented uses shall be considered
as a special situation and must be approved on an individual basis by the
Director of Airports.

Authorization for access to the Airports will be given on County's License
Agreement format.

The applicant for access to the Airport shall be required to pay for all
improvements on Airports' property that are necessary and prerequisite, in
the opinion of the Director of Airports, to accommodate the applicant's
access needs. If Licensee is not required by County to remove all such
improvements and restore the property to its original condition, the
improvements shall become the property of the County.

Minimum rents and percentages for access may be negotiated based on
type and intensity of airport use.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR AIRPORT LESSEES, LICENSEES AND

PERMITTEES

See Exhibit "A" attached.

17

5d b



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/218

EXHIBIT "A"

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR AIRPORTS
LESSEES, LICENSEES AND PERMITTEES

l. LESSEES

These are prescribed minimum limits; however, good business indicates that higher limits
should be used for most businesses. In any given year, all lessees, licensees, and
permittees shall maintain, or increase to maintain, the minimum insurance requirements
as stipulated in the then current year Board-approved Rent and Fee Schedule. (Minimum
insurance limits are subject to possible adjustment annually). Current year refers to the
present County fiscal year and not the year a lease was signed.

A Aeronautical Service Providers: Tenant offers full range of ASP services, as

defined in the Minimum Aeronautical Standards.

1.

Commercial General Liability: “Occurrence” coverage in the minimum
amount of $2,000,000 combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury & property
damage each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate, including personal
injury, broad form property damage, products/ completed operations, broad
form blanket contractual and $100,000 fire legal liability.

Aircraft and Airport Operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations: Combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $2,000,000 each occurrence.

Hangar Keepers Liability: $100,000 per aircraft, but not less than the
replacement value of all aircraft in the care, custody and control of tenant.

Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence. Exception: fuel trucks (see below).

Fuel Truck: $1,000,000 per vehicle.

Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California
statutory requirements, for all employees of Tenant and Employer’s Liability in
the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and Department
of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured endorsement and a
certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day cancellation notice. The
County of Ventura must be informed immediately if the general aggregate of
insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must be purchased to meet the

above requirements.

18



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/219

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Tenant is a sole proprietor with no
employees, volunteers or family members working in the business. Proof of
Personal Medical Insurance will be required instead.

B. Air Carriers:

1. Commercial General Liability: “Occurrence” coverage in the minimum
amount of $50,000,000 combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury & property
damage each occurrence and $50,000,000 aggregate, including personal
injury, broad form property damage, products/ completed operations, broad
form blanket contractual and $100,000 fire legal liability.

2. Aircraft and Airport Operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations: Combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $50,000,000.

3. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $1,000,000 for each
occurrence.

4, Workers’ Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California

statutory requirements, for all employees of Tenant and Employer’s Liability
in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

5. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. The County must be informed immediately if the general
aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must be
purchased to meet the above requirements.

C. Specialty Aviation Operations: Includes air taxi/charter (Part 135), aircraft leasing,
and any aircraft operating under a Special Airworthiness Certificate.

1. Commercial General Liability: “Occurrence” coverage in the minimum
amount of $2,000,000 combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury & property
damage each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate, including personal
injury, broad form property damage, products/ completed operations, broad
form blanket contractual and $100,000 fire legal liability.

2. Aircraft and Airport Operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations: Combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $2,000,000 each occurrence.

3. Hangar Keepers Liability: $100,000 per aircraft, but not less than the replacement

5404

19



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/218

value of all aircraft in the care, custody and control of tenant.
4. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos, scheduled
autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $500,000 for each occurrence.

9] Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California statutory
requirements, for all employees of Tenant and Employer’s Liability in the minimum
amount of $1,000,000.

6. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and Department of
Airports as additional insured. An additional insured endorsement and a certificate
of insurance must be provided with a 30-day cancellation notice. The County must
be informed immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above requirements.

NOTE:
a) The WC requirement is waived only if the Tenant is a sole proprietor with no
employees, volunteers or family members working in the business. Proof of
personal medical insurance will be required instead.

b) Only paragraphs 1, 2, and 6 above would apply to an experimental aircraft
operating under a Special Airworthiness Certificate.

D. Flying Clubs: (As defined in the Minimum Aeronautical Standards)

1. Commercial _General Liability, including contractual, products and
completed operations and owner's and contractors' protective: Combined
single limits for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 each
occurrence.

2. Aircraft and Airport Operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations: Combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage of $1,000,000 each occurrence.

3. Owned and Non-Owned Auto Liability: (if applicable) Limits of $500,000 for
each occurrence.

4, Hangar Keepers Liability: (if applicable) $100,000 per aircraft, but not less
than the replacement value of all aircraft in the care, custody and control of
tenant.

5. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. The County must be informed immediately if the
general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must
be purchased to meet the above requirements.

” 54710



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/218

Industrial and Non-Aaviation Business:

1.

NOTE:

Commercial General Liability: “Occurrence” coverage in the minimum
amount of $2,000,000 combined single limit (CSL) bodily injury & property
damage each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate, including personal
injury, broad form property damage, products/ completed operations, broad
form blanket contractual and $100,000 fire legal liability.

Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence.

Workers’ Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California
statutory requirements, for all employees of Tenant and Employer’s Liability
in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. The County must be informed immediately if the
general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must
be purchased to meet the above requirements.

If Lessee is self-insured for any or all of the required insurance coverage’s,
Lessee agrees to provide Lessor with written confirmation that Lessee is a
duly authorized and funded self-insured entity for those coverage’s under
the laws of the State of California. Lessor agrees to accept Lessees status
as a self-insured entity as satisfactory compliance with Lessor's normal
insurance requirements as listed above.

Any insurance limits required that exceed the Lessees self-insured
coverage shall be in compliance with the insurance requirements listed
above. In the event Lessee decides to no longer be self-insured, Lessee
agrees to provide Lessor with thirty (30) days advance written notice of the
effective date of this change in status. Thereafter, Lessee agrees to provide
Lessor with appropriate evidence of insurance coverage(s) as listed above.

The WC requirement is waived only if the Tenant is a sole proprietor with
no employees, volunteers or family members working in the business.
Proof of Personal Medical Insurance will be required instead.

LESSEES AND LICENSEES (Includes all based aircraft, as well as ultra-lights,

occupying tiedowns, County and/or private hangars)

A

Aircraft Liability: Bodily injury including occupants and property damage

S5a0\

21



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/218

liability, $100,000 each person, $100,000 property damage, $500,000
each accident. Seats may be excluded.

B. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. For aircraft, which are out of License, not airworthy, a
signed statement to that fact with a promise to obtain the required
insurance before operating said aircraft shall be filed in lieu of the
certificate. The County of Ventura Department of Airports must be
informed immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded
and additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

M. PERMITTEES

A. Commercial Activity Permit - Non-Aircraft:

1. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and
completed operations and owners' and contractors' protective:
Combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$2,000,000 to $5,000,000 each occurrence, depending upon the
type of activity proposed.

2. Owned and Non-owned Auto Liability: Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence.

3. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California statutory requirements, for all employees of Permittee and
Employer’s Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

4. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a
30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Permittee is a sole
proprietor with no employees, volunteers or family members working
in the business. Proof of Personal Medical Insurance will be required

instead.
B. Commercial Activities Permit - Aircraft:
1. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and

22

Sd T



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/219

completed operations and owners' and contractors' protective:
Combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$2,000,000 each occurrence.

2. Aircraft and airport operations, including passengers, products and
completed operations or Premises Liability (whichever is deemed
appropriate by the County): Combined single limit for bodily injury
and property damage $1,000,000 each occurrence.

3. Owned and Non-owned Auto Liability: Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence.

4. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California statutory requirements, for all employees of Permittee and
Employer’s Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

5. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a
30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Permittee is a sole
proprietor with no employees, volunteers or family members working
in the business. Proof of Personal Medical Insurance will be required

instead.
C. Commercial Activities Permit — Aircraft Mobile Mechanics:
1. Commercial General Liability: Combined single limits for bodily injury

and property damage of $1,000,000 each occurrence.

2. Products Liability and Completed Operations Coverage: Combined
single limit liability coverage $500,000 each occurrence.

81 Hangar Keepers Legal Liability, ground coverage, including taxi
coverage: $100,000 each aircraft, $100,000 each occurrence.

4, Owned and Non-owned Auto Liability: Limits of $500,000 for each
occurrence.

5s Workers'" Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California statutory requirements, for all employees of Permittee and
Employer’s Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

50713

23



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

6. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a
30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

NOTE: The WC requirement is waived only if the Permittee is a sole
proprietor with no employees, volunteers or family members working
in the business. Proof of Personal Medical Insurance will be required
instead.

D. Special Use Permits:

1. Movie and Commercial Filming:

a. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products

and completed operations and owners' and contractors'
protective: Combined single limits for bodily injury and
property damage, $2,000,000 to $5,000,000 or higher each
occurrence, depending upon the type of activity proposed.

b. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos,
non-owned autos, scheduled autos and uninsured motorists.
Limits of $2,000,000 to $5,000,000 for each occurrence,
depending upon the type of activity proposed.

C. Indemnification and Hold Harmless Clause - All activities:
Each permit/license/lease shall contain a clause requiring that
all activities and/or work set forth within the agreement shall
be at the risk of the permittee/licensee/lessee alone.
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant must agree to defend (at
County's request), indemnify and save harmless the
Department of Airports and the County of Ventura, its boards,
agencies, departments, officers, employees, agents and
volunteers (hereinafter referred to as County), from and
against any and all claims, lawsuits — whether against
Permittee, County or others, judgments, debts, demands and
liability, including, without limitation, those arising from injuries
or death of persons and/or for damages to property, arising
directly or indirectly out of Tenant's use or occupancy of the
Leased Premises or out of operations conducted or
subsidized in whole or in part by Permittee.

24

544



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/219

d.

Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance
with California statutory requirements, for all employees of
Permittee and Employer's Liability in the minimum amount of
$1,000,000.

The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura
and Department of Airports as additional insured. An
additional insured endorsement and a certificate of insurance
must be provided with a 30-day cancellation notice. The
County must be informed immediately if the general
aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage
must be purchased to meet the above requirements.

2. Commercial Photography:

a.

Commercial General Liability including contractual, products
and completed operations and owners' and contractors'
protective: Combined single limits for bodily injury and
property damage, $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 or higher each
occurrence, depending upon the type of activity proposed.

Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos,
non-owned autos, scheduled autos and uninsured motorists.
Limits of $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 for each occurrence,
depending upon the type of activity proposed.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless Clause - All activities:
Each permit/license/lease shall contain a clause requiring that
all activities and/or work set forth within the agreement shall
be at the risk of the permittee/licensee/lessee alone.
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant must agree to defend (at
County’s request), indemnify and save harmless the
Department of Airports and the County of Ventura, its boards,
agencies, departments, officers, employees, agents and
volunteers (hereinafter referred to as County), from and
against any and all claims, lawsuits — whether against
Permittee, County or others, judgments, debts, demands and
liability, including, without limitation, those arising from injuries
or death of persons and/or for damages to property, arising
directly or indirectly out of Tenant's use or occupancy of the
Leased Premises or out of operations conducted or
subsidized in whole or in part by Permittee.

Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance
with California statutory requirements, for all employees of
Permittee and Employer’s Liability in the minimum amount of

54715

25



Department of Airports

Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/218

$1,000,000.

e. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura
and Department of Airports as additional insured. An
additional insured endorsement and a certificate of insurance
must be provided with a 30-day cancellation notice. The
County must be informed immediately if the general
aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage
must be purchased to meet the above requirements.

3. Permitted Public Events/Non-Air Shows:

a.

Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and
completed operations _and owners' and contractors' protective:
Combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$1,000,000 to $2,000,000 or higher each occurrence, depending
upon the type of activity proposed.

Commercial Auto Policy: Including all autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $500,000 for
each occurrence.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless Clause - All activities: Each
permit/license/lease shall contain a clause requiring that all activities
and/or work set forth within the agreement shall be at the risk of the
permittee/licensee/lessee alone. Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant
must agree to defend (at County’s request), indemnify and save
harmless the Department of Airports and the County of Ventura, its
boards, agencies, departments, officers, employees, agents and
volunteers (hereinafter referred to as COUNTY), from and against
any and all claims, lawsuits ~— whether against
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant, COUNTY or others, judgments,
debts, demands and liability, including, without limitation, those
arising from injuries or death of persons and/or for damages to
property, arising directly or indirectly out of Tenant's use or
occupancy of the Leased Premises or out of operations conducted
or subsidized in whole or in part by
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant.

Workers’ Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with

California  statutory requirements, for all employees of
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant and Employer’s Liability in the
minimum amount of $1,000,000.

The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and

Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a

547k

26



Department of Airports

Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above
requirements.

4, Permitted Aeronautical Events: (Air shows, fly-ins, air meets, contests or
exhibitions).
a. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and

completed operations and owners' and contractors' protective:
Combined single limits for bodily injury and property damage of
$2,000,000 to $5,000,000 each occurrence.

Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned
autos, scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of
$1,000,000 for each occurrence

Indemnification and Hold Harmless Clause - All activities: Each
permit/license/lease shall contain a clause requiring that all activities
and/or work set forth within the agreement shall be at the risk of the
permittee/licensee/ lessee alone.
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant must agree to defend (at
County’s request), indemnify and save harmless the Department of
Airports and the County of Ventura, its boards, agencies,
departments, officers, employees, agents and volunteers
(hereinafter referred to as COUNTY), from and against any and all
claims, lawsuits - whether against
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant, COUNTY or others, judgments,
debts, demands and liability, including, without limitation, those
arising from injuries or death of persons and/or for damages to
property, arising directly or indirectly out of
Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant’'s use or occupancy of the
Leased Premises or out of operations conducted or subsidized in
whole or in part by Permittee/Licensee/Lessee/Tenant.

Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with
California  statutory requirements, for all employees of
Permittee/Licensee/lLessee/Tenant and Employer's Liability in the
minimum amount of $1,000,000.

The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a
30-day cancellation notice. The County must be informed
immediately if the general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and
additional coverage must be purchased to meet the above

Sd

27



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

requirements.

f. In addition to obtaining the above required insurance, the sponsor
shall pay the additional premium charged to the Department of
Airports by their insurance carrier, if any.

NOTE: Limits for specific events may be negotiated with the insurance
carrier on a case-by-case basis. Requests for such consideration
must be submitted to the Director of Airports for referral to Risk
Management.

IV. CONTRACTORS

A. Airport Contractors:

1. Commercial General Liability including contractual, products and
completed operations and owners' and contractors' protective: Combined
single limits for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence
shall be as prescribed by County of Ventura Risk Management/ Board of
Supervisors.

2. Commercial Auto Policy: Including all owned autos, non-owned autos,
scheduled autos and uninsured motorists. Limits of $1,000,000 for each
occurrence, but Public Works insurance segment may increase limits.

3. Workers' Compensation (WC) coverage, in full compliance with California
statutory requirements, for all employees of Contractor and Employer’s
Liability in the minimum amount of $1,000,000.

4. The above policy/policies must name the County of Ventura and
Department of Airports as additional insured. An additional insured
endorsement and a certificate of insurance must be provided with a 30-day
cancellation notice. The County must be informed immediately if the
general aggregate of insurance is exceeded and additional coverage must
be purchased to meet the above requirements.

The foregoing insurance requirements of Exhibit “A” may be amended for special
circumstances as approved by County Risk Manager.

28

54713



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/216

EXHIBIT “B”
PRIVATE HANGARS - GROUND AREA
The hangars listed below are identified by general brand nameftype and by square

footage. The square footage was obtained by actual measurement (outside) and rounded
down to the next increment of 10 sq. ft. to allow for minor irregularities:

BRAND NAME/TYPE SQUARE FOOTAGE
Port-A-Port Standard 800
Port-A-Port Expando/Executive 850
Fixed T, Port-A-Port Double Expando, and Fleetwood 1,000
Port-A-Port Executive | 1,050
H & F Box 1,250
Fleetwood Rectangular and Port-A-Port Executive I 1,350
Port-A-Port Large T 1,400
Port-A-Port, Nunno, Craftsman Rectangular 1,500
Fleetwood Box 1,800
H & F, Pasco Box, Straun 2,000
H&F 2,250
Port-A-Port 2,250
Waffle Crete 2,750
Port-A-Port Box 2,900
Port-A-Port Box 3,000
Waffle Crete 4,740

Hangars not falling within categories identified above will pay rents calculated at the rate
listed in Section I, D. and will be rounded down to next increment of 10 sq. ft.

29

5479



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ESTABLISHING RENTS, FEES, AND INSURANCE
REQUIREMENTS FOR THE COUNTY,
DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS, AND DELEGATING
AUTHORITY FOR EXECUTION OF CERTAIN
AGREEMENTS SUBJECT TO SPECIFIED GUIDELINES

THE VENTURA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS HEREBY ORDERS AND
RESOLVES THE FOLLOWING:

RENTS, FEES, AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The Rents, Fees, and Insurance Requirements prescribed in the attached
Schedule are hereby approved and adopted, and all prior inconsistent schedules
are repealed.

POLICY FOR ESTABLISHING RENTS, RATES AND FEES

The Rent and Fee Schedules embrace a myriad of facilities and services which
require different adjustment emphasis for establishing fair market rents or
appropriate fees. In the event that there is a disagreement between the County
and a Tenant or Vendor regarding the imposition of rents and fees under this Rent
and Fee Schedule, the parties may, but are not required to, submit to either binding
arbitration or non-binding mediation. All Department of Airports' properties,
facilities, and services have been placed into five categories for the purpose of
defining rent and fee setting policies which have been historically used. They are
outlined as follows:

Policy 1:

It shall be County policy that those properties and/or facilities unrelated to the
fundamental "public services" afforded by the Oxnard and Camarillo Airports shall
be appraised for fair market rental values including percentage rents. with
adjustment emphasis on comparative data from the private sector. This approach
will produce a fair return to the County. Examples: industrial/office buildings,
proposed industrial park, agriculture land leases.

NOTE: Excess revenues derived from leases identified above shall not be
used to subsidize user rents and fees related to specific facilities and
services (aircraft tiedowns and storage hangars), but may be used
for financial support of planned capital improvement projects, and
those public-use facilities and services (airfield, visitor parking,
common roads, etc.) for which a total recapture of costs is
recognized to be unrealistic.

i 5d4.0



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210Q

Policy 2:

It shall be County policy that those properties and/or facilities directly related to the

public services afforded by the Department of Airports but operated, however, by
lessees or concessionaires, shall be appraised for fair market value including

percentage rents with adjustment emphasis on comparable data from other
publicly controlled facilities operated by lessees or concessionaires. It is the
intention of the County to have a policy whereby properties and/or facilities
controlled by the Department of Airports, not being used by the County for public
services, will be leased or licensed. The rental charges or fees will be based upon
the then fair market value, taking into consideration comparable properties owned
by other public entities. This approach will also provide a fair return or profit to the
County. Examples of such leases/licenses: scheduled air carrier agreements (for
terminal space), rental car agencies and restaurants.

Policy 2a:

It shall be County policy to recover all costs of any infrastructure required to
develop a Lease parcel from the benefited Lessee through either Lease rents or
assessment, when practical. Such costs shall not be borne by existing tenants or
users of the airports.

Policy 3:

It shall be County policy that the rents and fees for those properties and/or facilities
directly related to the aviation-use public services afforded by the Department of

Airports but operated, however, by lessees or concessionaires, shall be adjusted
to cause an ultimate recapture of the total costs, both direct and indirect, when
practical. Adjustments shall be compared to Market Rate to ensure the cost will
not cause a loss of business. Examples: full, limited and single service providers
of aeronautical services.

Policy 3a:

It shall be County policy that the rents and fees for those properties and/or facilities
that are not-for-profit aviation museums and are operated consistent with the
fundamental public services afforded by the Department of Airports, may be
adjusted to cause less than an ultimate recapture of the totals costs, both direct
and indirect, through reduced rental rates and fees in recognition of the tangible or
intangible benefits to the airport.

Policy 3b:
It shall be County policy that the rents and fees for those properties and/or facilities

which are County owned and County operated consistent with the fundamental
public services afforded by the Department of Airports, shall be adjusted to cause

5d %\

31



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

an ultimate recapture of the total costs, both direct and indirect, when practical.
This approach will result in competitive pricing of County services and serve to
constrain the migration of outside County aircraft operators seeking lower fares.
Adjustments to these rates shall be by cost-recovery analysis every five (5) years,
with interim adjustments calculated by applying the Consumer Price Index (CP1)
every other year. Examples: aircraft tie-down, aircraft storage hangars. In
calculating the costs of the above services (Policies 3 and 3a), that depreciation
attributed to donated assets shall be specifically excluded from such costs. This
is consistent with and in conformance with assurances given under the Federal
Airport Act or the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970 which states that
‘no part of the Federal share of an airport development project shall be included in
the rate base in establishing fees, rates, and charges for users of that airport.”

Policy 3c:

It shall be County policy that the provision by the County of aircraft storage facilities
and/or property for the same purpose, shall be for the exclusive purpose of storing
aircraft deemed to be in an airworthy condition. Temporary exceptions to this
requirement may be granted by the Director of Airports on a case-by-case basis,
upon the demonstration of visible and reasonable progress to bring an aircraft to
airworthy status, consistent with the FAA’s “Policy on the Non-Aeronautical Use of
Airport Hangars,” Docket No. FAA 2014-0463, 81 FR 38906, § Il.b. The Director
of Airports may make such determinations based on periodic inspections of such
facilities and/or property as frequently as once every 90 calendar days. The intent
of this policy is to ensure compliance with the aircraft storage license agreements
with regard to storage of aircraft that are in airworthy condition and/or aircraft that
are being brought to airworthy condition versus non-airworthy aircraft being stored,
in parts or in whole, to obtain storage space that is considered less expensive than
commercially available non-aviation storage space. Examples: aircraft tie-down,
county-owned storage hangars, privately-owned storage hangars.

Policy 3d:

It shall be County policy that private hangar owners subject to an existing Privately-
Owned Aircraft Storage Hangar Lease Adreement who seek approval to
expand/build out resulting in additional square footage or volume, or replace the
hangar, shall offer the County a right-of-first refusal to purchase the hangar at such
a time the owner proceeds to sell the hangar in place. County will respond to
hangar owner in writing within five (5) calendar days of its intent to purchase or not
purchase the hangar. Should the County decline to purchase a hangar, and upon
a request to transfer a hangar to a private party, a month-to-month Privately-
Owned Aircraft Storage Hangar Lease Agreement for privately-owned aircraft
storage hangars may be approved and executed by the Director of Airports with
the buyer, provided the purchase price is no more than 15% less than the price
first offered to the County. Failure on the part of the hangar owner to act in good

faith may result in the transfer not being approved.

32



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

The intent is to prevent the tenant from offering the expanded/built-out/replaced
hangar to the County for an unrealistically high price only to prevent the County
from being a viable purchaser of the hangar. Example: Hangar valuation is $100
(including value of the land). Tenant offers it to the County for $200 (unrealistically
high). The Tenant cannot then offer the sale to another party for less than $170
(85% of $200) without first offering it to the County again at the reduced price.

Policy 4.

It shall be County policy that those services, offered and administered by the
Department of Airports for which a total recapture of costs is recognized to be
inconceivable, be established by comparing fees with other publicly owned and
operated facilities with adjustments emphasizing the recapture of as much of
County costs as possible. However, fees shall be maintained at reasonable levels
so that the preponderance of the general public can avail themselves of the
service. This type of service will continue to reflect a loss; however, it is deemed
to be an appropriate public service. Examples: runways, taxiways, roads, rest
rooms, auto parking lots, visiting aircraft parking, and other public use areas.

Policy 5:

It shall be County policy that those services, and/or supplies furnished to the public
by the Department of Airports and requlated by law or by Administrative procedure,
shall be compensated for by charging fees and deposits calculated to reimburse
all of the administrative and material costs of furnishing same. Annual adjustment
emphasis shall be based upon cost analysis and shall not be subject to fair market
or profit considerations. Examples: commercial activity permits, aircraft towing
and impound fee, document processing fee, and paper material reproduction fee.

M. AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE.

The County Executive Officer or the Director of the Department of Airports are
authorized to execute Leases, Subleases, Licenses, Permits, Special Use/Activity
Permits, Operation Agreements, Extensions, Amendments, Consents, and
Notices of Intent to Terminate and cause Unlawful Detainer Complaints to be filed
on behalf of the County of Ventura as are hereafter defined and in accordance with
the provisions of the attached schedule.

A DEFINITIONS.

1. LEASE OR SUBLEASE: A conveyance of real property rights for
occupancy or use of land, improvements, or a combination thereof.
Under this authority, the Term shall not exceed five (5) years
including options to extend, except that the Director of Airports may
execute a form ground lease for a privately owned aircraft storage
hangar with a term that exceeds five years, if the form ground lease
has been previously approved by the Board of Supervisors.

54%3

33



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

Examples: leasing of land for improvements, leasing of a building or
portion of a building to tenant or concessionaire.

2. LICENSE. A conveyance of "personal" rights for occupancy or use
of property under this authority, limited to one (1) year. License may
be extended subject to specified time with prior Notice of
Termination. Examples: Aircraft tie-downs, storage, portable
hangars, ground use, vending machines, food or merchandise
catering truck, carousel sign use, and land encroachments.

3 PERMIT. A personal right to occupy or use property under this
authority, limited to maximum term of one (1) year. Permit may be
extended subject to 30-day Notice of Termination. Examples:
Temporary occupancy for fixing of premises, aircraft repair work or
wash/wax activities.

4, SPECIAL USE/ACTIVITY PERMIT. A personal right to occupy,
use, or conduct a specified "activity", limited under this authority to
a maximum of seven (7) days. (Longer periods must be renewed
daily.) Examples: Air shows, movie or TV filming, photography or
commercial demonstration.

5. OPERATIONAL AGREEMENTS. Mutually agreed upon procedures
pertaining to operational matters established between the
Department of Airports and other governmental agencies.

6. EXTENSION/AMENDMENT/CONSENT/AND NOTICE OF INTENT
TO TERMINATE.

a) An Extension is a continuation of an existing Board-approved
agreement without change, or limited to changes authorized
by this Authority.

b) An Amendment is a change of one or more of the terms,
conditions, or covenants consistent with authorized terms and
amounts specified in Board- approved rent and fee schedules.

c) A Consent is a ratification of a term, condition, or covenant in
an existing agreement executed by the Board made subject
to "County approval". The Director of Airports may issue
Consent after determining proper compliance. This includes
an Assignment of Lease. The Director of Airports may also
approve a "sublease" or "additional use" by lessee but limited
to five (5) years.

d) Notice of Intent to Terminate is a notice by which the Director

544

34



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/210

expresses intent to terminate pursuant to a breach or default.
On a Board-approved Agreement, final termination shall be
subject to Board approval. Leases executed by Director of
Airports may be terminated by the Director of Airports.

B. SECURITY DEPOSIT. All tenants shall provide County with, and at all
times maintain, a Security Deposit in an amount prescribed by this
Resolution. Said amount shall be based on rent and adjusted periodically.
Public entities governed by the Board shall be exempt. Said deposit shall
guarantee tenants' full and faithful performance of all terms and conditions
of their agreement. The following forms of deposit are acceptable: cash,
Time Certificate of Deposit (CD), Irrevocable Letter of Credit, and assigned
Savings Passbook. The following shall be the basis of the amount of the
Deposit unless otherwise stated in the Rent and Fee Schedule:

License Agreement - The deposit shall be equal to one (1) month's rental
rate.
Lease Agreement - The deposit shall be equal to three (3) month's rental
rate.

After three (3) years of good and faithful lease performance (defined as no
defaults or delinquencies), deposits on leases of five (5) years or less may
be reduced to one (1) month, subject however, to a Lease Amendment
providing for the following Liquidated Damages:

Liquidated Damages

County shall have the right to demand, and Lessee agrees to pay
Liquidated Damages in the sum of one percent (1%) of the security
deposit required of Lease, (but not less than $10.00), for each day a
violation exists of any of the following lease conditions and/or lease
articles:

LEASE CONDITIONS AND/OR ARTICLES

USES AND SERVICES

OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONTROLLED PRICES
IMPROVEMENTS AND INVESTMENTS
CONSTRUCTION

INSURANCE

OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL REPORTS AND RECORDS
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

FAA SPECIAL PROVISIONS

35 5445



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/216

C. NEGOTIATIONS, PREPARATIONS, AND LEGAL APPROVAL. The
Leases, Subleases, Licenses, Permits, Special Use/ Activity Permits,
Extensions, Amendments, Consents, and Notices of Intent to Terminate
shall be negotiated and prepared by the Department of Airports or, by
request of the Director of Airports, negotiated and/or prepared by the Public
Works Agency, Real Property Services. All Agreements shall be submitted
to County Counsel's Office for approval as to legal sufficiency prior to final
execution excepting pre-approved, routine "form" documents.

D. TERMINATION DUE TO "REPEATED" VIOLATIONS. The Board of
Supervisors hereby authorizes the Director of Airports to include in selected
agreements the right to issue a "Notice of Termination for Breach of Good
Faith" which would allow termination of an Agreement after tenants
repeating the same violation three (3) times or more within any twelve (12)
month period, regardless of tenants' cure, remedy, or diligent pursuit to
correct violations.

E. BACKGROUND DETERMINATION AND GUIDELINES. No agreement will
be executed under the authority of this RESOLUTION if the County
Executive Officer or the Director of Airports of the Department of Airports
determines that: (1) The proposed use or occupancy is in conflict with the
County's adopted plans for development; (2) The other party(s) to a
proposed Agreement has a reputation, character, or background which
could be detrimental to County's interest; or (3) Such other party(s) does
not have technical knowledge, management ability, or financial capability to
fulfill the purpose and provisions of the Agreement.

F. RENTAL POLICY. It shall continue to be Department of Airports' Policy to
require "ALL" tenants or users of County Airports property to pay rents
established by Board-approved Rent and Fee Schedules; however, the
Director of Airports may determine that certain special services including
labor and/or materials may be accepted in lieu of cash payment of rent
where all other guidelines are consistent with Director of Airports’ Authority.
Director of Airports is authorized to adjust rents incrementally to current rate
to ensure the cost will not cause a loss of business.

G. CONTROVERSIAL OR POLICY SETTING AGREEMENTS. Any
transaction authorized by this Resolution, considered significantly
controversial or policy-setting in the opinion of the County Executive Officer
or the Director of Airports, shall be submitted first to the Aviation Advisory
Commission and appropriate Airport Authority for recommendation and
then to the Board of Supervisors for approval and execution.

AUTHORIZATION TO ESTABLISH FEES

The County Executive Officer, or the Director of Airports is hereby granted limited
authority to establish fees for other uses of airport property not specifically provided

5d%b

36



Department of Airports
Rent & Fee Schedule 7/1/216

for in the attached schedule. Such other fees shall be reasonable and consistent
with the policies and fees established herein. Any such fee considered to be
significant, controversial or policy-setting shall first be submitted to the Aviation
Advisory Commission and appropriate Airport Authority, for recommendation, and
finally to the Board of Supervisors for appropriate action.

THE FOREGOING RECITALS and attached Rent and Fee Schedule are passed,
approved, and adopted by the Board of Supervisors, effective July 1, 20210.

COUNTY OF VENTURA

Date By
Chair, Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: MICHAEL POWERS,
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
County of Ventura, State of California

By

Deputy Clerk of the Board

SEEY



COUNTY ¢f VENTURA

Department of Airports

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT

Month ending March 31, 2021

Tie-downs:

Camarillo Oxnard
Tie-downs Inventory Occupied Available Tie-downs Inventory Occupied Available
County 96 48 48 County 7 2 5
Western Cardinal 25 18 7 Goldenwest Jet Center 15 11 4
Channel Island Aviation 35 30 5 Oxnard Jet Center 8 6 2
Visitor 35 Visitor 11
Total 191 96 60 Total 41 19 22

Airport/Tower Operations: Aircraft Incidents:

Camarillo] Oxnard Camarillo] Oxnard
Current year for the month 15,545 8,575 Current Month 4 0
Last year for the month 11,854 8,069 Current year to date 6 1
% Change 31% 6%
Current year to date 41,872 25,626
Last year to date 42,147 22,235
% Change -1% 15%
Other:
Camarillo Oxnard
Airside Citations Issued 0 0
Landside Citations issued 0 7
Cards issued to transient overnight aircraft 13 11
Noise/nuisance compliants 1 105
Other aircraft ** (Estimate) 120 15
Hangar Waiting List 62 14

** Includes approximate number of aircraft occupying space in both large and small hangars by agreement with lessee or licensee

Ta



COUNTY ¢f VENTURA

Department of Airports

MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT
Month ending April 30, 2021

Hangars and Tie-downs:

Camarillo Oxnard
Inventory Occupied Available Inventory Occupied Available
Hangars Hangars
Private 170 170 0 Private 79 79 0
County 160 118 42 County 66 61 5
Total 330 288 42 Total 145 140 5
Tie-downs Tie-downs
County 96 48 48 County 7 2 5
Western Cardinal 25 18 7 Goldenwest Jet Center 15 11 4
Channel Island Aviation 35 30 5 Oxnard Jet Center 8 6 2
Visitor 35 Visitor 11
Total 191 96 60 | Total 41 19 22
Airport/Tower Operations: Aircraft Incidents:
Camarillo| Oxnard Camarillo| Oxnard
Current year for the month 14,626 9,039 Current Month 3 1
Last year for the month 8,758 3,300 Current year to date 8 9
% Change 67% 174%
Current year to date 53,427 30,923
Last year to date 47,719 21,944
% Change 12% 41%
Other:
Camarillo Oxnard
Airside Citations lssued 0 0
Landside Citations issued 0 5
Cards issued to transient overnight aircraft 27 8
Noise/nuisance compliants 6 19
Other aircraft ** (Estimate) 120 15
Hangar Waiting List 109 20

** Includes approximate number of aircraft occupying space in both large and small hangars by agreement with lessee or licensee

la’ A



1202 ‘Uoten
—
Q

J8Yi0 0, ‘(uieped) s,09 pue yonoj O 3 1, ‘ssyoeoiddy sjduiniy v, ‘yoeoidde passiy N, ‘Buipue 1, ‘yosvel .1, —Iubid Jo spoy

(3oeq Pa|ED 29 0} YSIMm Jou saop Jueuie|dwo)) pasinbay JON H/N

asl0u 0} pajeja. Jou JUIB|dWOD ...

Pa)oBJU0D JoU Jo|id — panoidde 5| v Jo/pue suonesadO Aq panlasqo sem uiajjed Jo yoeoudde |ewlou y .,

uolnesedas Jo} D1V AQ pajoallp Jojpue sainpao.id asiou JO BJEME JO[id 4.

yesue Ajuapi o) sjgeun

4

OllEWED wjen ‘1esn
d/N * } I ‘DALQg W3 MNN 1 SSION e
%0019 00 wdoc-i 62/€
(yuow siyy) (yauows s1p)
uosiad yeiouie jurejdwod yelioae jurejdwod | (shurejdwod jo
pajoejuod pajoejuod SIY} wouy siy} Buipsebas jJo Jo b1y} Jo Jayjeam 9
jueurejdwo) jolid s||e2 jo Jaqwinp | s||ed jo Jaqunp uoneso adA] Jo apoy adA] awi]/aeq
LAOdNIV OTTIHVYINVYD

AYVINIANS LNIVIdINOD JSION ATHLNOW



1202 ‘Uotei ﬂm
0

i plEUXQ wieD “1ead
d/N *okk T [4 924D zadod | C/LT eussa) usened 9SION wdos:z 67/<
ues ooig 0061
e BuIky .
H/N * T NN 193.40S W JANN ANN Mo ! WesG:TT 6T/€
1 ‘asioN
Q 19245 Js2diung
pJeuxo
‘Aemyjied wjed “aesp
YIN sk T T oypmuey | SHdBEUSSD | wiened SR wdop:T 8T/
Y2019 009€
JRUXQ ‘2B ,
/N *kK [4 T Ummv_._n.v c_>>._._n_ C/LT BuUSS3) uisned zo.m_m_.MMQZ Eﬁﬁ_uﬂummm_@m
019 0041 . .
pJeuxQ 192415 WieD 123
d/N K%k [4 [4 Ylg 1seMm CLT eussa) uisned 3SION WeQo:s 81/¢
%20|9 00SS
pJeuxQ wjed
d/N KKk I JANN ‘192115 saung CLT eussa) ulened SSION ‘Apno|) Apped
>o0ig 006¢ wdog: 2T 11/
pleuxQ ‘392.1S wied
d/N %ok [4 [4 Yig 1seM CLT eussa) uisned SSION ‘Apno|) Ajped
%20|g 00SS WeQQ:TT TT/€
JeuxQ ‘aoe
YN sk Z 4 vmmﬁ_m C_E_n_ CLT BUSS) Uloned ;omcww_m““oz En_%%hw b/E
oi|g 00t T . .
(yauow sip) (yauow siy3)
popejuod | pajoejuo) | uossad syl tmm..__wh_mmmm_h_u juiejdwod Yyenae b1y jurejdwod ﬂ_.__w_nﬁwﬂ
jueurejdwo) 30]id wodj sjjed .mﬂ_mu 40 uonedo joadA) J0 9pon joadAL .wm wE_-.__.u\oumn_
Jo JoquinN 10 JoqUINN !
LAOdNIV QHVYNXO

AUVINIANS LNIVIdINOD JSION ATHLNOW

—



L20Z ‘udien

()
He

—

Jay10 .0, ‘(uisned) s,09 pue yonol O B 1, ‘ssyoeoiddy sdny v, ‘yoeoidde passipy W, ‘BuipueT 1, ‘yosxe] .1, — ubil4 Jo apon
(>oeq pajies aq 0] ysim jou saop jueure|dwo)) pasinbay 10N ¥/N

@siou 0} paje|jas jou juleldwor ...
pajoejuoo jou jolid — panoidde O] v Jo/pue suonesadQ Aq pantasqo sem uiajed Jo yoeoidde jeuou y ..

uonesedss Joy O]V Aq pajoaulp Jo/pue sainpaood asiou Jo aleme 10Ild .,

yesoue Ajuapi o) ajqeun

LAOLAIV QUVNXO
AYVININNS LNIV1dINOD 3SION ATHLNOIN



UXON/9XON/Z5EB T/ LLV0TZ0¢//J03514/S 1L G5N/ IS /oAl] /W03 aiEmely
VINDN/YINDN/Z9T8T/LTE0T 0L/ MO/ T LESIN/IYBIF /SN /W0 3IEMeIYS]
VINOW/VINDN/ZP T6 /91701 20/ /203SIU/VIAFSEN/TYETE/aA /W03 2 Iemelyst

UXON/8X0N/Z8 T8 T/9 L E0TC0L/MI03SIY/I0EECN/IUTI/AI[/II0d T IeMel sl
VINOW/YIND3/Z608 /9 T£0TZ0¢/M0ISIY/ZZ8SON/IUSI[}/3AT /W0 5 IeM Imﬂm,_tx Sany
VINDY/YINDN/ZC T8 T/ P TE0LC0¢/MOISIU/Z L8SaN IS /anT| JwodaiemMelyEly /[
X0/ VINDN/Z908 1/ P LEOL0Z/A03SIY/SIHOTZN/ TUBIE/2A1/ W02 sIemeustf//-5aiy

VINDN/VINDN/Z5T00/CTE0TZ0L /! Boum_;x NSETTIN/ Emns ma_\ wod'siemely
BXON/UX0N/Z9Z8T/T1E0TZ0Z/M0ISIU/STZSSN/IUBI /N0 31eMeTy

_qs_uv_?_zuuhqmHQmomcncﬁaom_i;maz:,_.mdaa:ss Emgmzdct sany
OINSH/ONSY/ZL 72 ¢/80E0L 202/ A0TSIY /X8R E LN/IYBIL 2N /W00 BIEMEIyBI/ /501
nn_._BmS\Eou.wnS:o%aEwa.mmﬁc

BJD1EM /W00 3qNINoA MMM [:5d037Y
BZUDIEM/WIOD agnINOA MMM [fisdy

27 UJIEM/IIGI 2gMIN0OA MMM 50130
B¢ 21EM W0 aqnInoA MMM /53y
BZUDIEM W0 3qmInoA MMM /5d310
B UI1EM/ W0 aqInoA MMM /501y
OTjsap=0dde; yoIem/Wwod aqgminoA Mmm/7:sany

MO T-3/MTAGDD=A¢ UDIEMIIDT agMINOA MMM 55Ny
SEHIYIZI30D=Agd0{Sop=ade; YoJEM/WI0D aqnINoA Mmm /5011

M MADHI13=Nga0sap=ade, EBQ{ES SqNINOA MMM /50134

B2 UDIEM/IUOD agmnoA MMM/ Sd1y
27 U01BM /L0 BGNIN0OA MMM/ /Sa1IY
BJUDIEM/WI0D 2qNINOA VM JSany
0NY0VO0ZI0|G=A¢ UDIEM/LUCD BQNINOA MMM//-Sa11Y
YN AYHPJZS9/=ngdosap=ade; (jaiem/iodagminoi mmm/isdny
PNJBUDDSIAI=AE UDIEM IO BgNIN0A MMM/ /:5011Y

HEESH-TOINEN =500V 5ap=0de,; [1eM /03 agnInoA Mmm/7:sd1g

ATONUNGIS TP =Ne YIIEM U0 3G INOA MMM /:5013Y
Qd003¥ 1HOI4

HISNI LHDITd OTTIHYIAYD

YLSNI1IHDITd OTTHYINYD
VINVd YINVYS NOILYIAY dJ
YISNI IHDI14 OTIYVYINYD

SVSVavivd
NOLLYIAY SONVISI TINNYHD
HISNI LHOIMH OTIIHVYIAYD

SVSVEvIvd
no

nvd
NOILVIAY 11V 3A08Y

STO0HIS LHOHH Wi

YINYd YLNVS NOLLYIAY dD
HSVYD

VINVd YANVS NOILVIAY 4O
JOOHIS LHDITd OTIHYINYD

YINVd VLNVS NOLLVIAY 4D
VINYd VLNYS NOLLVIAY dD
SANN NYA Y1 AYIA0DSIQ ¥IV
NOILYIAY SONVISI TINNVHO
SANN NVA V1 AH3AQDSIQ ¥IY
nv>

TOOHDS LHOIMd OTINYINYD

VINVYd YANVS NOILYIAY 43

NOILVIAY N3ISNVILSIYHD

AUV NVYIAYIE0

71 SIHVHS UIV

V SIWVI YIA0UHIS

AYVYIN NYINY3IBO

HVIA NVINY380

W YNNI sT1am

QHYHDIY U

NI STHVHS HIV

NOILVIAV dJ

ONI STAVHS dIV

NOLLVIAV NISNVILSIIHD

V) ' SYSvavivd INI SONIQIOH Avll
NOLLYIAY SANV1SI TINNVHD

ONI SRUVHS dIV

S3DIAY3S NOLLYIAY 483

SONISTOH Avall

211 S31LIND3I O3V

NOLLVIAY NISNVILSIHHD

S311IND3 OY3vY

NOILVIAV 11V JACHY

NOILVIAY NISNVILSIMHD

NOILVIAY SGNVISI TINNVHD

SI1IONV SOT IT1 ¥IANIWINY
HONYY SOLN3IA SOQ W AND SNOWWIS
V10d VINVS NOILVIAY dD

Y3 LSYIANYT NOQT3HS VSIT NMOYdE
OSNION3d NOILVY1SIDIY - INININH L¥Od
¥J HOV34 3DIN3A HOAOIHL ISSOY
V1NVd VINVS NOLLVIAY 4D

SIHVHS YIV

VIONITVA W L1OJS N3s¥31ad

ST1IH YAYNVYD Hd1OONVY L31TA NVA
VINVd YINYS NOLLYIAY dJ

VINVd VINVS NOLLVIAY dD

¥2 AOOMATIOH "N-JT71 V1 AYIAOISIA ¥IV
NOILVIAY SANVISI TINNVHD
QOOMATIOH "ON "V SAI¥IA0ISIQ UiV
VYNLNIA S31LIND3 OYIV

SVD3A SVT STUVHS AXS

2711 SIUVHS HIV

S313ONV SO1 371 HIANININYd
VENLNIA H313d ATVNOY NOSTUV)
VINYd VINVS NOILIVAV dD

V2 " YIINOW VINVS 11 NOLLYIAY JIHANTVA
401vY¥3dO

STZSSN 8F:TT - SE'TT
/899N 6¥:TT - 95°0T
VWPSEN TS:2T-Z5TT
DOEECN L0:CT - €€'TT
T/BSON LE:TT-0S:0T
TL8S9N 6F-TT - v0-TT
AHTCZN OFeT - LTTT
AT9¢8N 9¥:0T - T#0T
ANELSN VY 09:6 - €T:6
89T99N \d EV'¥ - ST'E
J8959N IV 07°6 - 0E:8
STZSSN N EO'¥ - TEE
ASB0ZN Nd ST:E - 8E'T
STCI9IN NV 0Z°6 - 91°8
ANELSN Nd 9T:9 - 2E:S
ASETIN N 05°F - ES°E
AS80TN \Id Z¥'E - 99T
9T908N 8T:¢T -9Z:1T
STZSSN OT'TT - 50:0T
VI8LYN IV SZIT-ST:0T
XNSELN IV TT:0T- 8%'8
STZSSN €5:CT -90:TT
IAST6N \d 8T:C - ZE'T
X8YELN Nd ¢S - BT:T
TTYSIN \Nd BT:E - TT:T
TLTLEN d EE'T - 9Z°2T
JUOBIN WAV ¢ -:E56
49208N  0T:5 - EE€
OXTOTN \d 6Z:F% - 90T
89T99N \d 62:C - TE:T
ANSZSN AV ZT:6 - TT:8
Y1SY6N d 80°C - Z¥iZT
[AZZN OV'CT - ¥T:0T
89T99N \V St6 - LE8
GWBELN Wd ¢ - 0T
£806/N \d €0V - 6£€
DYUITZN Nd EO'¥ - ST'E
£806/N \d £0°€ - EO-C
VI8LVN IV 556 - OV'6
VINPSEN \d £E:9 - 91'S
QONSZSN Vd S¥:S - 20:S
X8VELN Nd 2P - PET
AYO6LN d ZT:T - O¥'CT
GINGELN Y L1°6 - 678
(Q8LE6N \d 85 - ES°C
#11v1 JAIL

120Z/LT/€
120T/LT/€
1202/91/€
1202/91/€
1202/91/¢
1202/tt/e
120C/vt/e
1z0t/vt/e
TZ0T/ET/E

.Tzoz/et/E

120Z/€T/€
teoe/et/e
1202/TT/E
120z/T1/E
1202/TT/€E
120Z/11/€
1202/T1/E
120Z/T1/€
120T/TT/€
1202/11/€
120z/11/€
1Z0T/01/%
1202/01/€
1202/8/€
120Z/8/€
1202/8/€
120/L/€
TzoZ/L/E
T20Z/9/E
1202/9/€
1202/9/€
1202/S/E
120z/S/E
IRt
T20Z/v/€
1202/v/€
1202/¥/€
1202/¥/€
120T/v/E
1z0z/€/€
1202/8/€
1202/2/€
1202/2/€
120Z/2/€
1202/1/€
i1va



dZSI/aTSNIZ9VEL/3CE0T 0L
TR 20502 S 7E0T 202 RIoTTa INES0EN IS 5 W03 3 TEMeIqain /ey
WX O J9XON/ZGT LT /8T E0T.Z0Z /M0 /Spp 8T N/IUBI}/aN /W00 a1emesi//-5any

YXON/dZSN/ZZT8T/LTE0TTOT/MOISIY/IINBELN/ Em,cmw..:_\ Wod aIeMEIY

mwmv_\n_wwthcmﬂhmmoamoN\Eo__meww._”mwzh_._wwz\w.»__._..Eou alemelyatyy//isany

mxoémxozkmoookwmoﬁmoﬁzoa_;?zmmzb; _m g__ wioa sIemely _c SNy
UXON/9X0N/ZLV0E/9Z S0TZ0Z/M0NSIU/ V1T TN/ a1} /oAl WO SIemMeIyaiy/7sany
YINDA/YWDN/ZTY02/9Z €0T 0/ MOIUJONELSN/ IS /aAT /W0 siemelysdiy//-sany

vasI/vasI/ZT191/SZe01Z0zZ/ .Ccﬁix émmmzb_._.m:_.._..« AT/ oY BIEMeIET /7 Sany

HXON/9X03/Z0081/PZE0T L0Z/M0ISIU/HLS6 LN/ IBIL/aA]|/ludd 3iemerysijj//sany
ANANJANAN]Z706 1/ PZE01 C0Z/MOISIY/IINEEZ N/ WUBIL /e[ /W) s IeMeIyEijj//5any
HXOY/9X0ON/Z509T /7201 202/ M03SIY/STZSGN/ I8} /an| /WG 3 IemeIyaif}//sdiy
dZSH/ANNA/ZTTZZ/CCE0T 0/ MI0ISIU/ZE E08N/IYB1/oAT|/Woo aIemeIyaT//sdny
UXON/8XON/ZE0LT/ZZE0T 20T/ MOISIY/YO8 Ly N/ S /oAl W03 aiemeIydily//sony

dZSN/dZSATZEVET/TZE0TZ0Z/MI0ISIY/H 1GETN/ISI]}/aA]|/iiod 3B MBI ] _,S sany

qzuv:«zuthhsﬁNmoﬁNon\\eoﬁ_cézqmmz}ﬁ@m;_:ee ajemely E T z,_
dZ5A/dZ5a/ZE081/ 1201 c0C/MOISIU/FT608N/UBIE/3Al|/Wos aIeMeIdil//sdny
HXON/aXON/ZLFT ¢/ 1 E0Te0L/M0ISIu YO8 LEN/IYSg/aAl]/Wwos 31emesyalyy//:sany
YINDA/YWON/Z2 2L T/12E0120¢/MOISIY/BS8ZSN/ISI}/3n1/wos aiemeIyaiy//sdny
HXON/dZ5H/Z1061/0Z 01202/ MOTSIU/AINGE LN/ UBIE/3Al/ 03 3 eMeIyaI 7/ sany
UXON/ANMN/ZLT61/0CE01 202/ M03S1U 0ra8S N/ U1/ Al Wod aIEMEIUB/ /51y
dZSA/dZS/ZS08T/61E0T 202 /MO T3b6TN/IYS1[ /3N /Wi05" Em;mﬁm.c: Sany
UXON/VINDN/ZESLT/6TE01 ¢0¢/MOSIU/INGS0Z N/ IS}/ 3Al/ WG 3 IBMETa]
UXON/UX0N/Z009T/6 1 E0LE0E/MOISIY /YO8 LPN/IUZI|}/2Al /00 a1emely
dZSH/dZSN/ZLSST/61E01 202/ MOSIY/ZLT LEN/IYSI/an /W0 2IEMelY
qzuv:«suthow:mdmoﬂNom?oaziﬁﬂzb&@we_\EB aiemely

dZSH/dZSH/ZEV8T/BTEOTZOT/MOISIY/AVOLTN/ Eﬂ__lwwm...__x W Em?mu:mt_.._\x sany
UXON/9XON/Z95 LT/ T E0LZ0L/MOTSIY/STTSSN/IUSIH/3Al /W03 3iemeIyai/7:
JZSATAZSATZECTL]LTE0T C0¢/MOISIY/8GTIgN/ IS /BNl /W03 s IeMEI S} /7500y
HXON/EXON/Z6ET{/LTE0TC0E/MOISIY/IOEECN/IBII/BAl| /0T s emeIyaI]//7sony

YINVd VINYS NOILYIAV dD

Y1NVd YINVS NOILYIAY d3

nyo

VYINVd VINVS NOILYIAY dO
S1NYd YINVYS NOILVIAY dD
VINVYd YANVS NOILVIAY dJ
Y1NYd YINVS NOILLYIAY d3

HLISNI LHOIT4 OTIHVYIAYD

Y1INVd VANVS NOILVIAY 4D

VINVd VANVS NOILYIAY d2

NOILYIAY 1TV JACEY
nyd

ny>

NOILVIAY SONVISI TINNVHD
Y1NVd VINYS NOILVIAY 4D
YLISNI LHDIT OTIYYNYD
NOLLVIAY dD

nvo

NOLLVIAY SONVISI TINNYHD
YINYd YLNYS NOILVIAY dD

nv>
VINYd YINVS NOILYIAY dD

YINYd YINVS NOILVIAV dD

NOLLVIAV d3

Ad¥3d NO13S

32NY¥8 HONVISNY
NOILVIAV dD

JT1 TEZ SONIQTOH TVLIdvD
JNI SIOVINI INHORYIV

ONI S31LIND3 0Y¥3vY

DNI S3TALSIHIT WNIWIYL
NOILVIAV dD

NOLLYIAY 42

NOILVIAV dD

NOILVIAV dD

JT1 SANIMTIVL LS3IMHLNOS
VYW HSINVOOW

11 A313X438 1aNYHE

ONI SIAVHS dIv

ONI NOILVIAY N3GANY
NOILVIAY d3

NOLLYIAV NISNVILSIYHD
NOILVIAV dD

ONI NOILVIAY N3SNVLLSIMHD
JONINOILVIAV 1TV JA08Y
S31LIND3 Y3V

JNI 8072 ONIATY 1TvE 1H9I3
NOILYIAY NISNVILSRHHD
ONIENTI DNIATI 17vE LHDI3
DNI S31LINDI 0Y¥3v

Y SYINOHL 4403

NOILVIAY SANVTSI TINNVHD
NOILVIAV dD

NI STHVHS HIV

NOLLVIAV dD

$311IND3 O¥3v

ONI NOLLVIAV SANY1SI TINNYHD
NOLLVIAV dD

NI gNTD SNIATY ¥3ddVD
ONION3d NOILVYLSIOIY
AdY3d NO13S

S31LIND3 oYV

NOLLVIAY dD
VORYINILLINOD

NI SONIQTOH NOILVIAY DN
NOILYANNO4 T 3¥Nyi4
NOILVIAV NISNVILSIHHD
NOILVIAY d2

V SINVI YIQOYHIS

d3Z/TN \Nd L¥:S - 0T'Y
INB90CN Nd TZZ - ET'T
OPP8IN vV ZE:0T - 756
dd/v/N ¥ 80:TT - T0'6
dMIZSN Nd 95:7 - SS°€
Z66STN Nd 05°F - 85°€
HI86TN 0S:ZT - 8E:0T
YSTIEN TS'TT - ¥¥:0T
AINBELN F ET'TT- EF:0T
89T99N / S#TT -¥¥:0T
dd{¥LN Nd 9T:C - 9T:T
dd/y/N AV €76 - 058
6867SN \Nd ST:G - v
ANTEN \d 0E:S - St'v
HLZ8TN \d 9€:Z - ST'T
ANELSN N LET- 70T
Q8LEGN d 50:Z - 90:ZT
89T99N ¥C-1T - 9E:0T
STCSSN v 5701 - 156
GWGELN WV ¥2:6 - ¥T'8
STZSSN 9¢:TT -¢E:0T
VVSSEN v £0:0T - €5:8
HL86TN SETT - €E0T
JINEETN d 9T - 0S°TT
STZSSN AV EV:6 - 018
YO8N \d ¥5°€ - 6%°¢
VI8LYN ¥ LEQT - 8E'6
ALSBIN d £0:T - LT:2T
STZ99N T¥TT - 8Z:0T
HWGEELN 6E:TT - S¥0T
VWPSEN vETT -9€:0T
VI608N 6¥'1T - €€:0T
VI8LYN Nd THE - €202
8G8ZSN ¥ 60:0T - 656
GW6ELN B¥TT - SE:TT
9¥98SN T#:2T -8T:CT
14¥6YN €C-TT - 6€:0T
W690ZN Lt7'0T - EE:0T
VIBLYN NV LT:6-9E:8
TLTLE6N NV OF°6 - €€°8
HdVT/N AV 9T:6 - 08
AYEEN \d v'v - 0E'C
AVOLIN ETZT-6TTIT
STZSSN7 €€ TT TE:0T
89T99N \d ¥ - 85:C
J0EETN Vd 6T:€ - 9T+C

1202/82/¢€
1202/82/€
1z0z/82/€
1Z02/82/€
Te0/Le/E
1202/L2/€
120e/L2/€
T20t/LT/E
1202/L2/E
T20e/LT/E
1zoz/Le/s
Teoe/eLe/e
120Z/92/€
1202/92/¢
1202/92/¢
120Z/92/¢
1202/92/¢
1202/9¢/¢
1207/9t/¢
1202/92/€
120t/Se/e
120t/57/€
120Z/vT/E
1202/vT/€
120Z/vT/E
Teoe/ee/e
1zZ02/TT/E
TZ02/TT/€E
1z0e/1e/e
1202/12/E
T20e/1e/¢E
120Z/1T/€E
1eoz/1z/e
1202/12/€
1202/02/€
1202/0Z/€
120z/61/€
1207/61/€
1e0e/6T/e
120Z/61/€
T202/61/€
1202/81/€
1Z0t/81/€
120¢/81/¢
120/L1/€
1202/L1/€

1o



UXON/9X0N/Z5 100/ L0P0T Z0Z,/ /03Iy /Y8 LN/ UBI/3Alj/Wod 2 emeyaly//sany
UXOM/UX0Y/Z901¢/0EEOTZ0E/ 015U/ LZ8 TN/ 1L/ 3A]]/WoD SIemeIys|[y//-sa1y
HXON/UX0N/ZES1Z/0EEOT Z0Z/MOTSIY/H 186 TN/ 381/ Al /ii00 3 1emMeIysI 7/ 501y
OISIYJETTELNY _Euz_\Eau.mhmgﬂxg.c‘ﬂuﬁa:
UXON/dZoN/Z5500/0EE01Z02/M03514/GIT9ON /I iy /anl] /w0 E.@s|m£m.§ sany
UXOMN/UXON/ZTT1¢/67E0T20¢//M0151U/ V178 TN/IUSI/3Al /WO 2 EMeIyd!
OISI/BNGELN/IZTI/aA /03 aIEMETE]
VINDH/UXON/ZV0EL/6¢E0TZ0Z/M0ISIY]Z80BLN/IYSI]}/3A]| /W03 S IeMEIL ]
UXOY/UX0M/Z2T1¢/62E0120¢/MOISIY/L806LN/3BIL/aA|JWos” Emsﬂxm_.c\\ sdny
UXON/ANAN/ZOV0Z/6¢EOTC0Z/A0351Y/ L806L N/ 18I/ aNI|j 00 SJemelyaif//-sany

01SI4/dZZ ESN/AU3L a>__\Eou w._m__sme B/ /sany
ANSOI/ANAN/Z0Z00/6Z E0TZ0Z/MOISIY/INYYOE N34S /aA] Jwooalemelsily//sany

nyo

nvd

YINVd YINVS NOILVIAY 42

VINYd VINVS NOILYIAY dD
SANN NYA V1 AH3IA0DSIT HIV
SANN NVA V1 AH3A0DSIA HIY
SANN NVA Y1 AY3A0DSIQ ¥IY

YINYd YLINYS NOLLYIAY d2

YLSNI LHOIM4 OTIYIAYD

$31LIN03 043V

1I A313X438 LANVYE

531LIND3 Od3av

NOLLVIAY AVMANS

NOILVIAV d]

11 AF13NY3IE LANVYE

NOILVIAY dD

V) QOOMATIOH "N-DT1 ¥1 AYIAODSIA ¥V
V3 AOOMATIOH "N-DT1 ¥1 A4IAODISIA dIV
¥2 QOOMATIOH "N-DT1 V1 A4IAO0ISIA HIV
NOILLVIAVY d3

D711 S3UVHS HIV

NOILVIAV XV3id AIS

VD “STIIH A143A38 DT HIV dve

VOBLYN Vd EE:S - 55
HLZ8TN Nd £T:Z - L¥'T
HI86TN Nd TE€ - DE:Z
ETTELN Id $T:2- SO:TT
89T99N \Nd 60:9 - TES
HLZ8TIN \d ¥T:€ - ¥0:2
BNGELN Nd LET - LTT
£806/N \d TT:S - OV'E
£806LN Vd SO'E - 8T:Z
£806/N \Nd THT - LT'T
CLTL6N  00:0T - €538
ONELSN Nd P19 - TES
dTTESN \d 719 - 8E'Y
YYOZN A] 95:9 - TT:§

Tob

120Z/1€/€
T202/0€/€
1207/0€/€
120Z/0€E/€
1202/62/€
1z0z/62/€
1202/62/€
1z0t/6e/E
1202/62/€
1202/62/€
Troe/6z/e
1202/8¢2/€
1202/8¢/€
1202/82/¢



1202 ‘judy

‘o

=

1ay10 .0, ‘(uiayed) s,09 pue yono] O % 1, ‘seyoeosddy aidiynp v, ‘uoeoidde passipy N, ‘Buipue 1, ‘Hoaxel .1, —Ybil4 jo spoly
(3oeq pa||ed 29 0} ysim jou saop jueule|dwo)) paiinbay Jo0N ¥/N

asiou 0} pajejal Jou Wieldwo) ...

Pa10BIUOD J0U J0|id — panoidde 9]y Jo/pue suonelsadO Agq paaiasgo sem uialied Jo yoeosdde jewiou y .,

uoieJedss 1o} D1V Aq pajoalip Jojpue sainpaocold 8SI0U JO SJBME JO|Id 4

yesoule Ajyuapl 0} sjqeun

oj|uewe) Jes|n
d/N xxx 9 MNN 1Q w3 ¥20ig 001 MNN 1 SSION wdog:/ 0E/Y
o||Lewe) 1ea|n
d/N wvx 9 MNN "Jg w3 x20ig 001 MNN 1 SSION wdgo:/ OE/Y
d/N 9 MNN oIHEREO MNN 1 SSION oo
At “Jg W3 32019 001 ) wdeo:/ 0/
d/N 9 MNN OIHEHES MNN 1 SSION e
1 w[3 ¥90ig 00} e wdg|:g 0E/Yy
d/N 9 MNN e MNN 1 SSION WIED e8i
“1Q w3 o0ig 001 . wdgl:9 0E/t
o||uewe) BuiA|4 moT wien ‘Jes|n
ey 9 A il ; g Wiz oolg 00} ahh ) ‘9SION wdpo:L Ze/y
uouw si Utiowl siu3
pajoejuod pa3)oejuod A____Mﬂwa m.__“__w t%nwmﬁ%wmu yeaoue yeaodie Wby jurejdwod AMW”._%:_“_ m.w_“w,o
jueurejdwo’n j0|id .....o;m%nﬂ;:mu .m__mo JO uoneso jJo adA) Jo apo Jo adA] 9 o] jo1eq
Jo JaquinN

LAOdHIV OTIRIVINVD

AYVININNS LNIV1dINOD 3SION ATTHLNOW



1202 __a,q.mu.w.
_l

pJeuxQ
‘Aepp auejeas
H/N xxx } I %20|9 0005 sSnuID o%L 8SION wdog:s Se/p
pieuxQ “py BulAi4
yoeag Aejepuep 02-dS MO 1eg|n
d/N xxx I € 320i9 006 SnuID O%L '9sIoN wdoo:g 9L/Y
pieuxo “"py VR
yoeag Aejepuep 081-2 MO Je9|n
d/N xxx € I 39019 006 Bussa Oo%Ll '9SION weQg:0l 9L/¥
pJEUXQ Buif|4
“Id SepIL Mo Jes|D
d/N wxr c MNN uim] 320|g 00¥L MNN o%L ‘9SION CLOGLIY
pJeuxQ
‘Kep\ si1oxealg Apno|)
d/N . Z € 30019 00¢S SNUID o%L 8SION wdoo:} /¥
pJeuxQ
‘Aepp siaxealqg 1es|n
d/N xxx c € %90|9 0025 SnuID Oo%L SSION wdpo:z 9/¥
pieuxQ Buih|4
Jg uelnsegas MO les|n
H/N . l | Ueg %0019 000¢ SN O%L ‘sION wdog:z e/
pJeuxoQ “py Buif|4
yoeagq Aejepuey MO 1egn
d/N rex € I 300ig 006 SN o8l '9SION wdgo:z €/v
pieuxQ “py Buif|4
yoeag Aejepuep MO
/N xxx € l %90|9 006 Bussa) o%L ‘9SION wdoy:z ¢/
pJeuxQO saueld Buik| 4
“Id S8pIL 13s Mo wied 1es|d
4N [4 NN umy 3o0|g 00vL a(dniniy 991 ‘9SION wdogzl Livy
(yuow siyy)
(yyuow siy) yeiole
uosiad siy} buipieba. jurejdwod Yeaodie jurejdwos | (s)urejdwod jo
pa}oejuod pajoejuod SIYy} Wwouy s||es jJo jo ] Jo Jayjeam
jueurejdwon 101d sj|e2 jo JaquinN Jo JaquinpN uoneso adA} JO apoN adA] awij/eyeq
1H0dHIV QYVYNXO

AJVINAINS LNIV1dINOD 3SION ATTHLNOW




1202 Iudy
pJBUXO Buif|4
‘Kepp siaxealqg Z22-4S Mo Je3|n
A/N *xx € (4 %90I9 0025 SNuID O%Ll ‘3SION wdyz:Z) 0E/y
pJeuxQ Buif4
110 apisheg gz-ds MO leg|n
/N xex L [4 300|g 00€ L SnuID %81l '3SION wdyz:ZL 0E/Y
pJeuxQ
“JQ woyle BuA|4 1.9
/N wxx 14 MNN 390|g 00v L MNN orvL Mo wdoz:e 62/
pieuxQ
“1Qg woyle Buif|4 Jes|n
d/N w¥x 14 MNN 300|g9 00%L MNN O%L Mo wd} '€ 62/
pJBUXQO
“Jq woyleq Buf|4 1es|n
d/N P 14 MNN 390|g 00% L MNN %Ll Mo wdgo:g 62/f
pJeuxQ
1Q wouye BuiAj4 19D
d/N wxx 14 NN 300|g9 00v L MNN O%L MO wdog:z 62/¥
pieuxQ ‘Aepn Jep wjen 1eg|n
/N xxx 3 MNN Bl13] X90|9 0015 MNN O%L SSION wdse:zZl 62/v
BuiA|4
pieuxQ “ui ¢L-0 Mo wied 4e9|d
/N xxx | L 9za3lig X00|g 000G | EBussa) o%L ‘9SION wegy:6 8¢/v
pleuxQ Buif|4
1Q uelseqss MO Apuipn
/N *xx c 3 ueg 2019 000¢ MNN %81l ‘9sION wdgo:zl 9¢/y
LHOdYHIV QY4VYNXO

AYVININNS LNIVIdINOD 3SION ATHLNOW

9




1202 ludy

“Tbl 0

18y10 .0, ‘(useped) s,09 pue yonoy 9 B L, ‘seyoeoiddy s|dniniy v, ‘yoeoidde passiy N, ‘Bulpuet 1, ‘Hoaxel L, — Bl Jo spon
(oeq pa||ed 2q 0} Ysim Jou saop jJueuiejdwo)) palinbay JON /N

asIou 0} pajejas Jou JUIe[dWoD) ..

pajoBuo9 J0U J0jid — panoidde 9 | v Jojpue suoijesadQ Aq paniasqo sem uiajjed Jo yoeoidde [ewuou vy

L2 22

uoneledss Joy 9]V Aq pajoalip Jojpue sainpadoid asiou JO aIeme Jojid

xx

yesoule Ayuspl o) sjgeun
LYOdYIV AYVYNXO

AUVINIANS LNIVIdINOD JSION ATTHLNONW



HXOMN/UXON/ZyPTZ/2050T202/M oﬁ_:\ N884HV/ t.mq_ 13/ ..u.z |/wodraiemely m_ln._\ i .mutr_
UXON/9XON/Z201¢/9050T0¢/MOTSIY/ AN TEN/IBI}/aAT]/W03 3 eMeIyE1}//-sdny

YN /VIANDN/ZvEZ/S050 T c0¢/MOISI/YIN RS EN/IUB!/SA /W0y S Ie MBI BI//-5a1Y
UXOM/8XON/ZL08T/P0S0TZ0¢/A0ISIY/d96 TaN/IUBI/BAT /W03 3Iemel Bl 7 Sany
VINDN/YINDN/Z9vZ /70501 C0Z/AI0ISIU/VINTS EN/IUBIL/SAI W00 3IeMelaij//5any

UXON/8XON/ZV51¢/v0S0Lc0¢/MOISIUJHZ LGN/ SI/2A/Wod aieme3usi|y//sany
_E@_,__\Eo.‘..&mw_ﬂmﬂ_d_.:x\_mnﬁc

MYELTCES Emgﬂcu&\x SNy

dZSH/dZ mu_\msm.&qomoﬁmoN\aBmz?ﬂmomzbﬁ_Emz_\ES 3IEMELY _m
YINDA/VINDN/ZVSS T/ 70501 0/ MOISI/VINTSEN/TUBT/3A1]/ W03 3IEMBIEl]//S01Y

VNN YINON/Z6 7 L0/ OG0T Z0Z/A01s I/ VINTFSE N/ Y811/ 8A1 /W0 a1emelysiy//sany
YINDN/VINDN/ZY T8 T/€0S0T C0¢/M0ISIY/STGgN/ LB /3AI]/Wod S IeMeIysi|y/7:sany
VINDX/YNDH/ZED00/F0S0TZ0Z/A0ISIU/INYSEN/IYB11}/5A1 /W0 S IemeTysil}//-5any
YINDN/VINDN/ZCECe/E050T C0Z/AMO0ISIU/ LA TEN/IUSN[}/aA1| /W0 aTemelBil}// 501y
YINDN/YINDYN/Z8Z9T/€050T 202/ MOISIU/ T THSON/UBI/3AT]/ W03 S IeMeI /7 5any
dZSW/dZSN]Z720¢/€050TZ0¢/MOISIU/B TS9N/ 1 [}/aA1]/Wiod S IBMEIUSI[}//-5a1Y
YINDA/YWON/ZZ T0Z/£0S0TZ02/M0ISIU/YINFSEN/AUEI/2A11/ W00 21eMEIB1j/7:50111
UXON/YINDN/Z0VwT/€0S0T 202/ AMOISI/NMYEN/IYEI/5A1 /Woa s Iemelyi/7-say
YINDN/YINDN/ZT09T/€0S0T 202/ MOTSIU/FINTSEN/IYBI/aA1]/Wioo aIemelysif /50y

UXON/8X0%/Z90¢¢/20S0TZ0¢/MOISIY/HIEESN/IYBI/aAT|/ W0 aIemelysif//5any
O151U/HICEG N/IUBI}/aA1/ W0 siemelyslj//sany
OI511/S98aSN/IUBI[}/aAl/ W0 sIemeIygi[}//5any

UXON/9XON/ZTEBT/T0S0Tc0e/MOTSIU/Z806LN/IUBIL/aA /W0 BIeMeIlEI}/7Sa1y

UXOMN/dZSA/Zv08T/2050Tc0z/MOISIU/Z LTZ6N/UB1[}/aA1 /oD s Iemelydi|y//sany
UXON/ANAN/ZVELT/Z050T20Z/MOISIY/HIVESN/IYS1|}/3A1/ 05 3 IEMETE1]}//-5aT
O15IL/80T 90N,/ USI[I/aA]/ U0 slemelysiy//5031]

O3SIU/3SZOLN/IBI/3AI/WoT 3IemelBi}//5any
ANA/BXON/Z9€02/ T0S0TZ0¢/MOTSIU/HSYESN/IB13/2A|/W0 2IeMEIBI[}//S0HY
VINDH/EXO#/ZE¢61/ 10501202/ MOISIU/INGEZN/IYB13/3Al/ W0 alemeiyei|}//-Sany
UXON/dZSH/Z6V8 1/ 105010/ M0SIU/GINGELN/IYST3/3A]/W0) SIemeIya// 500y
O3SIU/8SB SN/ /aAl] /oo siemelyat|y//5sony
YINDN/YINDW/ZPTE0/ 20501 202/ MO/ YINTSEN/IYSI[}/aM[/ W00 s1emelysif// 5oy

TOOHIS LHDI4

H1ISNI LHDIMH OTTRIVINYD
JO0HIS 1HDITH
HISNILHDME OTTIHVINYD

JOOHIS 1HDMH

HISNI LHDIME OTIHVYINYD
NOILVIAY SONVISI 1INNVHD
VINVd YINVS NOILVIAY 42
YLSNI LHOIMd OTTIHVIAIYD

HISNI LHOTd OTIHYINYD
NOILYIAY SAONVISI TINNVHD
YLISNI LHDINH OTTHVINYD
NOILVIAV SANVIS| TINNVHD

VINYd YINVYS NOLLVIAY d2
HISNI LHOITd OTTVIAYD

HLSNI LHOMH OTIHVINYD

271 V1 AY3A0DSIQ ¥V
271 S3SI1¥dY3LINI OTY
YINVd VLNVYS NOILVIAY 4D
J71S3SIUdYALNT DTV
YINVd YLNVS NOILVIAY d2

RANRENEEEEILER
VINYd YLNVS NOILVIAY d2
VINYd YLINVS NOILVIAY dD

NOILVIAY SANVISI T3INNVHD
YLSNI LHOIT OTIIHYINYD

Y AYODIYO NISSNINSYY
4 AH09IFYD NISSNINSVY

SY3LOdOITIH N3IdSY
NOILVIAV NISNVILSIYHD

JT1 SFUVHS "IV

NOILVIAY NISNVILSIYHD
71 SFUVHS HIv

J dIAVA ¥3DYIENITIHS
JT1 ANVdWOD B aNO1W
NOLILVIAY NISNVILSIYHD
2771 NOILVIAV JIIANIVA
371 NOILVIAV JIHANTVA
711 SFUVHS HIV

NOILVIAV SONVTSI T3NNVHD
VINVYd VLNVS NOILVIAY dD
ST1 SIUVHS HIV

JT1 SFUVHS HIV

NOILVIAY SONV1SI TINNVHD
271 SFUVHS UIV

NOILVIAV SGNV1SI TINNVHD
N ANS SNOWWIS

V1NVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD
OT1 SFUVHS dIv

311 ANVAINOD 8 ANOTIIN
J71 STUVHS HIV

2711 NOIS3A FTV¥ISHIdAH
711 NOIS3a FTVISHIdAH
HIGNVY HONIS

711 V1 A43AODSIA HIVY

OT1 S3SIMdYILNT OV
V1NVd VINVS NOILVIAY dJ
711 S3SIUdYILNT OV
VINVd VINVS NOLLVIAY dJ

JTT NOILVIAV FRANTVA

JT1 S3SIYdYILNT DTV
VINVd VINVYS NOILYIAY dD
VINVd VINVYS NOLLVIAY dD
NOILVIAY SONVTSI TINNVHD
J071 SIUVHS dIv

J8T9SN
J8T9SN
N884HV
MI9TBN

YNFSEN
d96T9N
YINPSEN
HLYVL9N
NMPYN
MI9T8N
JSCOLN
JSZOLN
ANELSN
8S87SN
YT608N
VINPSEN

VAIPSEN
STZ99N
VINPSEN
1ABT6N
TTYSSN
89T99N
VINPSEN
NMPPN
VINVSEN

H3IE6SN
HIE6SN
SYBISN
£806/N
HOVESN
CLTL6N
HI9YESN
89T99N

JSZOLN
HI9VESN
HINGELN
HQINGELN
8G8TSN
YAIPSEN

Wd ET:t - 80t
Wd 90:t - 00:t
wd €Z: - LT:E
Wd80:€ - LE'T

Wd 619 - ¥T'v
NV SPTT - 70T
Wd 6€7 - 62°E
Wd OV:€ - LET
Wd L¥°T - 80T
Wd LETT - 8E'TT
Wd 9T:¢T - 6T°TT
NV ZS:0T - TE0T
WD ¥5:0T - 62°0T
WV T¥:6 - 10:6
WV 1#:6 - 8E'8
WV /76 - TE8

Wd Z€/ - TE9
AV 0E:TT- 95:0T
Wd €S - ¢y
Wd €07 - TT:E
We 0S:6-/0'6
Wd ZE°T - 95:CT
Wd 62°T - €5:CT
WV 00:0T - S8
NV Tt6 - 6€:8

Wd ZT:€ - 90:€
Wd £S'Z - TO'T
Wd PT:C-CT'T
Wd 9€:ZT - 2ECT
WV Q72T - STTT
WV 8C-ZT - ¥#£:0T
WV 8%:0T - #T:0T
WV S¥:6 - LV'8

Wd 6T - 9T:€
Wd LT:€ - 9E'T
Wd ¥0' - €T:CT
L?TT - 01T
WV ZT'TT - v0:0T
NV €28 - ¥5:L

"

1202/8/S b
1202/9/S
1202/9/5 m

1202/9/S

1202/v/S
1202/v/S
1202/v/S
120Z/v/S
1202/v/S
Teoe/v/s
1202/v/S
120e/v/S
Teoe/v/s
1Z02/v/S
1202/¥/S
1202/v/S

T202/€/S
T20T/E/S
1Z02/€/S
T20Z/€/S
120/€/S
T20zZ/€/S
1202/€/S
120Z/€/S
1202/€/S

120z/t/s
1Z02/2/S
T202/2/S
1202/2/S
1e0e/e/s
1202/2/S
1202/t/s
1202/2/s

1202/1/S
1202/1/S
T202/1/S
T20z/1/S
T20z/1/s
1202/1/S



%mmmzb@_tm...__xsou eg.mmﬁl

0151/ DR A5 N/IUSI/aAl]/ oY E@smEMmQ s 51T
O1514/51 299N/ SI/aA]/ W0 s1emelysijy//sany

qzuxéﬁuxhoﬁqmﬂmcﬁmcm\aos_&mmmwmzhsmz_:ma:ES Emgmz,ﬂt\ SanY

BXON/VINON/Z658L/ L 1S0LZ0¢/M0I5IU/ d96 TN/ aI/3A1]/ W03 SIeMEIYS([//-Sany

OXTOZN/IUBI/an/Wwos aIemelydily//-sdny
OISIU/STZ99N/AYBI/aN| /W03 e TemeIB//-501y
UXON/UXOMN/Z9¢00/Z LS0T C0¢/MOISIU/DBTISN/IBI[/oAI| /W03 BIeMENEilj// 501y
UXON/UXON/ZLTEL/ T LG0T 0/ MOISIY/IBTISN/IUBIL/anI|/iiod” E«;«EEE\ sany

UXON/9XON/ 2552 C/ L 1G0T 0/ MOISIU/NBEHY/IUE1]/aA1/Io3 STemeIyslj//-sany
OISIU/QINGELN/IYBI[I/aA]| /0T 3IEMEIL B E\ S0y

Z7E00/T1S0TZ0¢/MOISIU/NSEFEN/ 1311} 3A1 W05 3B MeTyaI//5ant

VINDN/YINDN/Z¢5£2/0TS0 1 Z0¢/MOISIU/ANELSN/TYBI/aA1| /W0 3 IBMETBI|}//5a1Y

dZS)/UX0N/Z6181/6050T20Z/A0ISIU/GINGELN/IBIE/3A1 /W0 SIEMeIYBI//SoiY
VINDN/dZSN/ZESLT/60S0T 20/ MOISIU/INGELN/IYBI/2A1] /W0 aiemelysij}//sony

dZSN/dZSN]ZT¥Z /80501 20Z/MOISIU/RITIgN/AUBI[/3AI]/ W0 aIEMEILBI[}//Sany
YINDN/YINON/ZP0ZZ/80501 202/ /011U FINFSEN/IYBII/3AI]/ W0 2 IeMeI BT 7 sany
YXON/9XON/ZTE61/80501 202/ A0ISIU/d86TON/IBI[ 3N W0 SIeMeIBI]//sdiy
UXON/UXON/Z9€T¢/80S0T 202/ 011U/ Za7 e N/FUBIJ/aA1| /oD SIeMeIdi|}/ /501y
dZSN/dZS)[Z6¢81/80501¢0¢/MOISIUJZL TL6N/IYBI|I 2RI/ 0D aTEMeISIf}//5a1Y
YINDN/VWON/ZLTLT/3050T202/M0IsIY/YINPSEN/AUBI/BAI/Wod sIeMelyBI|y/7:
01514/ 496 TON/AYBIjI/eAl]/wiod siemelysij}//:sany

VNN /VINDN/ZTS02/ 20501 C0Z/AI0151U/S TZ 99N,/ B11}/aA|/ W03 91emeIysi[}//-5a1Y

HXON/dZSH/Z6v8 1/ L0501 C0E/MOTSIu/ES9SEN/ BT /aAT/ W0 21emelysi//-5any
VINDH/VINDN/ZTOL T/ 20501 Z0¢/AI0ISIU/aNELSN/IYBTI/3A /W0 SIeMEIYBI// SRy
YINDN/UXON/Z1S /L0501 202/ MOISIU/85 82 S N/IUEI/3A1|/ 0T 3 IemeIyaI//-sany

Y¥1ISNI LHOMA OTIHVINYD
HISNI LHDIMH OTTRIVINYD

YLISNI LHOIMd OTTRIVINYD

NOILVIAY SONVISI TINNVHD

TOOHHDS LHOM

TOOHDS LHDITH

NOLLVIAY SONVISI 1INNYHD

TOOHIS LHDIT4

NOLLVIAY SONVTISI TANNYHD

VINVd VLNVS NOLLVIAY dJ

ViNVd YLNVS NOLLVIAY 42

JOOH2S LHOIN4

ULSNI LHOITI OTINVINYD

YINVd VLNVS NOILVIAV dJ
YINVd VINYS NOILVIAY dJ

ViNVd VINVS NOILVIAV 4D
HISNI LHDIMH OTHYIANYD
TOOHDS LHDIT4

YiNvd YLNVS NOILVIAY dJ

YLSNILHOITd OTTIHYINYD

TOOHIS LHDIM4

NOILVIAY SONVSI TINNYHD

HISNI LHDINH OTTIHYINVD
NOILVIAY SONVISI TINNYHD

[ NIH43LS VINIT
AYd3d NOL13S
Add3d NO13S

JT1 SFUVHS dIv

¥ AY0O3FYD NISSNINSVY
NOLLVIAY SANVISI TANNVHD
NOILVIAY NISNVILSIHHD

NOILVIAY ¥vE [

NOILVIAY NISNVILSIYHD
S¥310dDINIH NIdSV
NOILVIAY SONVTSI TANNVHD

NOILVIAVY NISNVILSIHHD
FJOAO0IHL ISSOY

NOILVIAV SONVTSI TAINNVHD
d AYODIYD NISSNINSYY

4 AY0D3FYD NISSNINSYY
V1NVd VLNVS NOILVIAV dJ
SY310dDIM3H N3IdSV

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAY dD
NOILVIAY N3SNILLSIHHD

d NHO 31ZIN39
OT1 STUVHS HIV

V1INVd VLNVS NOILVIAVY dJ
V1INVd VINVS NOILVIAVY dJ

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAY dD
JT1 STUVHS "IV

NOILVIAV NISNVILSIYHD
JTT NOILVIAV 3LINSANS
VINVYd VINVS NOILVIAY dJ
JT1 STUVHS HIV

NOILVIAY NISNVILSIYHD

NOILVIAV SONV1SI TANNVHD
4 S3IVI 44VHOS

JT1 STHUVHS "IV

NOILLVIAV SONV1SI TANNVHD

d6868N
W690ZN
W690ZN

ANELSN
J8T9SN
STZ99N

MI9T8N

HELTSN
MY9T8N
N884HV
8S8CSN

d96T9IN
OXTOCZN
STZ99N
J8T9SN
J8T9SN
CLTL6N
N884HY
HINGELN
MNIT8N

NSEVEN
QGNELSN

dNBELN
gNBELN

89T99N
VAIZSEN
d96T9N
C9VTEN
ZLTL6N
VINPSEN
d96T9N

STZ99N
€99SEN
ONELSN
8S8ZSN

Wd TT:€ - ¥5°C
Wd £8:5- LYY
wd ot'€ - €€°T

Wd 0E:8 - £0:L
Wd 0€:€ - ¥TE
IV OE:TT - 92:0T
NV 94:0T - 90:0T

Nd 9€:v - 821
Wd TT:ZT - ST'TT
Wd 00:¢T - ¥S:0T

WV T$:01 - t6

Wd LT - TT:ZT
Wd E€:9 - €T
INd ST - T€:S
Wd 9T°S - £L5°F
Wd ET:¥ - 80-%
Wd ¥0:S - T¥°€
WNd v19 - Ze€
Wd 91T - 95T
Wd ST:Z-9T:T

Wd 6%:S - ¥0:S
Wd 65:G - SEiF

WV SVTT - 6T°'TT
NV 6E:0T - 8C:0T

Wd 817 - 6T'€
d SP€ - S'e
WV T#:0T - 0T'ZT
Wd 65:C-6T:C
Wd €E:CT - 80'TT
WV 8%:0T - TO:0T
NV Tt:0T - LE6

Wd 9T:¢- 62T
WV SETT - 92°TT
WV Z¥:0T - 76
NV 818 -8¢:8

1202/v1/s
1Z02/71/S
120e/v1/S

120Z/€T/S
120Z/€T/S
120Z/€1/S
120Z/€1/S

1202/21/S
1202/21/S
teoz/Tr/s
120z/zt/S

120Z/T1/S
1202/11/S
1202/T1/S
1202/11/5
1202/T1/S
1202/11/S
120Z/T1/S
120Z/11/S
1202/11/S

120Z/01/S
120Z/01/S

120t/6/S
1202/6/S

1202/8/S
1202/8/S
1202/8/5
1202/8/S
1202/8/S
1202/8/S
1202/8/S

1202/L/S
.120z/L/s
1202/L/s
120Z/L/S

BIEY



UXON/VINDN/Z20E2/61501 202/ A0ISIU/LABTEN/IYSI[}/3A1]/Woa s IBMEIS1[j//-5a1Y
£22¢/61501202/M0ISIU/89TI0N/II[}/3Al|/Woa s IeMEISI[}//-St1nYy
JE6661 VEOT% 1/OWSN/ZSE0C/ 61501 0E//MOISIU/HIE6SN/IYB1/2A1| /W03 a1eMeIyBI[}// 501y
UXON/8XO0N/ZEV6T/61S0TE0Z/MOISIU/HLZIN/IYBIf/aA1/Wod atemelyall /7501y
VINDN/VINDN/ZEE6 /61501 C0C/MO0ISIY/INGSOZN/IYBI/3A1]/Io’ .&|~£§: sany

VINDN/VINDN/Z959T/6TS0120¢/MOISIU/INGI0EN/IYEI /oAl /oY 3Iemely

VNDN/VINDN/ZTT 12/ 81501202/ 01U/ INGI0TN/IUBI/3Al/ oI SIemelysily//-sany
UXON/UX0ON/Z80T2/8 L5010/ MOISIY/MASTEN/ IS} /aAl/ W03 s emelysi|y//-sany
UXON/VESH/ZFSS /81501 202/ 0TS 5995 TN/IE/aAl/Wos s IemeTyz/T:

ANASJANAA/ZLGEL/LTS0T c0¢/MO3SIU/ZB06LN/IUBI /a1 /oy aremelysijy//sany
VINDN/YINDW/Z65¢2¢/ L LS0 L 20¢/MOISIU/YINTSEN/IYBI[}/aA1] /W0 SIEMEIYBT /5013y

13/an|/wod s emelyan)y//-sany
_Ew:__\Eau.mhmaﬂcmmu_thmaﬁz

YXON/dZSH/ZESBT/LTSOTZ0E/MOIsILY/ qﬁmowszﬁ_tw::\ wod'alemelyatyy//:sany
dZSH/UXON/ZS BT/ LTS0T20¢/MOISIU/gSTIgN/IuB1}/EAl/ W0 3 Iemelyai|}//-sany

13/aA1j/Wo3aiemeIqaijy//-sony
OISI/89T9ON/IUBI[}/5A1] W05 SIemeIaI} /5011
VINDN/YINDA/ZS TL T/ £ 1501 202/ MOBIU/YINTSEN/ T 1/ oA/ W0 sIemeT gi}//S01y

VINDN/dZSH/ZTEEC/9T 501 C0e/MOTSIU/DaE 8 LN/IUB/3AI[/W03 sIemMeIyai3//s0ny
dZSH/VINDN/ZTOCE/STS0T 0T/ MOISIU/DEERL N/ IS/ /U053 2IEMEI BT/ /'S0RY
INTVINN/Z8202/ 7L 501202/ /03SIG/ LABTEN/IYBI[/2AT/ W03 31eMEIUBIf//50ny
OT9EBN/IUBIY/oAT|/Wo3 3 IemMeIyEij//561y
OISIU/GINGELN/IUS}/SAT|/W0T SIeMEIUBT// 581y
OSIU/gINGELN/YYB1IE/aA1]/W03 aIeMeIyaij// 581y

UXON/dZSH/ZTST0/91501 202/ MOSIU/HLPZON/BI/3AT|/UioT s JemeIya//-sany
dZSH/YINDH/Z900/9 TS0 T c0¢/MOISIY/ONEZSN/Y31}/2A1]/lio3 3Iemelysijy//5sany

YXON/¥XON/Zr11Z/STS0TZ0e/M o«m_c\ JBTSSN/ E.w._ [}/3AT)/ W03 s 1eMmeIysIl//-Sany

YINDN/YINDN/Z¥502/S 15010/ MOISIY/INGTEN,/IYBI}/3NI| /W00 BIemerya1j3//-Sa 1y
YXOMN/UXON/ZrE02/S 1501202/ MOoIsI/IBTASN/IYa1I/3A1/iuoI BIemelysij//Sany
UXON/UXON/Z65LT/STS010c/MOISIY/dO6 TON/IYSI[}/aA]| /U0 3Temeysi|}//5any

dZSN/dZ59/ZE08T/51S0120C/MOISIU/TT608N/IUBI/2A/ 103 BIemelysijy//-sany

NOILVIAY SONV1SI TAINNVHD
V1NVd VINVS NOILVIAY d2
OT1 NDIS3d 3TvOSHIdAH

HISNI LHOITd OTIYVINVYD
Y1SNi LHOITd OTTIHVIANVD
HISNI IHOITd OTIHVNYD
VINVd VINVYS NOLLVIAVY dD
H1SNI LHOITd OTIIHVIAVD

YLSNILHOITd OTIEVINVD
I00HDS LHDIH

271 V1 AM3A0DSIA IV
HISNELHD{T4 OTINVIANYD
NOILYIAY SONVISI 1INNVHD

YINVd YINVS NOLLVIAY dJ

YLSNI LHDINH OTTIHYINYD
V1NVYd VLNVS NOILYIAY 4D
VINYd YLNVS NOILVIAY dD
YINYd YINVS NOILYIAVY d2
ViNVYd VINYS NOILVIAY d2

YLSNILHOITd OTTIEYINYD

YISNI LHOINH OTTIEVINYD

YLSNI LHOIT4 OTTIHYINYD

NOLLVIAY SONVYISI TINNYHD

Y1NVd YLNVS NOILVIAY 42

VINVYd VLNVS NOILYIAY d2

YHISNI LHONH OTTHVINYD

NOILVIAY SONVISI TINNVYHD

NOILVIAV SONVSI TINNVHD

TOOHIS LHOIN4
YINVd VINVYS NOILYIAY dD

NOILVIAY SANVYTSI TINNVHD
V1NVd VLNVS NOLLVIAV dJ
JT1 NDIS3Q FTVISHIdAH

J dIAVQ YIDYIENITITHS
AY¥3d NOLV3S

71 SFUVHS HIv

JT1 SIUVHS HIv

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAY dJ
Ad¥3d NO1v3s

AdY¥43d NOLV3IS
NOILVIAY NISNVILSIYHD
J AIAVA MVHS

2T ¥ AHIA0ISIA IV

71 SIUVHS ¥Iv

NOILVIAY SANYTSI TANNVHD
SY31OdIM3IH NIdSY

A ANS SNOWIIS

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD
JT1 SFHVHS HIV

VINVd VLNVS NOILVIAV dD
VINVd VINVS NOLLVIAV dD
VINVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD
V1INVYd VINVS NOILVIAVY dJ
JT1 SIYVHS YIV

JT1 SFYVHS ¥Iv

OT1 STUVHS HIY

NOILVIAY SONVISI TINNVHD
QYVHOIY Y

VINVd VLNVS NOILVIAV dD
VINVd VINVS NOLLVIAV dJ

J AIAVA 43DH3IGNITIIHS
JT1 STYVHS dIv

NOILVIAY SONV1SI TAINNVHD
¥ AHODIYD NISSNINSVY
NOLLYIAY SANVTSI 1TINNVHD
¥ AH09OIFYY NISSNINSVY
NOILVIAV NISNVILSIHHD
V1NVd VLNVS NOILVIAY dD

1A8T6N
89T99N
H3IE6SN
HLVL9N
INGS0ZN
DAEBLN
ONELSN
89T99N
W690ZN

N690CN
MI9T8N
N99STN

£806/N
VINPSEN
1A8T6N
N88JHV
TTYSSN
dNGELN
VIAPSEN
¥T608N
89T99N
BWGELN
89T99N
VINPSEN

DHESLN
DEEBLN
1A8TEN
aroesnN
GINGELN
HNGELN

HLvL9N
ANELSN
8S8ZSN
JB8T9SN
1ABTEN
J8T9SN
d96T9N
vT1608N

V)

Wd 60'% - 8€:€: TZOZ/6T/S ="
Wd evv - €T€ T20Z/6T/S  _SD

Wd 66T - ST'T TZ0Z/61/S
Wd 9v:2T - ¥T:2T T202/61/S
INd 9T°T - 60:ZT TZ0Z/61/S
WV 6€:TT - STTT TZ0Z/6T/S
AV €C:TT - TS:0T TZ0Z/6T/S
WV SZ:TT - €T:0T TZ0Z/6T/S
WV ZE0T - 26 TZ0Z/6T/S

Nd SO'E-SS'T  T1Z0Z/8T/S
WNd 627 - 7T TT0Z/8T/S
WV T0:0T -¥2:6  1Z0Z/81/S
Nd 85:S-vEw  TZOZ/LT/S
WNd TEV - L€ T20Z/LT/S
Wd 9%€-95T  TZOT LT/S
Wd €0:Z-SS T T20Z/L1/S
WA TEZ-€ET  TZOT/LT/S
Wd 6¥C-8T:T  T20Z/L1/S
WNd EVZT-6C:TT  TZOZ/LT/S
Nd 60:ZT - ¥Z:IT  TZOT/L1/S
WV 6ETT-ST'TT  T20T/LT/S
WV LETT-6S:0T  TTOZ/LT/S
WV 6E:0T -9€:0T  TZOZ/LT/S
WV v7:0T -95:6  TZ0Z/LT/S
WNd SEv-20:¢  1202/9T/S
Wd 8E:€- 0T TZOZ/9T/S
Wd t#T-90:T  TZOZ/9T/S
WdZvT-vT:T  T20Z/9T/S
Wd TO:CT - LETT  120Z/9T/S
Wd TO'TT - 2€:8  1207/91/S
INd 8€:9-€2:9  Te0T/ST/S
Wd vT:9-92:5  TZ0Z/ST/S
Nd €E#°Z-90:T  TZ0Z/ST/S
Nd €€'2-9¥'T  120Z/ST/S
Wd 6T:Z-EET  TZOZ/ST/S
Wd 9Z:T-80°T  TTOZ/ST/S
WV SSTT-0v:0T  120Z/ST/S
WY TV TT - #€:0T  120Z/St/S

(



VINDMN/VINDN/ZLSBT/ECS0TZ0¢/A0ISIU/INGI0ZN/AYS1}/3A1 /W0 S IEMEIdT}//'STRY
dZSW/dZSH/ZEVLT/£2S01 202/ M0ISIU/HT608N/IUBI[}/aA1/ W3 aiemelyaijj/7-5any
dZS9XON/Z62LT/€ZSO0TZ0Z/MOISIU/dITLIN/IUEIN}/EAT W0 SIemeItsl]//-5a1iy

ZZZLT/EES0TZ0Z/MOISIU/INGI0ZN/TYS1J/5A1/ W05 8 ieMeIyB[y//5any
dZSH]AZSH]ZITLT/ECS0T 20/ MOISIU/HNT T IN/IUSI/SA1| /oD aTemely iy //-50ny
13/3N|/Wod aiemeIysij//sony
13/3A1)/Wod aiemeIy s}/ 501y
13/3A1)/Wod 2 emelyBij}//-s0ny
n_Nmv_.\mxov_h\.mmtmmmﬁmom?e.mE\mmszEm 1J/aAT]/ W0 IemeIyaij//-5a1y

HXON/OWSH/ZL09T/€2S0TZ0Z/MOISIU/HIEBSN/IYBII/AAT|/ii03s] msmusm__i SRy

VINDN/VINDN/ZT000/€2S0T20¢/MOISI/ANELSN/IUSI/3AT| /oo aIemeyadlj}//-sany

WINDN/VINDN/Z85 €2/ CCS0 T c0Z/MOISIY/OaERZN/IYSII/aAT|/ioo s Iemelyall}//sany

YINDN/VINDN/ZZ061/22S0T 20t/ Eoum_c\ G30ZN/IUBI/3Al/od 3 eMel
UXON/UXON/Z9T81/2ZS01 c0¢/MOISIY/Z665EN/IB1}/3A1 /oD alemely

YINDI/dZSH/ZTSST/ZZS0TZ0Z/AM0ISIY/GOTION/
YOL1VyIdO/HINMO A cmxuo._m_ ”_O._,m_I 1H9MN4

n_N.u.v_EH&ESNENmoﬂmoﬁaseﬁmmamzb_.ﬁEQéES SIEMEIUBI//Sany
YINDN/YINDN/Z6161/02501.c0¢/MOISIY/BSBESN/IB1 /oA /03 2 IemeIyai /- Sany
VINDN/VINDN/Z6061/0¢S0T c0C/M0ISIU/ T LTSIN/ 411} /an1]/U00 3Iemelqai//-sany
UXON/9X0MN/Z1¥81/0CS0Tc0e/MOISIY/ NG TBN/IBI/3A1 /03 IeMeIyBIj/7Sa1y
VINDN/VINDN/ZTSLT/0CS0 102/ MOISIU/INGS0CN/IUB /3N /oo SIeMETYaIf//Sany
VIO /VINDN/ZETLT/02501 ¢0¢/MOISIU/ LABT6N/IUSI[}/oAI/Wiod” em;mzm._S SonY

VINDA/VINDN/ZSSPT/0250TZ0E ._Sm_r_ LIABTBN/Y _Em:__\c.._ou Siemerysily/7sany

OINSH/YXOR/Z6¢10/0¢501 202/ MOTSIU/HAE65N/3UBI/oAl /W0y s IemeIyBiy//sany
YXON/OWSH/ZL000/0Z50120¢/MOISIU/HIE6EN/IUBI/PN /W0 3 IEMETy31|3/7-501Y
YVINDY/VINDN/ZE T00/0¢ S0 1202/ M0IsIY/INGS0ZN/IYS13/=A/ W00 3 emerys1y//Ssony
VINDH/VINDN/Z9000/0Z501 202/ A 0TS/ SGECLN/IUBI3/3Al/W0T a emelysif//-Sany

HISNI LHOMS OTIHVIANVYD
V1INVd VINVS NOILVIAY dJ
V1INVYd VINVS NOILVIAV dD

Y1SN| LHOIT4 OTIHVINVD

NOILYIAV SAONV1SI TANNVHD
VINYd VINVS NOILVIAY d3
71 NDiS3a FTWOSHIdAH
YINVd VINVS NOILVIAVY dJ
711 NDIS3A FTVISYIdAH
VINVd YLINVS NOILVIAY 4D

YISNI LHDN4 OTIHVYINYD
Y1SNI LHDN4 OTIHVYINVYD
Y1SNI 1HDIM4 OTIHVYINYD
YLSNI LHOITd OTII¥VIAVD
YLSNI LHOIT4 OTI¥YNYD

H1ISNI LHOIT4 OTIIHVINYD
HISNI LHOITd OTIHVINYD
VINYd VINVS NOILVIAY d2

NOILVIAY SANV1SI 1INNYHD

HLSNI LHOIMd OTIHVYWYD

NOILVIAY NISNVILSIIHD

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAV d2
NOILLYAIV SONV1SI 1INNVHD

NOILVIAY NISNVILSIHHD
H1SNI LHOM4 OTIYVINVYD
NOILVAIV SANVTSI TANNVHD
NOILVAIV SONYISI TANNVHD
VINVd VINVS NOLLVIAY dD
NOILVAIV SANV1SI TANNVHD

71 NDIS3A 3DVSHIdAH
JT1 NDIS3A 3DVSHIdAH
Y1SNI LHOMY OTIHVYINYD
YLSNI LHOMNH OTIIHVINVYD

A¥¥3d NOLV3S

V1INVd VINYS NOILVIAV dO
YINVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD
A¥Y3d NOL1V3S

‘3 HLYNN3X NILSTOH
NOILVIAY SANVISI TAINNVHD
VINVd YINVS NOILVIAY 4D
JT1 NDIS3Q FTVISHAdAH
VINVYd VINVS NOILVIAY dD
OJT1 NSIS3A F1VISYIdAH
VINVd YINVS NOILVIAY d)

JT1 STUVHS HIv

0711 SIAVHS HIv

AYH3d NOLvV3S

2711 SFAVHS HIV

AYd3d NOL1v3s

ONI SOV INYOFHIV

JT1 SFUVHS IV

A¥d3d NOLv3S

V1INVd VINVS NOILVIAY dD

NOILVIAV SONV1SI TINNVYHD

J771 SFHVHS div

J QIAVA Y39YIANITITHS
NOILVIAY NISNVILSIHHD

J N3IHd31S advani

VINVd YINVS NOILVIAV dD
NOILVIAVY SANVISI TANNVHD
W AND SNOWWIS

NOILVIAV NISNVILSIHHD
A¥d3d NOL1V3S

NOILVIAV SAONV1SI TINNVHD
NOILVIAY SANV1SI TINNVHD
VINVd VANVS NOILVIAY dD
NOILVIAY SONVTSI TINNVHD

JT1 NOSI3A ITVISHIdAH
JT1 NOSI3A ITVISHIdAH
AYd3d NOL1V3S
711 SFUVHS "IV

W690ZN
7T1608N
d3¢/IN

WGE90ZN
HIYTIN
IABTEN
dIZLIN
H3E6SN
89T99N
H3IE6SN
89T99N

QANZESN
DBEBLN
W690ZN
DBE8LN
W690ZN
C66SCN
GNELSN
W690ZN
89T99N
amdoig
8S8ZSN

OHEBLN

H.P/9N
MIT8N
D096EN
89T99N
8G8¢SN
TTVSON
MMITSN
INBS0ZN
1ABT6N
8G8CSN
89T99N
1ABTEN

H3E6SN
HIEGSN
W690ZN
DYEBLN

Id SE:TT - 8€:TT TZ0Z/€2/S
WV 95'TT - £¥:0T T20Z/€2/S
Y 65°0T - 62:0T TZ0Z/€2/S
WY v¥:0T - 22:0T TZ0Z/€2/S
WV vE:TT - TT:0T T20Z/€C/S
WV TE:0T - £0:0T TZ0Z/€2/S
WV 0S'6- LV'6 TZ0Z/€2/S
IV SEOT- 2t°6 TZ0Z/€2/S
WV Zv'6 - L0:6 TZ0Z/€T/S
WV 726 - LS8 TZ0Z/€2/S
WV O€:8 - 82:8 TZ0T/€2/S

Wd 0019 - vt TZ02/22/S
Wd 85'S - Oty T20Z/22/S
Wd 8€'€ - ZE'Z T202/22/S
Wd SiZT - 00:2T 120Z/22/S
Wd 62:21 - 21T 1TZ0T/T2/S
WY L0T - 9%:0T TZ0Z/Ce/S
WV ¥T:0T - §2:6 T202/22/S
WV SE:0T - 8€:6 T20¢/22/S
NV 658 - 0£:8 120Z/Z2/S
¢- WY 0SiZ TZ0Z/22/S

Wv 98- T€:L T20Z/2T/S

Wd ¥5:9 - 9T:9 TZ02/T2/S

Wd 0Z:€ - 6%'Z TZ0Z/02/S
INd 0Z:€ - 02:Z TZ0Z/0Z/S
Wd 9T:€ - 9T:Z T202/02/S
Wd Sviz - 2T TZ02/0Z/S
d 05:ZT - €0°2T T202/02/S
Wd 8t°TT - SS'TT T202/02/S
Wd 20:2T - 8T:TT T202/02/S
WV 01T - SZ:0T TZ0Z/0Z/S
WV v$:0T - 256 T202/02/S

WV £¥:6 - 00:6 T202/0Z/S

NV £2:6 - E€'8 TZ0Z/0C/S
WY v¥'8 - OE:2 T202/02/S

Wd T0: - 62:9 TZ0TZ/61/S

INd €56 - 0€:5.TC02Z/6T1/S

Wd ¥0'9 - 2S5 T20Z/6T/S
Wd S0:9 - S¥iv T20Z/6T/S

o\A



dZSH/dZSH/Z1502/52S0TZ0T/MoIsly/ GINGELN/IUBI[}/3A]|/ oI D IeMeIlE!
HXON/VINDN/Z#00Z/STS0TC0Z/MOISIY/ZoHTEN/ TYFi[}/anT]/ o3 aiemely
015IY/WIOEPN,/IY __.._\QZQEQU SIEMBIY

¢§u¥mx9_hﬁmw2m~m9Nomxaos_ﬁamﬁmmzbgm._:m:_:sou FIeMET]
VINDN/YWON/ZE v £1/S2S0120e//a03SIq/QNELSN/IBI/aAT|/W05 S IeMElY
UXOMN/dHMN/ZZELT/STS0TZ02/MOISIY/METEIN/ABI[/IA /w033 Iemely
UXON/9XON/ZrroT/ 52501 202 /MOISI/HLFZSN/IYB1]}/aAl[/ W0 sTemeIyaijj//sany
VINDN/VaSH/Z8SFT/SC 0T 202/ MOISIu/HH TS 7N/I21]}/2A1/tio 31emelyaif//sany

ANASTEXON/ZF0T0/S2S01T 20¢/MOISIY/ISFELN/IYE1/SAl| /W0 aIemeIysiy//Sony
UXON/9X0N/Z2500/SCS0T20E/MOISIY/DBTISN/ IS /oAl /W0 2JeMeyE1j}//50ny
dZ59/dZSA/29¢00/52S0Tc0c//I0ISIU/ZL TLEN/ IS 1H/aA1|/W0I 3IeMeILBI//S0nY
XON/OXON/Z L 200/5250120¢/MOISIU/Z665¢N/ UL /3Alj/W0I SIEMETYSi[}//Sany
UXON/OWSH/Z15E/ 7G0T c0¢/MOISIY/INOZEEN/IUST/oAI/ W0 sIemelygil}//sany
OWSH/9X0N/Z62E¢/P2S01 202/ MOTSIU/HIEBSN/IYRIH/oAI/ W0 SIemetysil}//5any
UXON/dZSH/ZE5 L e/ 72S0LZ0¢/MOISIU/METEON/IYSI/3AI /W03 SIemeIyaI|//:5any
YO1VHIdO/4INMO A8 AIND018 AHOLSIH LHOMS
UXOA/UXON/Zrv0Z/veS01 c0e/ MO/ AMNOTEN/IUBI[}/2A1/ W03 SIeMeIyaij//-sany

dZSH/VINDN/Z0E0Z/ 7201202/ MOTSIU/Z LT LN/ B[} 3A[/Ui03 sIemelyai],
G000/ UXON/Z0C0¢/¥TS0Tc0¢/MOISIU/GAGON/ IS}/ o]/ W0D SIBMeIyB1[}/ /5013y
UXON/UXON/ZE06 1/ 72501 202/ MOISIY MG T N/IUS13/SAT /oI SIeMeIyaif//5dny
VINDH/VINDN/Z918T/F¢S01 02/ MOISIU/INGS0Z N/IYST/ 3N/ W03 3 IeMeIysifj//:5a13y
i3/9A1/Wod 21eMEIYBI3//501Y
1/9AI/ W03 3IeMEIyDify//-Sa1y
VINDH/VINDH/Z955T/%2S01 202/ MOISIU/INBS0Z N/UBi/ A1/ IsI 3IeMEIEi[}//-Sa1]

JAWN/9XON/Z90£0/%ZS0T20¢/MOISIU/HLEGTN/IUS13/aA1|/Wod s IemeIysij}//Sany

HOLVYIdO YINMO A9 a3NO018 AYOLSIH ._.Imu_l_n_

9X0 ¥3A0 SIO0T ¥ 43413V GIANVT
UXO3I/IANN/Z90v0/7ZS01.20¢/MOISIU/HLEGTN/IUB1/3A1 /W03 3 Iemely
ANAN/SXON/Zv020/ 72501 ¢0¢/MOSIU/ISTZ LN/ UBI/3A1]/ W0 SIemely
YINDN/VINDN/ZES00/7Zr0 T Z0Z/M0ISIY/INGI0ZN/IYE1/EA1/ W03 SieMmelts]
OISTU/Z66SEN/IUEIH/EAI /W0 S IemeIUzi]//: Sty
YXOMN/UXON/Z0EEL/ECS0TL0L/MOISIUZ665 N/ B1}/aAT| /W0 a1eMelysif//sany
dZS0/dZSN/ZL0ET/EZS0T 0L/ MOTSIU/89T9aN/IYSI[}/BAT/ W0 SIemelysif//sany
dZSN/dZSH/Z5vTT/€CS0TZ0Z/MO0IY/d3TLTN/IYBII/aAT/WoT aiemelysijy//:sang
YINDN/YINON/ZEDTZ/€¢S0T 202 /MOISIY/ONELSN/AYBI}/3A]| /W03 S1eMeIyBI[//-5a 1y

YXOM/ mxov_\Nmmmﬂ\mmmoamcmx?_oum_c_\ MAITEN/IUTI/SAW0I3] m?mEml_u{\ sany

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD

NOILVIAY SONVISI TANNVHD

HLSNI LHOINd OTIHVINYD

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAY dD

JT1 NDIS3Q 3TYISHIdAH

STIIH NY1a0OM
NOILVIAY NISNVILSIYHD

VINVd YINVS NOILLVIAY dD

NOLLVIAY NISNVILSIHHD

Y1SNI LHOd OTHIVIAV]

NOILLVIAY SAONVISI 1INNVHD

1SN LHOITd OTNEVINYD

05310 NvS

0D31d NVS

09310 NVS

0531d NVS

HISNI LHOIT4 OTIIHVIAVD

V1NVYd VINVS NOLLVIAV dD

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD

HISNI LHOM4 OT1IHVINYD

NOILVIAY SONV1SI T3INNVHD
NOILVIAY NISNVILSIYHD

V11VYd VINVS NOILVIAY dJ
JT1 NOILVIAY 3LINSANS

J71 S3ILINDI OYIV
NOILVIAY SONV1SI TINNVHD
[ 2143 3SSVVH

JT1 SFUVHS ¥Iv

2143 3SSVYVH

D JIAYQ ¥3DY3IEANITIIHS
JTI MYTSPN

'SAYS "NId L4VHDHIV H3SINYD

Y AHOOIHD NISSNIAISYYH
V1NVYd VLNVS NOILVIAY dJ
ONI SIOVINIL INHOBYIV

V QYVMOH T13vHSI
JT1NDISIA ITVISYIdAH
2143 3SSYVH

3 ANVIHQY SITIHdINVd 3a
NOILVIAY NISNVILSIYHD

W 110§ N3sy3I1dd

V1NVd VINVS NOLLVIAV dD
"M 1102S SNITI02
NOILVIAV NISNVILSIHHD
AYd3d NOLv3S

NOILVIAY SONV1SI TINNVHD
271 S31LIND3 O¥3Y

A¥H3d NO1V3S

211 531LIND3 0¥3v

J71 S31LIND3 OY3v

211 $31LND3 OY3v
271 S31LIND3 O¥3v

‘SANS "NId 14YHDHIV HISINYD

Add3d NOL1V3S

ONI SIDOVINI INYO8HIV

JNI SIDOVINI INYOSYIV
V1NVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD
V1NVYd VLNVS NOILVIAY dD
T STYVHS dIv

JT1 S3ILIND3 0Y¥3v
NOILVIAY SANVTSI TINNVHD
NOILVIAV NISNVILSIYHD

HNGELN
Z9PZEN
VI9EPN
STZ9SN
MITEIN
ONELSN
METEIN
HLYL9N
AUTSYN

JSYTLN
J8T9SN
CTLTL6N
Z66SCN
OZBEN
H3IEBSN
MATEIN
HYOTZN
NI9T8N
H1SPEN
CLIL6N
HASIN
MI9T8N
W690ZN
STZ99N
VI9EVN
INB90TN

HLEGTN
aamdoig
HLEGIN
HLE6TN
HLEG6TIN
JSYTLN
W690ZN
Z66SCN
Z66STN
89T99N
dITLIN
ANELSN
HLEGTIN
1A8T6N
MISTEN

Wd 85:0T

W)

Wd €Z:T- TTT T20T/SZ/S e

Wd 5T - ¥7°2T TZ0Z/ST/S
Wd 9T:2T - 2211 1202/52/S
WV LETT - SO:TT TZ202/S2/S
WV 8€:TT - TO'TT T202/S¢/S
WV PETT - ST:0T T20Z/S2/S
WY 0S:0T - 6T:0T TZ0Z/ST/S

WV Ev'6 - 92:6 T20C/ST/6
WV Z0'8 - 82:2 T20T/SZ/S

Wd 90L - S¥'S TZ0Z/¥Z/S
Wd 65'S - 62'S TZ0Z/ve/S
Wd 9€:S - 00:S 1202/¥2/S
Wd ¥T:9 - LS TZ0Z/ve/S
Wd ST:S - 8% TZ0Z/¥2/S
Wd SZ:% - v0'v TZ0Z/¥2/S
Wd 8T:€ - 8¥'Z T20Z/¥T/S
¢- 12T 1202/ve/s

Wd €%'T - 92T TZ0Z/v2/S
Wd S¥'T - 8T'T T20Z/ve/s
Wd 82:T- 00°T T20T/¥T/S
Wd ZE'T - 95°2T T202/¥2/S
Wd EE:ZT - OVTT T20Z/¥T/S
WV L¥TT - 00:TT T202/v2/S
WV 6T°TT - T¥:0T T202/¥2/S
NV 90:TT - 92:0T 1Z0Z/¥¢/S
IV 9€'6 - SE'8 TZ0Z/¥T/S

NV 60:T - Nd TY'TT T202/€2/S

¢-wd 80Tt TZ0T/€T/S

Wd 60:TT - ¥O'TT TZ0Z/€T/S
1202/€2/S
Wd £Z:0T - 258 TZ0Z/ET/S
Wd TS - T#'9 TZ02/€2/S

Wd £T:9 - 0£:S TZ0Z/€2/S

Wd ST:S - 28 TZ0Z/€2/S

Wd 8Z:% - S0:v TZ0Z/€2/S

Wd €7y - TVE T20Z/€2/S

Wd E0:S - ZZ:€ TZ0TZ/ET/S

Wd Zv:Z - THT T20Z/€2/S

Wd 60°T - T#TT T20Z/€2/S
Wd T#°Z - €61 TZ0Z/€2/S

Wd Z0'T - 6€:TT TZ0Z/E2/S

e

—



WO/ YWON/ZZ LE2/0ES0TZ0¢/M0ISIU/INGSOZN/IYE1 /A1 /W0 aIemMeIyai|y//:5a1y
YXON/UXO0N/Z6522/0ES0T20Z/M0I5IY/I8TISN/IYBII/3A1/luo aiemelysil//sany
YD/ VINDN/ZL502/0ES0 120/ MO3SIY/S TZ99N/IB15/2AT]/Wod 2Iemeysil// 50y
dZ50/ 753/ Zrv0¢/0ES0T c0e/MOISIN/dIZ L TN/3YBI/eAl/ W0 2 1emesysily// 50y

SV TN/UX0N/Z0P02/0£50T c02/A01SIU/9aZ TGN/IYI/BAl/ W0 S1emeyaif}//-5a1iy
OWSH/OWSH/Z0F0¢/0£501 202/ MOTSI/MMAMGZ TN/IUBI}/aA1) /03 siemelysis//sany

UXON/OWSH/ZSV6T/0£501 202/ MOISIU/LIZE TN/AYSTE/aA1/oo aiemMeIyail//:5any

YINDN/WINDN/ZZ000/0ES0TZ0Z/M oﬁ_cx SUEBLN/ ;m.‘_r\ SAl|/uiodalemely m__t‘ \ sany
dZSN/dZSW/Z0%1¢/62501¢0¢/MOISIU/dIZLIN/IYBI/AT|/W0T 3 IeMETUBTI// 501y
UXOMN/YXOR/ZLYZZ/6CS01¢0¢/MOBIYJOGEELN/IUBNI/3AI/W0d 3 IemeNaI/75any

OS_wv_\xxOv_\th._”N\wNmo.ﬁNowx?_oum_f.xwmmmzbﬁ_ E ws__ uodaiemely E
JZSH/dZSA]ZLS02/2TS0T 0L/ MOISIU/dIT L TN/IUBIH/3AT/ W03 aiemelai[i//-sany
VINDN/VINDN/Z050¢/8ZS0T C0Z/M0ISIY/8S8ZGN/AUBII/SAT/Wod 3 emeiyal /75y

dZSN/dZSN]ZESLT/BTS0T20¢/MOISTU/NSEVBN/IUBI/EAT| /W0 aremeIyBLj//5tny

dZSA/dZSN/Z85€¢/L2S0T0¢/MOISIU/FTH0EN/IYSIH/ /3N /W03 3Iemery
OWSH/OWNSH/ZLE T ¢/ L2501 Z0¢/MOSIY/XBEELN/IYSI/aA /U0 SIEMETY
O3S1U/GINBELN/IYBI}/BAT| /0T STEMET(
dZSH/dZSN[Z9161/LCS0T 20/ MOBIYJTLTL6N/IYBI1/aAT]/ W0 STEMETY
NmEQ«.mmENom.\asw_ﬁzmmcmzbzmﬁ\&EES u._mgsc

CISIU/4ITLTN/IUEI/aAI/wodaiemelddl)y//:sdny
dZSH/dZSN[Z9SLT/9ZS0T 202/ MOISIUJIIZL TN/IUBI[I/=Ai]/ oo 3 IemeItaij}//sany
VINDI/VINDN/ZZSF /92501 202/ MOoISIU/IABT6N/IYZII/aA1/Wor aiemelysij}//sdny

YXON/dHN/Zv0Z0/92501 202/ M0ISIU/NINFEN/IYE1/3A1/ W03 s1emelyaij//sdng
¥XON/ANNN/ZSYEZ/STS0TZ0Z/AMO0ISIY/dULZYN/AYB1/SAl/WodsiemelysI[y//:sdny
YXOMN/9XOMN/Z0vEZ/SZS0120¢/AI0ISIY/I8TOSN/IUSI}/3A1|/ W0 sIemelysif /7 sany

H1SNI LHON4 OTIYVIAIVD

NOILVIAY SANV1SI TINNVHD
VINVd VINVS NOILVIAY dD

ONI SH3AT VIINON VLINVS

H1SNI LHOI4 OTIIHVINYD
V1NVd VLNVS NOLLVIAY dD

NOILVIAY SONV1SI TINNVHD

Y1SNI LHOITd OT1IRIVIAIYD

OT1 NDISIA 3TVYISHIdAH

V1INVd VANVS NOILVIAY dD
NOILVIAY SANYTSI TINNVHD

YLSNNI LHOINd OTTIHVINYD
VINVd VINVS NOLLVIAY d2

V1NVd VINVS NOLLVIAY dJ
VINVd VINVS NOILVIAY dJ

NOILVIAY SONV1SI TINNVHD

NOILVIAY SONV1SI 1TINNVHD

V1INVd VINVS NOILVIAY dD

V1NVd VINVS NOILVIAY dD
NOLLVIAY SONVISI TAINNVHD

H 13VHIIW g3d47v

Add3d NOLV3S

Y AHOOIHD NISSNINSYY
NOILVIAY SONVISI T3NNVHD
VINYd YINVS NOILVIAY d)
NOILVIAV ¥vd [

JNI S¥3ATH VOINON VINVS
ONI LLZETN

N 143804 VHOIHD

SAYS "NI4 14VHDHIV ¥3SINYD
0711 SFHUVHS HIv

VINVd VYNVS NOILVIAV dD
N 14380¥ VHOIHD

NOILVIAY SANVISI TINNVHD
AY¥Yd3d NOLv3S

d NHOI 3TZLN3D

71 NDIS3A FTVOSHIdAH
VINVd VENVS NOLLVIAV dD
NOILVIAV SONV1SI TANNYHD
d NHOI 31ZLN3ID

4 SIAVI 44VHIS

AYd3d NOLV3S

V1NVd VLNVS NOILVIAY dJ
277 ¥3ANIAANYId

VINVd VINVS NOLLVIAV dD
VINVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD
dd3d 3DIAYIS 1SIHHO4 vasn
NOILVIAV SONVTSI TAINNVHD
J11 S31LIND3 OY¥3IV
NOILVIAY SONVTSI TAINNVHD

VINVd VINVS NOILVIAV dJ
VINVd VINVS NOILVIAV dD
NOILVIAY SANVTSI TINNVHD

NOILVIAV V1SIA
VIV 3THVHD
2 AHOH3UD NISSNINSYY

VLLT8N
W690ZN
J8T9SN
STZI9N
dI¢LIN
HELISN
AMSTZIN
LICETN

D66ELN
JSYTLN
98E8IN
d3ZLIN
V66ELN

1ABT6N
W690ZN
NSEVEN
H3IEESN
d3ICLIN
8G8¢SN
NSEVEN

ES9SEN
W690ZN
vT608N
X8VELN
NGELN
2LTL6N
HES0ZN
8SBTSN
VI9EYN
8S8TSN

d3CLTN
d3Z/IN
1ABTEN

NINVEN
dQLZ¥N
J8T9SN

Wd TO'S - 6T TZ0Z/0E/S
Wd 00:S - 0S:€ TZ0Z/0€E/S
Wd TS'€ - vE'€ T20Z/0€/S
Wd 8Z:Z - ¥ET TZ0Z/0€/S
Wd ST - 0TT TZ02/0€E/S
Wd 9T:€ - LT:T TZ0Z/0€/S
Wd 8€:€ - 9T'T TZ0Z/0E/S
Wd 0€T - €2°ZT 1202/02/S

Wd ¥0:9 - 9€S T20Z/62/S
Wd 8€:6 - TT:S TZ02/62/S
INd S5 - 687 T20T/62/S
Wd ¥S'Z - £1:Z TZ0Z/62/S
Wd ¥T:% - 6T:€ T20Z/62/S

Wd 9€:% - ST'€ T20Z/82/S
Wd ZE'T - ¥7°T T20¢/82/S
Wd 8€:7 - STT 1Z02/82/S
Wd TY:€ - LEZ TZ0Z/82/S
Wd ez - 98T TZ0Z/82/S
Wd £5°T - SE'T TZ0Z/82/S

d £0:ZT - 0€:0T 120Z/82/S

Wd T€:£ - 229 T202/LT/S
IAd €19 - 2O'S T20T/LT/S
Nd T0:9 - 8S:¥ T202/L2/S
INd 9€:€ - ¥TiZ T20T/LT/S
INd 6€: - 0E'T T202/L2/S

Wd €v:2T- 9S:TT 1202/L2/S
WV £5:TT - S¥:0T 1202/L2/S

WV £v6 - 6v:8 1202/L2/S
NV 85:6 - 6€:8 T20T/LZ/S
Wd €t:£ - S§'9 TZ0Z/LZ/S

Wd L5 - 90°C T202/9Z/S
WV 8E:TT - YE:0T T20Z/92/S
Wv 818 - £T:L TZ0Z/9Z/S

Wd £Z:L - ¥O'L TZ0Z/ST/S
Wd 6v'v - ST T20Z/SZ/S
Wd T0:S - TT'v T202/52/S

o\



@!,!%;ﬁﬁ

Airport Consultants

CAMARILLO AIRPORT — AIRPORT MASTER PLAN UPDATE
Status Update:
¢ Consultant and airport staff conducted a coordination meeting on March 9 to discuss master plan
elements/tasks.
® An inventory trip was conducted by the Consultant on March 17-18 to meet with airport staff to
discuss the master plan study and coordinate interviews with various tenants to gain insight into
airport activities, operations, and future development plans.
e Collection of data to be incorporated into the inventory chapter of the study including based aircraft,
aircraft operations, and adjacent land use/zoning data is being undertaken.
e The draft phase | working papers (Introduction, Inventory, Forecasts, and Facility Requirements) is in
progress.
e Work associated with the Airport Geographic Information System (AGIS) survey and environmental
surveys continue.
Upcoming Action Items:
e First round of master plan meetings (Planning Advisory Committee [PAC] and Public Workshop)
scheduled for May 13",
® Preparation of the study website and study initiation brochure.
Project Percent Complete: The study is 23 percent complete through March 2021.

CAMARILLO AIRPORT — AIRFIELD GEOMETRY AND DRAINAGE STUDY
Status Update:

e Discussion has been undertaken with airport staff on re-engaging this study process to evaluate the
future reconstruction of Runway 8-26.

e “Draft” aviation demand forecasts have been prepared and were coordinated with airport staff on
July 5, 2019. The current master plan will re-evaluate aviation demand forecasts for input into this
study.

¢ On-site surveying has been conducted by a Subconsultant for further input in the airfield drainage
study.

Upcoming Action Items:

e Coordination as needed with airport staff to determine course of action in relationship to upcoming
master plan process.

e Evaluation of airfield geometry improvements pending forecast review/FAA approval.

® Recommended airfield drainage enhancements pending the proposed airfield geometry
improvements.

Project Percent Complete: The study is 41 percent complete through March 2021.

OXNARD AIRPORT - AIRPORT LAYOUT PLAN UPDATE / NARRATIVE REPORT
Status Update: No change from February 2021.
e The “draft” Narrative Report, “draft” ALP Drawing Set, and associated ALP SOP 2.00 Checklist and
Exhibit A SOP 3.00 Checklist were submitted to the FAA for review on January 31, 2020.



e The Consultant and airport staff have coordinated on multiple occasions in recent past regarding
current airfield issues that relate to pending revisions to the “draft” ALP Drawing Set.
Upcoming Action Items:
e Coordination as needed with airport staff to discuss appropriate revisions to the ALP Drawing Set.
e Appropriate revisions will be made to the Narrative Report and ALP Drawing Set pending comments
from the FAA.

e Final documents will be prepared upon review and approval of the ALP Drawing Set.
Project Percent Complete: The study is 97 percent complete through March 2021.

ANNUAL CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT (AEA No. 21-01)
Status Update:

e N/A for March 2021.
Upcoming Action Items:

e Coordination as needed to follow-up previous items and assist with new items at the direction of
airport staff.

)R



NS

-

PESN

L2-6-p Loday SMiEIS128l0id AIUNOY BINUSAISIION Bunaap 193101d-MNIIH\0069022VX

MalAaYy asuadsay Juswwoy) Juawdojaaaq auiNpPnolD (P
108(01d

*1202 ‘0€ aunp ybnoiy sandaye
s1pouad Alunod ayj jo 1sanbal ay) Je $821A18S ||BO-UQ

%St uonoNIISU0) ABMuny preuxQ Joj uoieoldde Jueib yy jo uoleredald (9
‘sisA[eue uonelado yesony (q (1202-0202) SADIAHAS TIVI-NO
3} S|y} Je auoN (e ‘paINoexa joeiuoy (e S3JIAH3S NOIS3a
Z v pig - 4 Aemixe | [3)[ered
"120g ‘62 Iudy uado spig (o %86 LUV PIE -390 'D gV S10]08uU0D ABmixe ]
*S|4Y PanIaoal pig asegq - G-/ Aemuny
Aue Jad swnpuappe paJinbai Aue anss) (q 1202 ‘0€ yasew uo piq Joy pajsod suaumaog (9
“Buuado *120Z '0E YoJep uo Aunod pue yyd 01 Juds |epiwgns [euld (q NOILONYLSNODIY S2-L AVMNNH HXO
pig Jaye doysyiom Jueus) piy} 10} ueid (B “[EIWANS %00} 10} SJUBWIWOD 0] Y4 PUE AJUNOD passaippy (e NOIS3d TVNId
suodal
(pa1daooe yy4) suodas pua Jeah gzozg Hwang (1l Aueal aredaid se |jom se sjeob pue wesboid 3gq dojanag
%06 ‘Buiodal sjeob pue sweiboig
‘paacidde pue papjwans sfeob pue sweibosd (I (1202-0202) S31vadn 36d YIND ANV HXO
“aw siy} Je auop (e °X0 % VWO (B S3JIAHIS NOIS3a
'H Aemixe | Jo Buiyellal pue Juswieal] 90BuUNS
%56
“Aemiapun jnossold 1aafoid (q '9g PUe G2 ‘v'g Avenigaq pausopad sbuppew NOLLV1ITI@YHIY INJINIAVd H SAVMIXVL
‘sBuime.q ING-sy apiaoid (e JuawaAed Jo 1200 puo2as jo uoged||dde Jale a1o|dwod uononIsuo (e S3DIAH3S NOILDNYISNOD
*9)9)dwod
Ajjenuelsgns uonaniisuod 108loid pue |z/z1/2 Pley Yybnoiyiyem jeul4 (p *SAOIAITS [BOLIOD|D PUE 'JOMBS “19JEM JO UOISUS)Xd
%66 *patoadxa juauipuause Buoueeq 'SjuswNoop UOHEASIU|LPe UOIJonIsued ay1 pue abeueipauswaaed Buipuno.ins pue s.ebuey jo
10 Buissagoud [euy JolB palen[eAd aq O] SISO |Bul PUE sisA(eue 1abpng (o | SmoJ € $apnioul yaiym ‘oaloud | aseyd ayj jo uolonAsuoD
Niom
"I0oBIUDT WOy Jo 2doos JunH @ Pes|y Wol} parowal 8q o} (SNJY) Apnis Juawaned (q 1 3SVHd ‘LIN3WNdO13A3A HYDNVYH LSYIHLHON
sjuawnoop Buieme Aemiapun 1noasojo 1osfoid (e ‘6 1-G-21 U0 PadusWIWOod uolodnisuc) (e S3DIAH3IS NOILONHISNOD
aepdwo)
waj| uonay ERE snje)s uonduosag

spodiny o juawyiodag
VUNLINIA 2 ALNNOD

C

YN -dIY
c0-le vav
10°001c0e
-00690¢c¢2

dX0 2 YO

0202-2€0
-6.10-90-€ - dIV
90-02-v3Iv
20°'StiiBl
-00tgeLe

QHVYNXO

V/IN - dIV
€1-8l vav
10'6/8181-69022

HXO0 B YWD

LE0 - dIV
€0-02 vav
20°'lct08}
-006891€

OTNHYINYD

9€0 - dIV
90-81 V3V
S0'Slveel

-00689LE

OTIHYWVI

“ON jueln
‘oN Awno)
*ON JUNH % peapy

uoday

60-v0-1202 ajeq UCISIAY
ou[ lunH g peap Aq pasedaid

spodily Jo Juswedaq ‘Ajuno? einjuap

1HOd3H SN1VLS 1O3rodd




JVIATION

A WOOLPERT COMPANY

April 7, 2021

Mrs. Erin Powers

Projects Administrator

County of Ventura Department of Airports
555 Airport Way, Suite B

Camarillo, CA 93010

Re: Monthly Airport Project Status Update — March 2021
Dear Mrs. Powers,

Below is a summary of the tasks completed during the month of March 2021, by Jviation and our
subconsultants for the Camarillo Airport:

Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) Update

e Throughout the month of March, the Sponsor and Jviation coordinated on the ACIP update.

¢ On March 3, 2021, Jviation provided the Sponsor with updated ACIP spreadsheets and exhibits
showing each year of projects.

e On March 16, 2021, the Sponsor and Jviation discussed the ACIP submittal and the updated ACIP
spreadsheets and exhibits.

e Upcoming:
- The Sponsor will provide review comments on the ACIP spreadsheets and exhibits.
- Jviation and the Sponsor will finalize the ACIP. The Sponsor will submit the ACIP to the FAA.

EA for 2025 Runway/Taxiway Reconstruction with 25% Conceptual Design

e Throughout the month of March, the Sponsor, Jviation, and Coffman Associates coordinated on this
project.

e On March 16, 2021, the Sponsor and Jviation discussed a call the Sponsor had with the FAA on the
“EA for 2025 Runway/Taxiway Reconstruction with 25% Conceptual Design” project listed on the ACIP
in 2021.

e On March 22, 2021, the Sponsor, FAA, Jviation, and Coffman Associates had a conference call to
discuss “EA for 2025 Runway/Taxiway Reconstruction with 25% Conceptual Design” project listed on
the ACIP in 2021.

e On March 29, 2021, Coffman Associates provided the FAA with a draft scope of work for the
environmental planning tasks to support this project.

e Upcoming:

- Jviation and Coffman Associates will work on scope of work and fee for the initial planning,
environmental, and engineering work for the “EA for 2025 Runway/Taxiway Reconstruction with
25% Conceptual Design” project.

Cloud Nine Hangars and Offices

e Throughout the month of March, the Sponsor and Jviation coordinated on this project.

e On March 2, 2021, the Sponsor and Jviation discussed the review comments on. the Const
Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) prepared for this prOJect by others =

Main 303.524.3030
Fax 303.524.3031

720 South Colorado Boulevard' | Suite 1200-S | Glendale, CO | 80246
JVIATION.COM



SVIATION

A WOOLPERT COMPANY

e On March 5, 2021, The Sponsor and Jviation discussed the review comments on the Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) that was prepared for this project by others.

e On March 11, 2021, the Sponsor and Jviation discussed the CSPP and the Sponsor requested lviation
to prepare an exhibit to aid in the evaluation of the CSPP. Jviation provided two exhibits to the Sponsor
on March 12, 2021.

¢ Upcoming:
- lviation will wait for direction from the Sponsor on any future tasks.

Runway 8-26 Centerline Pavement Cracks

e On March 8, 2021, the Sponsor requested Jviation to review information and photos of cracks in the
runway centerline.

e OnMarch9, 2021, Jviation provided the Sponsor with two methods of temporary repair for the cracks
in the runway centerline. Jviation also provided estimated unit costs for these two temporary repair
methods.

e On March 19, 2021, the Sponsor and Jviation discussed the temporary repairs for the cracks in the
runway centerline and Jviation completing a site visit to review the condition of the existing
pavement.

e On March 26, 2021, representative from Jviation and Yeh & Associates completed a site visit with the
Sponsor to review the condition of the existing pavement.

e OnApril 1, 2021, Jviation provided a technical memo to the Sponsor which summarized the pavement
distresses on the Runway 8-26 centerline as well as Taxiway A and the infield area between Taxiways
F and G.

e Upcoming:

- On April 8, 2021, Jviation and Sponsor will have a conference call to discuss the technical memo and
the next steps.

- Jviation will prepare a plan and approximate construction cost estimate for the Sponsor to use to
get the runway centerline cracks repaired.

Miscellaneous

e On March 4, 2021, Jviation provided the certificate of insurance to the Sponsor for the annual services
contract.

If you have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
Jviation, a Woolpert Company

Matt Gilbreath, P.E.
Project Manager

cc: Mr. Kip Turner — County of Ventura Department of Airports
Mr. Travis Vallin, Mr. D Ingram, Mr. Jason Virzi, Mr. Mike Quinn, Mr. Jon Noble, Mrs. Marisa Fluhr
— Jviation
File

Main 303.524.3030 | Fax 303.524.3031
720 South Colorade Boulevard | Suite 1200-S | Glendale, CO | 80246
JVIATION.COM

5



JVIATIONI

A WOOLPERT COMPANY
April 9, 2021

Mrs. Erin Powers

Projects Administrator

County of Ventura Department of Airports
555 Airport Way, Suite B

Camarillo, CA 93010

Re: Monthly Airport Project Status Update — March 2021
Dear Mrs. Powers,

Below is a summary of the tasks completed during the month of March 2021, by lviation and our
subconsultants for the Oxnard Airport:

Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) Update
[ ]

Throughout the month of March, the Sponsor and Jviation coordinated on the ACIP update.
On March 2, 2021, Jviation provided the Sponsor with updated ACIP spreadsheets and exhibits
showing each year of projects.

e On March 16, 2021, the Sponsor and Jviation coordinated on the ACIP update and the updated ACIP
spreadsheets and exhibits.

e Upcoming:
- The Sponsor will provide review comments on the ACIP spreadsheets and exhibits.
- Jviation and the Sponsor will finalize the ACIP. The Sponsor will submit the ACIP to the FAA.

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-037-2020 (Design)/03-06-0179-038-2021 (Construction) - Runway 7-25,
Taxiway Connectors, and Parallel Taxiway Pavement Reconstruction

Throughout the month of March 2021, Jviation and the Sponsor coordinated on this project.

e On March 1, 2021, Jviation attended the project design team meeting with the Sponsor, FAA, and
Mead & Hunt.

e On March 9, 2021, Jviation provided the Sponsor with review comments on the draft 100% submittal
documents prepared by Mead & Hunt.

e On March 15, 2021, Jviation attended the project design team meeting with the Sponsor, FAA, and
Mead & Hunt.

e On March 15, 2021, the Sponsor requested Jviation to respond to a discussion between the Sponsor
and Mead & Hunt regarding the run-up areas and Taxiway F. Jviation provided a response to the
Sponsor on March 17, 2021.

e On March 22, 2021, the Sponsor, Jviation, and Mead & Hunt had a conference call to discuss the pre-
bid meeting.

e On March 29, 2021, Jviation attended the project design team meeting with the Sponsor, FAA, and
Mead & Hunt.

e On March 31, 2021, the Sponsor, Jviation, and Mead & Hunt had a conference call to discuss the pre-

bid meeting and agenda.

On April 6, 2021, Jviation attended the pre-bid meeting with the Sponsor and Mead & Hunt._

Main 303.524.3030
Fax 303.524.3031

720 South Colorado Boulevard | Suite 1200-S | Glendale, CO | 80246
JVIATION.COM

b



SVIATION

A WOOLPERT COMPANY

e On April 8, 2021, the Sponsor, lviation, and Mead & Hunt had a conference call to discuss the
construction administration/management scope of work and the items to be completed by Jviation,
Mead & Hunt or by both firms,

o Upcoming:

- On April 12, 2021, Jviation will attend the project design team meeting with the Sponsor, FAA, and
Mead & Hunt,

- Jviation will prepare the scope of work for construction management services on this project and
will submit it to the Sponsor for review.

Miscellaneous

e On March 4, 2021, Jviation provided the certificate of insurance to the Sponsor for the annual services
contract.

e On March 9, 2021, the Sponsor and Jviation had a conference call to discuss the technical memo
Jviation prepared for the review of the Pavement Evaluation Report for Boeing 737-800 operations at
the Oxnard Airport.

e On March 10, 2021, Jviation provided the Sponsor with a summary of why the existing pavement
section is insufficient to handle Boeing 737 series aircraft.

If you have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
Jviation, a Woolpert Company

Matt Gilbreath, P.E.
Project Manager

cc: Mr. Kip Turner — County of Ventura Department of Airports
Mr. Travis Vallin, Mr. ID Ingram, Mr. Jason Virzi, Mr. Mike Quinn, Mr. Jon Noble, Mrs. Marisa Fluhr
— lviation
File

Main 303.524.3030 | Fax 303.524.3031
720 South Colorado Boulevard | Suite 1200-S | Glendale, CO | 80246
JVIATION.COM

) ]



Coffman Associates

Progress Report #7 for
Camarillo Airport Master Plan Update

April 1-30, 2021

Coffman Associates Project No. 20MP10

Work Accomplishments This Period

The Consultant and airport staff conducted a coordination call on April 7 to discuss the
presentation and logistics for the May 13 public workshop.

A staff workshop was conducted on April 22 in which the Consultant presented on the
material that will be included during the PAC meeting and public workshop scheduled for
May 13. Coordination between the Consultant and airport staff occurred after the staff
workshop to further discuss the presentation logistics.

The Consultant has communicated with PAC members to include an introductory email and
Save The Date calendar invite for the May 13 PAC meeting.

The master plan study website (venturacounty.airportstudy.net) has been prepared and is
“live”. The website is provided in English and Spanish formats.

A Study Initiation Brochure has been prepared that provides further input on the master plan
process.

The Consultant has prepared a public workshop ad/flyer for airport staff to disseminate in
advance of the May 13 meetings.

The Consultant continues to gather information and material for input into the inventory,
forecast, and facility requirement elements of the study process. Airport staff recently
provided based aircraft information that is being utilized in the forecasting element.

An environmental inventory of existing conditions is being prepared for input into the
inventory analysis.

The preparation of an updated ALP drawing set has been initiated and will be ongoing
through the remainder of the study process. Currently, an evaluation of existing conditions
is being made for input into the drawing set.

Subconsultants have initiated the preparation of AGIS and environmental surveys for further
input into the study process.

Prepared by: Matt Quick (For questions call 602-993-6999)

e



NS
pes

122~ uoday sneIgTI08[0.d”Aunog Binuaa\saloN Bunlaay 10aloid-IINW\IIH\0069022\ X

malasy asuodsay Juawwo) Juawdojaasg suINPNoID (p
108l01g

1202 ‘0€ aunp ybnoiyl aanosya
S| pouad “Alunod ay jo Jsanbai ayl e S321AI3S ||e2-UQ

%Sy uoIdNIISUOY ABMuUny pJeuxQ Joj uojesidde uelb yy4 jo uoneredald (3
‘Josloig UOIONSUDN Aemuny ‘sisffeue uojesado yeiolly (9 (1202-0202) SIDNIAHIS 11VI-NO
pleuxQ Joj uojesjjdde juelb yy4 alepdn (e 'paInoexa JorIuo) (B S3ADIAHIS NOIS3A
2V Pig - 4 kemixe |ajesed
Yy¥4 0] wio4 uoissiwgng %86 LUV P9 -3 R QD 'A "V SI0198UU0] Aemixe]
a3 oibajels Josuodg Lodiy Hwgns (9 pig asegq - Gg-2 Aemuny
yig} A uo aq |m [esieayay "wdg 1e yisg ‘doyssiom 21ignd puiyi Joj Buiuueld panels (2
Aepy 1o} pajnpayas st doysxiom ognd paryy (q *1202 ‘62 Indy uo Buluado pig 10 uoieingel pig (9 NOILONYLSNODIH S2-2 AVMNNH HXO
-19})9] SYNsal piq §i sisA[eue azieuly (e ‘epuappe buipuodsai00 panss| pue paAlasal S|4y 0} papuodsay (B NOIS3q 1YNId
‘suodal
(paidaooe yy) suodal pua Jeak ggog Hwagns Aok aiedaid se ||am se sfeob pue weiboid 3gg dojaaag
%06 ‘Buipodas sjeob pue swesboiq
‘panoidde pue papiwqns s[eob pue sweiboig (i (L202-0202) S31vadn 390 YO ANV HXO
"aw Syl 18 auoN (8 HXO 8 YWD (B S301AH3S NOIS3d
H Aemixe} Jo Buyiewss pue Juswieal] sdeunsg
%56
“Remuapun noaso|d joaloid (g 'gg pue Gz 'vg Arenugag pawiopad sbuiew NOLLY1IgvH3H INJINIAVd H SAVMIXVL
'sBuimel(q JIng-sy apiao.g (B JUaWBAEC J0 JR0I puadas jo uoljesijdde Jaye ala|dwos uononisuoy) (8 S3IDIAHIS NOILONY1ISNOD
(leuid) € "ON 009 v paingaxa Alind (a1
uo)B|dW oY 4O SONON
uojjeoiidde Aed paufiis [euiy (1
51502 uoieLsivIwpe Aunog (1
1109foad %86 -Buissaooud *S@JIAISS [BOU}03]S PUB 'JOM3S '19JEM JO UOISUS)X3
9S00 0] papaau swayl ajqesaalap joafoid [euig (9 Kunog 1o} Aemiapun pue paubis (pg "oN) uoiieaydde Aed |eulq (o ay} pue abeueipuswaned Bupunouns pue siebuey jo
'L 20g '8 |udy uo papiwqgns juswpuswe -(999'E$ JO JUNOWR JOBIJUOD SSEBAIOUI | SMOJ € SBPNIDUI Yalym ‘19al0ud | 8SBYd Y} JO UOIIONIISUOD
JORJJUOD JUNH 9 PESN JEJp 0 MalAal AuneD (q 18u) malaal Aluna?) Joj pasedaid JUSWPUSLWIE YEIp PUB SISO [BULJ :}IOM
‘02 pue 10 2doos JuNH B PRSHY WOl panowel aq o} (SNdY) ApMis Juawaied (q | 3SVHd ‘LNIWdO13A30 HYDNVH LSYIHLHON
61 'SON suoneoidde Aed jo Buissaoso.d Ajunos (e '61-G-2| U0 padusWWwod uolonisuo) (e S3JIAHIS NOILDONHISNOD
aja|dwo)
way uonay Jussiag snes uonduosag
spodiny jo juswpodag
V3NINIA 2 ALNNOD

9

VN -dIV
c0-lg vav
10°001202
-0069022

4X0 B YWD

0202-L€0
“6410-90-€ - dIY
90-02-vav
c0'SLLiBgl
-00v8ELE

QHVYNXO

VN - dIv
€1-81 Vav
10°6.8181-69022

HX0 B YIND

80 - dIV
€0-02 vav
20'12o6l
-006891€

OTHYNYD

9€0 - dIv
90-8} v3v
SO'SlyeEl

-006891L€

OTTHYINVYD

‘ON juelg)
*oN Ajunon
‘ON JUnH 3 pespy

10-50-1202 ajeQ uoIsiAsY
ou| ‘juny 1§ peajy Aq pasedaid

spodlly Jo Juawyedaqg ‘AJuno) einjuap

1HOd3H SNLVLS LO3rodd




SVIATION

A WOOLPERT COMPANY

May 6, 2021

Mrs. Erin Powers

Projects Administrator

County of Ventura Department of Airports
555 Airport Way, Suite B

Camarillo, CA 93010

Re: Monthly Airport Project Status Update — April 2021
Dear Mrs. Powers,

Below is a summary of the tasks completed during the month of April 2021, by Jviation and our
subconsultants for the Camarillo Airport:

Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) Update

¢ There is no change in the status of this task from April 2021.
e Upcoming:
- The Sponsor will provide review comments on the ACIP spreadsheets and exhibits.
- lviation and the Sponsor will finalize the ACIP. The Sponsor will submit the ACIP to the FAA.

EA for 2025 Runway/Taxiway Reconstruction with 25% Conceptual Design

e Throughout the month of April, the Sponsor, Jviation, and Coffman Associates coordinated on this
project. This included coordination with the FAA as well.

e On April 8, 2021, the Sponsor contacted the FAA to check on their review of the draft scope of work
for the environmental planning tasks to support this project that was submitted by Coffman
Associates on March 29, 2021,

e On April 16, 2021, the FAA provided comments on the draft scope of work for the environmental
planning tasks to support this project.

e On April 23, 2021, Coffman Associates provided the FAA with an updated scope of work for the
environmental planning tasks to support this project.

e On April 30, 2021, Jviation submitted a scope of work and fee to Coffman Associates for the
conceptual design work to be completed with this project.

e Upcoming: )

- FAA approval of the scope of work for the environmental planning tasks to support this project.
- The Sponsor will initiate the independent fee estimate (IFE) process.
- Jviation and Coffman Associates will submit the proposed fees to the Sponsor for review.

Cloud Nine Hangars and Offices
e There is no change in the status of this task from April 2021.

e Upcoming:
- Jviation will wait for direction from the Sponsor on any future tasks.

Main 303.524.3030
Fax 303.524.3031

720 South Colorado Boulevard | Suite 1200-S | Glendale, CO | 80246
JVIATION.COM




SVIATION

A WOOLPERT COMPANY

Runway 8-26 Centerline Pavement Cracks

e On April 1,2021, Jviation provided a technical memo to the Sponsor which summarized the pavement
distresses on the Runway 8-26 centerline as well as Taxiway A and the infield area between Taxiways
F and G.

e On April 8, 2021, the Sponsor and Jviation had a conference call to discuss the technical memo and
the next steps.

e On April 13, 2021, the Sponsor, FAA, and Jviation had a conference call to discuss the technical memo
and the pavement condition concerns on Runway 8-26 centerline and areas of Taxiway A.

e On April 16, 2021, the Sponsor, FAA, and Jviation had another conference call to discuss the technical
memo and pavement condition concerns on Runway 8-26 centerline and areas of Taxiway A as well
as the FAA’s ability to provide funding for a repair project. The Sponsor and Jviation had a follow up
conference call to discuss the next steps for this project.

e Upcoming:

- Jviation will prepare a scope of work and will submit it to the Sponsor for review.

Miscellaneous

e Throughout the month of April, the Sponsor and Jviation coordinated a site visit and on-boarding
meeting.

o Upcoming:
- Jviation will meet with the Sponsor on May 20-21, 2021.

If you have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
Jviation, a Woolpert Company

Matt Gilbreath, P.E.
Project Manager

cc: Mr. Kip Turner — County of Ventura Department of Airports
Mr. Travis Vallin, Mr. D Ingram, Mr. Jason Virzi, Mr. Mike Quinn, Mr. Jon Noble, Mrs. Marisa Fluhr
— lviation
File

Main 303.524.3030 | Fax 303.524 3031
720 South Colorado Boulevard | Suite 1200-S | Glendale, CO | 80246
JVIATION.COM

Il



JVIATION

A WOOLPERT COMPANY
May 7, 2021

Mrs. Erin Powers

Projects Administrator

County of Ventura Department of Airports
555 Airport Way, Suite B

Camarillo, CA 93010

Re: Monthly Airport Project Status Update — April 2021
Dear Mrs. Powers,

Below is a summary of the tasks completed during the month of April 2021, by Jviation and our
subconsultants for the Oxnard Airport:

Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) Update

e There is no change in the status of this task from April 2021.
e Upcoming:
- The Sponsor will provide review comments on the ACIP spreadsheets and exhibits.
- Jviation and the Sponsor will finalize the ACIP. The Sponsor will submit the ACIP to the FAA.

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-037-2020 (Design)/03-06-0179-038-2021 (Construction) - Runway 7-25,
Taxiway Connectors, and Parallel Taxiway Pavement Reconstruction

e Throughout the month of April 2021, Jviation, the Sponsor, and Mead & Hunt coordinated on this
project.

e On April 6, 2021, Jviation attended the pre-bid meeting with the Sponsor and Mead & Hunt.

e On April 8 2021, the Sponsor, Jviation, and Mead & Hunt had a conference call to discuss the
construction administration/management scope of work and the items to be completed by Jviation,
Mead & Hunt, or by both firms.

e On April 12, 2021, Jviation attended the project design team meeting with the Sponsor, FAA, and
Mead & Hunt.

e On April 19, 2021, the Sponsor, Jviation and Mead & Hunt had a conference call to discussion a
preliminary investigation for PFAS on the airfield.

e On April 26, 2021, Jviation submitted the scope of work for construction management services to the
Sponsor for review.

e On April 26, 2021, Jviation attended the project design team meeting with the Sponsor, FAA, and
Mead & Hunt.

e On April 28, 2021, the Sponsor provided review comments to Jviation on the scope of work for
construction management services.

e On April 29, 2021, Jviation attended the bid opening with the Sponsor and Mead & Hunt.

e On April 30, 2021, lviation and the Sponsor discussed the review comments on Jviation’s scope of
work for construction management services. Jviation provided the Sponsor with a revised scope of
work. The Sponsor provided the revised scope of work to the FAA for review.

Main 303.524.3030
Fax 303.524.3031

720 South Colorado Boulevard | Suite 1200-S | Glendale, CO' | 80246
JVIATION.COM

N\~




<SVIATION

¢ On May 4, 2021, Jviation provided Mead & Hunt a draft subconsultant agreement for review. Jviation
also provided Coffman Associates the draft subconsultant agreement for review.
e Upcoming:
- Jviation will attend the next project design team meeting with the Sponsor, FAA, and Mead & Hunt
on May 10, 2021.
- FAA approval of Jviation’s scope of work for construction management services on this project.
- Jviation will prepare the proposed engineering fee for construction management services and will
submit it to the Sponsor for review once the Sponsor receives the independent fee estimate (IFE).

Miscellaneous

e Throughout the month of April, the Sponsor and Jviation coordinated a site visit and on-boarding
meeting.

e Upcoming:
- Jviation will meet with the Sponsor on May 20-21, 2021.

If you have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,
Jviation, a Woolpert Company

Matt Gilbreath, P.E.
Project Manager

cc: Mr. Kip Turner — County of Ventura Department of Airports
Mr. Travis Vallin, Mr. ID Ingram, Mr. Jason Virzi, Mr. Mike Quinn, Mr. Jon Noble, Mrs. Marisa Fluhr
— Jviation
File

Main 303.524.3030 | Fax 303.524.3031
720 South Colorado Boulevard | Suite 1200-S | Glendale, CO | 80246
JVIATION.COM

B



AIRPORT TENANT
PROJECT STATUS
MAY 26, 2021

CAMARILLO

> Airport Properties Limited Row | plans submitted to Airport for final review and
approval before County Agency permits can be issued. Airport review is pending
FAA required consultation.

= Able Grid/Silverstrand battery storage project: construction complete.

= CloudNine Development project construction initial grading in progress.

OXNARD
= None
OTHER

> None

1d



20p Hoday "fo1d Jueln) UON\A[YIUOIA-sHoday 10sfoid

S
7
‘leacidde Joj podiny
0} Juswpuawe Buipinoid
jueynsuo) ‘papasu buldwes
[euonippe psyluspi sey
pieog Jajep 4} pue papiwgns
asom Buidwes jo punod siy} jo
synsay ‘Buuojuow/Budwes
pue uejdyiom
|eucippe salinbal japio
MBN ‘pleog Jsjep SIElS O}
paniwgns podal pue Buydwes
jlog ‘Bunss) wuouad pue
uejd siom e dojeAsp 0} Weoy Bunionuop
Bunybuaiy pabieyasip aaey » Budwesyueld
ley) spodily 6¢1 Wed sannbas | 8100 000'/€1 [eyuswaiddng
pieog Jalep 1BIS YO @UL | 001 Lz/62/e VIN LZI6L/L VIN R ORUIN 0059 SY4d ¥XO | €
suoday
[enuuy pue sajepdn
"vv4 Aq panoidde [eos weiboid
suodai Juawysidwosoe asudiaug ssauisng
[enuuy ‘wv4 Aq pabejueapesi
panoidde sueld YXO B VWD | G6 VIN VIN 8L/vL/8 VIN JunH 3 pean G86'Z1% VWO B YXO [ %8¢
‘2]ep Jaje|
e 1B passalppe aq ||IMm ysalal
1o} anp sbuyiew yuswaned
JAUIO 'Y AN e siuawisnipe sjuswsnodw|
Buyew yy4 yum Adwoo Buniiep yuswened
0} 1.2-02 Ad o4 payebpng v ealy dn-uny pue
AML je jo8[oid Buppiew podiy | G/ aa.L ada.L asaL agL | WnH g pesi Ggz8l$ ‘4'3 'V SAML VWO S
JSuUo0)
/
sS)leway :m_wwﬂ QEOO uelsg plemy ajeq Jojoeljuo) suwie|o pig moT JoqUWINN .ownw Is1g
|dwos Jsuod Jsuo’n joesuon pig Tbug ubisag | S.00D awe jo9loud ‘dng
% saje( jenjay 10 pajnpayos ajewnsy
S133rodd LNVYO NON 120Z Aeiy
S1H0ddlV 40 AINJINLNVd3A

VANLN3A 40 ALNNOD



sop-uoday ‘(o1 JueIn) UON\ATIUON-sL0daY 103(01g

~
U
A’

ssudiajug AU ofjLewe) — 4NJ

SI9pIQ SFuety)) 1080U0D) — 0D

pauIuLIalep oq 01, — Ad.L

yodnry preuxQ — ¥XO

podIry of[Lrewe) — VINO

uow snotaald uroyy sofueyd 21edIpUl S9X0q PapeyS 910N



oop-uoday “ford ee.ATIUON-sUoday 10alog

M

HE}S UOHONIASUOS ‘aunr Jo
pu? pajedidnue mou Juels) — J0jJ93uu0)
‘lencidde uonepustuwosal MAL-AMY 8y3 Joj
Piq o} Yv4 yim | 001 aglr VIN 02/22/9 | 1e/eeiy | unH 2 pesiy 0LEZ0G'1$ | ubisegeui4 ¥XO | €
BuijIopn poAIRoas sSpig
JUBWIWOoD pue
M3IABI IO} 0Z/E/C Uo YV
0} papiugns 18s 41V 1IN}
yelq '6l/g/g| uo jsedelo)
pasinal paaoidde yy4 “D0SSY s1epdn ue|d
‘Remuspun 3I0pn 16 61/0E/TI VIN Z1IZ1I0L VIN Uewio 9/19%¢$ | nokequodiiv IXO [ ¢
'SUI92U0D AjJUNWItLoD
ulew ssaippe 0}
pasned aq |im ueld J1o)sew aepdn
ay} Yoeqpas) doysiiom uo S3JEI00SSY ue|d Je)sen
peseg "Lg0c ‘el ABplBY | 71 agr 0Z/0</6 02726 VIN UBWH0D 7607 1vZ$ waisASYWO [ &
ajep doysxiom aljqnd isa14
‘ARemiapun Jeydsy (1eon
yiomuaded Jnoaso|) 66 [IBMXEN LGE'eLZ$ | |1eag) uoneyiqeyay
‘gy91dwoo Buidigs jeul 00} adl 02/0¢/y 61/GL/8 61/G2/9 | WUNH B pesi\ 9/G6c/cs juswaaed H AML G
"MBIABJ JUB)INSUOD
Japun uoljew.Joyul UoIjoNJISU0DaY
Aanins abeulelqg AL
"§$900.d uB|d JOISEN Q2 AMY Jo) Apnig
HodJIy Yjim SISEDR10) JRBIP abeuieiq pue
Buneuipiooo jueynsuo) 157 adl VIN 6LIvell VIN "00SSY Apnig Ajawioss
‘Aemusspun IopA uewyod 00€™/¥1L$ PRIV YIND g
saslidiajug | eseyd
‘Remuspun 66 0l0] 0 9£Z'066°/$ ‘Juawdojana(g
IN08s0|0 Jo3oid 001 LeieLic 6L/S/cl ZVZV0L | ZL/SL/8 | WUNH® PESN | 8G9 G¥S | 2029CL /S lebuey 3N S
"819|dWwiod uonoNISUoD
"JIsuo)
/ 10)oBJJU0D
syJeway ubisaq dwosp yels piemy ajeq “1bug swie|n pig moT Jaquinp "sadsg “181d
|[dwon Isuo) Jsuo9n joesuo) pi1g ubisag S.009) 3jewnsy aweN jo9loid ‘dng
% saje( |enjoy JO 9INpayos pajewnnsy
S103rodd LNVHO vvd 1202 Aepy

SL¥0dilV 40 INJNLHVd3d

VINLN3A 40 ALNNOD



oop poday “fo1g ve.NATPUON-sHoday 193[01d

=

s1ap1Q 98uey) 19enu0) — ODD

pauruulep 2q 01, — 9L

podury preuxQ — IX0

uodiry of[Ueure) — VIAD

yuowr snoraaxd woij saueyd 21edIPUL SIX0Q PAPeYS :AION

‘2|npayos jueib uoRoNJSU0ISY
o} anp Ainp ui pajeluisa 4 AML [ejleted
"Jsuo)
! 10}oBIJUO)
syleway ubiseg | dwon yels piemy ajeq T1bug swie pIg Mo Jaquinp -oadg 181
[dwo) Jsuo9n Jsuo)n joenuUO) pig ubisag 5,009 Jjewnsg awep jaslold ‘dng
% saje( [enjdy JO 9|NPayds pajewisy




DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS
2021 MEETING SCHEDULES

AAC/CAA/OAA

AVIATION ADVISORY COMMISSION

CAMARILLO & OXNARD AUTHORITIES

January 11 January 14
February 11 February 11
March 1 March 11
April 5 April 8

May 10 (CANCELED)

May 13 (CANCELED)

June 7 June 10
July 8 @ 5:00 p.m.

(DUE TO HOLIDAY) July 8
August 2 August 12

September 9 @ 5:00 p.m.
(DUE TO HOLIDAY)

September 9

October 4 October 14
November 1 (DUE TO HOLIDAY)
December 6 December 9

The Aviation Advisory Commission meets on the first Monday of the month
(exceptions are noted above in yellow highlight) at 7:00 p.m. in the Department
of Airports Administration Office, 555 Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, CA 93010.

The Camarillo & Oxnard Airport Authorities meet jointly on the second Thursday

of the month

at 6:30 p.m. in the

Department of Airports Administration Office, 555 Airport Way, Suite B,

Camarillo, CA 93010.

¢




555 Airport Way, Suite B

\ COUNTY ¢f VENTURA Camarilo, CA 93010

Phone: (805} 388-4372

Department of Airports Fax: (805) 388-4366
www.ventura.org/airports

April 7, 2021

Mr. Justin Guan, AICP

Community Planner

Federal Aviation Administration
Los Angeles Airports District Office
777 S. Aviation Blvd., Suite #150
El Segundo, CA 90245

RE: Application for conveyance of surplus property
Camarillo Airport — 275 Skyway Drive, Camarillo, CA
GSA Control No 9-X-CA-0410 AO
DHS Ice Building

Dear Mr. Guan:

Pursuant to our discussions regarding the conveyance of the GSA surplus property to the
County of Ventura Department of Airports (Camarillo Airport CMA), please note that the
intended use for the property at 275 Skyway Drive will be for a non-aeronautical use but
in support of the Department of Airports’ funds to support the operation of County airports
and activities. The County Department of Airports operates as an Enterprise Fund and
rents and fees from the Airport Business Park support the County airports operations.

It is intended to develop this site for commercial business park uses as it abuts other
parcels owned by the County Department of Airports and will enhance the opportunities
for income generation to support our airport activities and operations.

Please let me know if you have additional questions. We look forward to the finalization
of the environmental review and next steps. Thank you for your assistance.

Sincerely,

Nea ot [P .

Madeline Herrle, CSM, RPA®
Lease Manager

Cc:  Erin Powers, County of Ventura

Dave Nafie, Airport Deputy Director
Chelsey Battaglia - GSA

Do



555 Airport Way, Suite B

COUNTYﬁfVENT“RA Camatillo, CA 93010

Phone: (805) 388-4372
Department of Airports Fox: (805) 388-4366

www.venturg.org/airports

April 13, 2021

Greg Ramirez

City Manager

City of Camarillo

601 Carmen Drive
Camarillo, CA 93010

RE: Agreement Between County of Ventura and City of Camarillo Pertaining to
Camarillo Airport Development and Surrounding Land Use

Dear Mr. Ramirez:

In the first half of 2020, the City of Camarillo took various actions relating to the 1976
“Agreement Between County of Ventura and City of Camarillo Pertaining to Camarillo
Airport Development and Surrounding Land Use” (Agreement), including the February
26, 2020 adoption of a resolution asking the County to incorporate the Agreement into
airport leases and into the mitigated negative declaration for the Cloud Nine project. The
City's actions prompted the County to examine the Agreement in some detail, and the
County is now concerned about some of the Agreement’s provisions. | write to initiate a
conversation with the City about those concerns and how they might be addressed.

Specifically, the County believes the Agreement needs to be amended to ensure it meets
the County’s needs and comports with applicable law and current FAA requirements. For
example, since the Agreement was first adopted 45 years ago, there have been
significant changes in federal law regarding airport owners’ powers over aircraft
operations. (See, e.g., Airline Deregulation Act of 1978: Airport Noise and Capacity Act
of 1990; British Airways Bd. v. Port Authority of New York (2d Cir. 1977) 558 F.2d 75;
British Airways Bd. v. Port Authority of New York and New Jersey (2d Cir. 1977) 564
F.2d 1002.) Also, as has been pointed out to the City, some provisions in the Agreement
have become outdated, including Exhibit B’s reference to the Civil Aeronautics Board,
which was abolished in 1981 under the Airline Deregulation Act of 1978. And today,
unlike in 1976, the FAA’s Airport Improvement Program provides significant funding to
the County for the operation and maintenance of its airports, conditioned on grant
assurances that constrain the County in various ways. (See 49 U.S.C. § 47107, FAA
Compliance Manual, FAA Order 5190.6B, App. A.) This is not intended to be a complete
list of the County’s concerns or the reasons for them, but those concerns are sincere and
legitimate. Based on those concerns, the County believes the Agreement must be

' L)



Greg Ramirez
City of Camarilio
April 13, 2021
Page 2

The County acknowledges and respects the City’s interest in operations and
development at the Camarillo Airport. The County also acknowledges both sides’ desire,
as stated in the Agreement, “to achieve maximum mutual cooperation in the
development of Camarillo Airport and to maintain a balanced perspective in fulfilling
County aviation requirements within a framework of continuing community sensitivity.”
(Agreement, T E.)

It is in this spirit that the County invites the City to begin a discussion about amending
the Agreement. While | do not necessarily expect this process to be simple or quick, | do
believe it can be successful and should be started without delay. | would therefore
appreciate your confirming, as soon as possible, that the City will begin these
discussions with the County. Although | propose that the conversation begin with a

relatively small number of City and County staff, | am also open to suggestions for a
different approach.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. Otherwise, | look forward
to your reply.

Sincerely,

Kip Turner, C.M.
Director of Airports

Do



Oxnard Airport Runway 7-25, Taxiway Connectors, and
Parallel Taxiway Pavement Reconstruction Project

Tenant Workshop #3

Project Description

The Runway 7-25, Taxiway Connectors, and Parallel
Taxiway Pavement Reconstruction Project (Project)
consists of reconstructing the runway, taxiway
connectors, and parallel taxiway at the Oxnard Airport
located at 2889 W 5th Street, Oxnard, California 93030.

The minimum acceptable level of serviceability for the
Oxnard Airport runway has been reached or is no longer
cost-effective to perform maintenance activities on the
pavement.

To bring the Oxnard Airport's runway to current
standards will require reconstructing the runway,
taxiway connectors and parallel taxiway.

This effort will require the removal of existing pavement
surface, construction of new pavement, shoulder work,
application of pavement markings, installation of
underdrain system, electrical facilities, new edge and
MALSF lights, and new signage, as well as modifications
to the existing storm drains.

Tenant Workshop #3

The third and final workshop will cover the latest
information regarding funding, construction and
schedule. Join via Zoom on:

Tuesday, May 25, 2021
3:00 PM - 4:30 PM
Remote Meetmg Link:

Weblnar ID: 993 9213 6184
Passcode: 749012

Phone In Only: 213-338-8477

Visit wwwventura.ora/airports for more details.
For questions, contact us at 909-313-0549 or
OxnardAirportRunway@arellancassociates.com

\ COUNTY of VENTURA

Department of Airports




555 Airport Way, Suite B

COUNTY 06 VENTURA Camaiillo, CA93010

Phone: (805) 388-4372
Department of Airports Fox: (805) 388-4366

www.venturdg.org/dgirports

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
A Message from the Director of Airports

May 26, 2021
Camarillo and Oxnard Airport Master Plan Update

The Ventura County Department of Airports would like to thank community members who
participated in the public workshop that was recently conducted to kick off the Camarillo and
Oxnard Airport Master Plan update. Based on the feedback received to date, the Department has
decided to pause the Master Plan process for a period of approximately one year or more if
needed to broaden community engagement.

The intent of the Airport Master Plan Update is to both share information and listen to
community members to seek their input and vision for how the two County owned Airports
should serve our local communities and region. The County hopes to have a shared
understanding through broadened engagement, of the community’s concerns and interests in
how the Airports are being planned and operated to best serve all in our communities.

We believe taking this time to reset the Study effort to ensure proper collaboration and expand
community representation and involvement is vitally important to a well-informed master plan.
The Department will soon be hosting various planned workshops to instead focus on the noise
related issues that have been identified. We look forward to working closely with the neighboring
communities on issues of concern and encourage community engagement in these efforts.

We will keep the community informed regarding new workshops to discuss noise related
concerns at the Camarillo and Oxnard Airports. Please stay connected at
http://ventura.org/airports. Thank you again for your interest in the Ventura County Airports.

Kip Turner
Director of Airports

Bal



Oxnard Airport Runway 7-25, Taxiway Connectors, and
Parallel Taxiway Pavement Reconstruction Project

Tenant Workshop #3 Rescheduled

Tenant Workshop #3 Rescheduled

The third and final workshop originally scheduled
for May 25 has been postponed to June 15 as we
continue to coordinate with the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) on funding and estimated
grant schedule. Coordination with the FAA will
allow construction to start no earlier than July 12,
2021.The latest information will be provided at
the workshop. Join via Zoom on:

Tuesday, June 15,2021
3:00 PM - 4:00 PM
Remote Meeting Link:

Webinar ID: 993 9213 6184
Passcode: 749012

c_qummfv:muu

Department of Airports

Project Description

The Runway 7-25, Taxiway Connectors, and Parallel
Taxiway Pavement Reconstruction Project (Project)
consists of reconstructing the runway, taxiway
connectors, and parallel taxiway at the Oxnard Airport
located at 2889 W 5th Street, Oxnard, California 93030.

The minimum acceptable level of serviceability for the
Oxnard Airport runway has been reached or is no longer
cost-effective to perform maintenance activities on the
pavement.

To bring the Oxnard Airport's runway to current
standards will require reconstructing the runway,
taxiway connectors and parallel taxiway.

This effort will require the removal of existing pavement
surface, construction of new pavement, shoulder work,
application of pavement markings, installation of
underdrain system, electrical facilities, new edge and
MALSF lights, and new signage, as well as modifications
to the existing storm drains.




